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REGISTERED OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG

KONG
Room 1301, 13th Floor

Bank of East Asia Harbour View Center
No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.goldpac.com

INVESTOR RELATION

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE
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For the year ended
31 December
HZ12A31BLLZ2EE

T 2 B
2021 Change SER
RMB’000 g
ARBEF T -
Revenue 5 A 1,530,251 1,376,524 1.2% §§K
Profit for the year attributable to ViN/NETE ¥ =N A 147,427 138,184 6.7%
owners of the Company F[E F)H 2y
gg=
S @ pe
Net profit margin A & 10.5% 10.0% 0.5PP 284
Ao
REVENUE ANALYSIS Y A 2 47
For the year ended £
31 December g
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2021 Change 5
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Embedded software and secure BRARBGNEZ 2 1,009,115 752,828 34% v
payment products ST EE -
Platform and service F & MR 521,136 623,696 -16.4% R
Total At 1,530,251 1,376,524 11.2% i
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Environmental,
Social and

FINANCIAL POSITIONS Bf AR R
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At 31 December

R12A318 sel
2021 Change 2gé
RMB’000 =¥g = O

ARBTR -
Total assets mEE 2,813,857 2,609,965 7.8% o
Total liabilities waEE (743,294) (601,360) 23.6% © 8y
B
g «

Net assets FEE 2,070,563 2,008,605 3.1% S
g
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2022 MAJOR EVENTS

2022F KRB

INNOVATION DRIVEN BY TECHNOLOGY

M BE B 2 HT 3R

Goldpac

CREHFAREEAEBIR
BB O BEE L KB
POCEIH

The Digital RMB Hardware
Wallet Successfully Passed the
POC Test of the Level 2 Digital
Currency Operator

S HREHTEKERE
FPEHBEBERBEESIRF5E
BESEP —BUufst

Goldpac Displayed Digital
Currency Products at the

China International Fair for
Trade and Service and Received
Wide Praise from Consumers
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UMV Platform Launched Al
Voice Call and Intelligent Image
Audit Functions, Empowering
Digital Transformation of
Finance Industry
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BEEER
Goldpac Being Shortlisted for
China Unicom Telecom Card
Supplier Qualification, Lays the
Foundation for Cross-domain
Application Integration of
Finance and Telecom
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Goldpac was Awarded the
2022 CLSeESG ZhiYuan Award
— Social Pioneer Enterprise
Award

DEEHIBR
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Focusing on the “Dual Carbon”
Goals, Goldpac Launched
Eco-friendly Cards to Promote
Green Finance
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Goldpac Honored Again with
Four ICMA Elan Awards

Craftsman Spirit Creates
Outstanding Design
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Goldpac Obtained the

SA8000 Social Responsibility
Management System
Certification, Continuously
Enhancing the ESG Regulatory
Framework
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Passed the ITSS (Information
Technology Service Standards)
Information Technology
Operation and Maintenance
Service Capability Maturity
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Establishing a Perfect Operation
& Maintenance Management
System for Consumers
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The Advantages

of Data Backup in
Three Locations
Ensured Production
and Supply During
Pandemic, Winning
the Trust of
Consumers
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Zhuhai Fintech Center Has Been
Put Into Service, Promoting the
Coordinated Development of
the Greater Bay Area
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
I FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of
directors (the “Directors” and
“Board” respectively) of Goldpac
Group Limited (the “Company”),
| am delighted to present the
Annual Report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December
2022.

EHNINLKRR

RAMRARKRES 2 (LA T2 A
BMIEEINIEES]) ME TR
EEHEEZTRERRA (AT
B AAR]) RENEB QA (A
TE&EIXREE]) 8 £2022F12
A3MB L2 FERE °

Chairman & Executive Director:
EZETERITESE
LU Run Ting




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

In 2023, the Group marked the 30th anniversary of its founding
and the 10th anniversary of its IPO. During the past 30 years,
the Group has fully grasped the opportunities of China’s rapid
economic development, led the trends in innovation along the
development of the financial technology (“Fintech”) industry,
and adhered to security and compliance requirements. The Group
gradually established itself as a global industry leader and achieved
compelling results.

With its core competitiveness in secure payment products and
solutions, the Group has won the trust and support of more
than 1,000 financial institutions and other customers worldwide
while maintaining a steady growth trend. 2022 was a turbulent
year, one which the International Monetary Fund called the “the
weakest growth period”, and saw geopolitical turmoil combining
with COVID-19 outbreaks and lockdowns to cause global supply
chain fluctuations and dampening in consumer demand. Benefiting
from the appropriate marketing strategies and the trust of global
customers, the Group still achieved double-digit growth both in
revenue and net profit.

Looking back over the past 30 years, “innovation” and “security”
have been the backbone of the Group’s success.

By leveraging “innovation”, the Group has closely followed the
evolving needs of consumers in the financial industry, applied
cutting-edge technologies to financial business scenarios, and
created a number of “firsts” in secure payment products and
service solutions. In every critical period of Fintech breakthroughs
and innovations, from the launch of the Golden Card Project, the
large-scale application of secure payment chips, the independent
secure chip operating system to digital currencies, the Group has
always maintained its leading competitive advantages.

In "Security”, the Group successfully passed one of the world’s
most stringent laboratory destructive security testings, recognizing
the world-class level of the Group’s technologies. These
technologies provide secure and convenient payment tools to
more than 5 billion consumers from global financial institutions.
The Group has not only been one of the most reliable partners
of global financial customers, but has also made contributions to
defending the security of financial system as a whole.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FERE (#)

These 30 years of steady development represents the fruition of
the efforts of all shareholders and all employees. The Group has
been adhering to return values to shareholders. During the 10
years since its listing, the Group has declared dividends of more
than HKD1,300 million.

Building on the steady development of the past 30 years is the
mission for the new generation of the Group. The fundamentals
to realizing this vision includes the envisioning the development
trends of Fintech in the future, sensing the needs of the financial
industry, inheriting innovation and security “DNA" of the Group,
and creating leading products, services, and solutions.

Looking ahead, firstly, digitalization and individualization are the
inevitable trends for future societies, and the future development
of Fintech and financial industry will also follow this trend.
Secondly, the application of new technologies such as Artificial
Intelligence (“A.L.") will significantly improve the operational
efficiency of financial institutions, as well as the ability to capture
and cater for the trends of personalized consumption. Thirdly,
open banking will become the core feature of banks, reshaping
the open new business architecture and implementing the open
transformation of IT architecture. The effective integration of the
massive data generated from these three factors above, will bring
explosive power to the financial industry, radically multiplying its
effect on business.

The Group’s core strategy is to keep up with consumer needs,
promoting innovation and security, and actively advance the
transformation of digitization and platformization. The UMV
platform is the key of this strategy.

The inner core of the UMV platform forms the Group’s core
operation and management capability for digitalization. Utilizing
a unified technical foundation, the UMV platform realizes the
standardization of data flow and information flow for the entire
operation process, reshapes the production process and design
techniques, minimizes manual processes, significantly improves
the operational efficiency of data processing, and accelerates
the delivery of products and services. Being designed with a
data-centric core, the UMV platform is more compatible with
the future digital transformation needs of small, customized
personalized and differentiated production batches within financial
institutions to enhance operational efficiency, thus further
strengthen the Group’s core competitive advantage.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The expansion of the UMV platform focuses on adapting to future
personalized consumption scenarios, which provides support for
financial institutions to meet the business needs arising from the
diversified and personalized consumption scenarios. This in turn
enables an outward extension to multiple applications of non-core
payment business for all financial institutions. Since the entire
platform is established on a unified digital inner core, the extension
of the UMV platform has the capability to continuously and flexibly
adapt with constantly changing times.

By extensively leveraging A.l. technology, privacy computing, and
Big Data technology, the UMV platform covers multiple aspects
such as the supply chain, customer service, product design, image
processing, and intelligent voice assistant, which collectively help to
significantly reduce manual processes. The UMV platform not only
contributes to efficient decision-making within the Group and for
financial institutions, but also enhances operational effectiveness
and consumer acquisition capabilities for financial institutions, and
helps strengthen consumer stickiness and stability.

The mission of the Group is to build a new ecosystem for the
secure payment value chain. The new generation of the Group will
adhere to the trend of integration between Fintech innovation and
the digital transformation demands of financial institutions and will
continue to bolster the combination of innovation and security.
The Group will act as a participant and advocator in the disruptive
change of the ecosystem of the secure payment value chain.

Standing at the turn of a new historical starting point, | believe the
success story of the Group will no doubt continue to flourish!

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, members of the
Board, management teams, staff and business partners of the
Group.

Lu Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

2022 was full of changes and challenges. A great number of
challenges including geopolitical turmoil in combination with
the COVID-19 pandemic caused global supply chain chaos and
a decrease in consumer demand. Benefiting from appropriate
marketing strategies and the trust of worldwide consumers, the
Group effectively tackled the challenges from difficult external
environment and achieved double-digit growth both in revenue
and net profit.

Facing the fluctuating and ever-changing times, the Group
has made remarkable achievements with solid steps to its
forward-looking development plans. Firstly, the Group follows the
tendency of financial industry, timely adjusts its resource allocation
with appropriate marketing strategies, and continuously improves
its business structure. Secondly, with core competitiveness in
secure payment products and solutions, the Group consistently
provides high quality products and services to over 1,000
consumers worldwide, supporting a steady growth performance.
Lastly, the Group actively seizes the opportunity of the upgrade
of third-generation of social security cards and expands related
business.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB1.53 billion, representing a
year-on-year growth of approximately 11.2%. The Group
continued to promote its digital and platform-based development
strategy to further consolidate its core competitive advantages
in the payment sector with Fintech innovation. Using digital and
platform-based marketing tools to continuously explore new
markets, the Group’s revenue in overseas, Hong Kong and Macao
was approximately RMB250.9 million for the year, which achieved
a breakthrough growth of approximately 107.5%. Meanwhile,
due to the mature business continuity management system, its
revenue of core business of the embedded software and secure
payment products grew strongly with a year-on-year growth of
approximately 34.0%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN @

Due to the disruption of the global supply chain and the rising
cost of chips and other raw materials, the Group’s gross profit
for the year was approximately RMB403.1 million, representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 0.2%. The Group further
enhanced operational efficiency through intelligent operations and
process re-engineering, and optimized supply chain management
through strategic cooperation with upstream and downstream
resources, which effectively mitigated some of the cost pressure,
thus still maintaining its profitability.

During the year, the Group recorded net profit of approximately
RMB161.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 16.7%. Net profit margin was approximately
10.5%), representing a year-on-year increase of 0.5 percentage
point. Benefiting from the Group’s revenue growth in overseas
regions, Hong Kong and Macao, overlaid with the effect of the
appreciation of USD against RMB, the exchange gain for the year
was approximately RMB46.3 million.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total current assets
amounted to approximately RMB1,819.0 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 1.9%. The Group's current
ratio and quick ratio were approximately 2.6 and 2.1 respectively,
while its gearing ratio was approximately 26.4%. The Group still
maintained a high level of liquidity and a low gearing ratio. The
Group will adhere to a prudent financial management policy and
optimize its capital structure.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK12.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB10.5 cents) per ordinary share
(HK10.0 cents in 2021) and a special dividend of HK4.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB3.5 cents) per ordinary share
(HK4.0 cents in 2021) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, China’s digital economy developed rapidly, and the
digital transformation of the financial industry was accelerated
in a gradually regulated process as the industrial digitalization is
further promoted. The Group adhered to its innovation concept of
“Finance-based, Technology-orientated” to accelerate its pace of
digital and platform-based transformation, develop together with
the industry, embrace changes, continuously consolidate its leading
market position in core businesses, and generate new growth
momentum in the future.

During the year, the Group’'s embedded software and secure
payment products business segment recorded revenue of
approximately RMB1,009.1 million, representing a significant
increase of approximately 34.0% year-on-year.

In order to fulfill the needs of the global market, the Group not
only launched its independent and controllable embedded software
and products to satisfy the needs of the Chinese market, but also
launched embedded software and secure payment products that
meet the technical specifications required by overseas markets
and meet the diverse needs of each country through localized
development. With clear competitive advantages of secure payment
embedded software in the global market, the revenue in overseas,
Hong Kong and Macao grew rapidly with approximately 203.2%
year-on-year to approximately RMB233.3 million.

At the same time, the market potential of the third-generation
social security cards in the Chinese mainland continued to increase,
the Group seized the opportunities and actively expanded its
business by undertaking the third-generation of social security
cards issuance projects and related solutions in various provinces
and cities in China, resulting in rapid growth in both the quantity
and order value. During the year, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately RMB775.8 million from embedded software
and secure payment products business segment in the Chinese
mainland, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
14.8%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN @

Affected by the lockdown due to the COVID-19, the revenue
of the platform and service business segment dropped back to
approximately RMB521.1 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 16.4% and accounting for
approximately 34.1% of the Group’s revenue. A lag in project
implementation due to delay in the delivery and installation of
digital equipment, led to a fall in revenue with approximately
17.2% year-on-year. However, as the impact of the COVID-19
is gradually easing off and the pace of digital transformation of
financial institutions accelerates, the platform and service business
segment still has strong growth potential.

OUTLOOK - BUILDING “DIGITAL GOLDPAC”
TO GENERATE THE MOMENTUM OF
TRANSFORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT
WITH INNOVATION

The wave of digitalization is sweeping, and the digital
transformation process of the global financial industry
continues to accelerate. The Group follows closely the trend
of digital development, and unswervingly promotes the digital
and platform-based strategy. By leveraging on decades of its
technological leadership in the field of secure payments, the Group
has been improving its marketing and business portfolio. The
Group will continue to enhance its digital operation capabilities
and realize the future leapfrog transformation through digital
innovation.

Firstly, digitalization and individualization are the inevitable
trend of the future society, and the further phases of Fintech
and financial industry will also follow this trend. Secondly, the
application of new technologies such as A.l. will significantly
improve the operational efficiency of financial institutions, as well
as their ability to capture and cater for the trend of personalized
consumption. Thirdly, open banking will become the core feature
of banks, reshaping the open new business architecture and
implementing the open transformation of IT architecture.

The Group will focus on three key strategies of “Fully Promoting
the Digital and Platform-based Construction of the UMV", “Seizing
the Opportunities and Expanding Core Business” and “Enhancing
Cross-domain Application Ability and Broadening Service
Scenarios”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Firstly, Fully Promoting the Digital and
Platform-based Construction of the UMV

The goal of the Group’s transformation and development is to
build an innovative ecosystem of the secure payment value chain.

Internally, the Group will digitalize its core operational capabilities
through the UMV platform, integrate upstream and downstream
resources in the industry including product and service resources,
technology resources and business channel resources, and reshape
business processes to activate the Group’s endogenous momentum
for development, in order to better promote positive interaction
among participants including financial institutions, bank card
organizations, card issuers and C-end consumers in the entire
industry chain.

Externally, the Group will build an one-stop digital integrated
financial business platform through the UMV platform to support
financial institutions to meet the diversified and personalized
consumption needs of the new generation of C-end consumers,
and is able to extend outward to multiple areas of non-core
payment businesses of all financial institutions. The UMV platform
has the capability to improve the abilities of financial institutions
to acquire consumers precisely, while strengthening consumer
stickiness and stability, comprehensively improving consumer value,
and expanding its advantages to other related financial business
areas.

The Group will adhere to the trend of integration between Fintech
innovation and the digital transformation demands of financial
institutions. By leveraging on “innovation” and “security”, the
Group determines to adding new momentum for the innovative
development of secure payment industry.

Secondly, Seizing the Opportunities and
Expanding Core Business

As one of the countries with the highest speed in promoting
digital currency products, the scope of digital RMB pilot project
and application in China has gradually expanded and shown an
accelerated trend. Based on our years of experience in the field
of financial security payments, the Group has developed solutions
that combine digital currency hardware wallets and terminal
products to effectively enhance our core business competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

AIEJE n—_I-nHB& *ﬁ(nﬁ

The Group actively advances the expansion of digital currency
product markets. The Group’s digital RMB hardware wallet has
successfully passed the POC (“Proof of Concept”) test of the
level 2 digital currency operator, and the Group displayed relevant
digital RMB application solutions at the 2022 China International
Fair for Trade and Service. Meanwhile, the Group has signed a
cooperation memorandum with Bank of China Zhuhai Branch
to jointly build a pilot digital RMB platform in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. In the future, the Group
will also assist more financial institutions to accelerate integration
between digital currency ecosystem and digital financial inclusion.
Furthermore, the Group will explore target consumers in new
regions, and continuously increase the breadth and quality of its
financial services for a wider regional coverage of the Group’s
financial security payment business in the global market.

Aligning with the rural revitalization policy proposed by the
Chinese government, the Group relies on headquarter-level
partnership with strategic partners such as China Post to assist
their implementation of the rural revitalization with our mature
and leading secure payment products and solutions. The Group
will expand the coverage of its products and services in urban,
rural and other areas which contribute further growth in the core
business scale.

Thirdly, Enhancing Cross-domain Application
Ability and Broadening Service Scenarios

With the rapid development of 5G, block chain, A.l.,, and
other new technologies, the financial industry is embracing the
evolution of multidisciplinary integration applications driven by
digital transformation. Based on the Group’s core competitive
advantages, the Group will increase its investment in the research
and application of innovative financial technology, accelerate
the expansion of secure payment products and solutions to
more industries such as government affairs, transportation and
telecommunications by continuously enhancing its intelligent,
digital and scenario-based service capabilities to further amplify
the commercial value of the Group’s leading technologies and
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In the field of government affairs, the Group will focus on
expanding social security, convenience and age-adapted service
scenarios. In the transportation sector, the Group will deepen
its strategic partnership to create secure payment products
with in-depth integration of finance and transportation, while
accelerating a wider commercial promotion and application. In
the telecommunication sector, the Group is already qualified as a
USIM (short for “Universal Subscriber Identity Module”) card
and loT (short for “Internet of Things”) card provider for leading
telecommunications operators in the Chinese mainland. With the
booming development of 5G, the Group is bound to have a great
future in the convergence of secure payment and communication
applications.

THE ZHUHAI FINTECH CENTER

The Zhuhai Fintech Center (“Center”) is a technology park with
the theme of Fintech, which has been put into service in the fourth
quarter of 2022. The Group will leverage on high quality resources
of the Center to jointly promote relevant industrial projects with
the local government, attracting talents, projects, and enterprises
from the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area through
combination of industry, academia and research. The Center aims
to establish a new regional benchmark of China’s Fintech industry
to boost innovation in the Greater Bay Area, and provide strong
momentum for the Group’s platform-based development strategy.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material events occurred subsequent to 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN @

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Monday, 15 May 2023, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 9 May 2023. The register
of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 10
May 2023 to Monday, 15 May 2023, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
31 May 2023. The register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 1 June 2023 to Monday, 5 June 2023,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed
dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Monday, 15 May 2023, the dividends will be paid on
Friday, 30 June 2023 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Monday, 5 June 2023.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 4 December 2013 with net proceeds from the global
offering of approximately RMB975.0 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). As at 31
December 2022, the Company utilized approximately RMB854.7
million for the purposes of production capacity expansion,
innovative product and service research and development,
investment in associates and acquisition, market expansion
outside of China, working capital supplementation and other
general corporate purposes. The balances of the net proceeds
were deposited in banking account. The Company has utilized
and will utilize the net proceeds pursuant to the purposes and the
proportions as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
22 November 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEN LD @&

An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the initial #2022 12HA318 » #IX AR B ERERK
public offering and the unused amount as at 31 December 2022 is  IE{F A RFTBRBEZ HITWA T :
set out below:

Corporate
Information
AR

Expected = L
timeline 5 :L
for fully ce
utilizing i
Utilized  Unutilized the N ET
amount amount  remaining R
as at as at net 28
% of net Net 31 December 31 December  proceeds -
proceeds proceeds 2022 2022 (Note) é éf%
T U
BB -
R2022%  R20225  HEFE s
B 12A318 128318 ZEHEH g v
Eethfl EXEE CERSE XREAGE (W) §—§
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 é;f
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETR &S
s
R&D of new products and services B % # & & [ AR 15 35% 341,113 341,113 0 N/A .
Expansion to production BRAEERE AHK 5
facilities, upgrades and other BERFEER 2Ex
improvements to existing card BRRIERE £En
production and data processing g =5
facilities 35% 341,113 286,509 54,604 <54 -
Financing future strategic alliances 315 A 2R B2 B 47 A 7] i
with complementary companies ~ {TRBEBBEMTES 10% 97,461 32,120 65,341 <5F

Further strengthening presence E— MR E A
in existing markets outside the PASNR B TSI

Chinese mainland EEEL M 10% 97,461 97,461 0 N/A s

Working capital and other general % EEE R :
corporate purposes Eo—RAr AR 10% 97,461 97,461 0 N/A

w i

Total att 100% 974,609 854,664 119,945 <54 gfs

i

Note: The expected timeline for utilizing the remaining net proceeds is based on the  fifs7 - SRS TAEHIE S E 2 EHERE I AREFE
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group. It remains NARETRFFEZ ZEMET - ZEETEeER
subject to change based on market conditions. TR mAREE -

The balances of the net proceeds were deposited in banking FIERIERENHBETFTALRITERE - AR
account. The Company has utilized and will utilize the net proceeds & B & B ¥ i A A 5 HR2013E11 H228 %

pursuant to the purposes and the proportions as disclosed in the &) IE AR E 2 P38 A9 77 =\ A0 LE 04 B P
prospectus of the Company dated 22 November 2013. ERIEHEE -

Corporate Governance
Report

Financial

EHREREERERAT —B-_FFR 21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN @

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

By taking a conservative financial management attitude, the Group
continued to maintain a healthy financial position.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s aggregate amount of bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits
reached approximately RMB1,349.2 million (2021: approximately
RMB1,233.6 million), of which approximately RMB728.4 million
(2021: approximately RMB767.1 million) was denominated in RMB,
representing approximately 54.0%, and approximately RMB620.8
million (2021: approximately RMB466.5 million) was denominated
in USD and HKD, etc., representing approximately 46.0%.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no financial assets at
FVTPL (2021: approximately RMB180.2 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB44.8 million (2021: Nil). All the
bank borrowings are unsecured and repayable within one year. The
carrying amounts are denominated in HKD.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables was
approximately RMB340.3 million (2021: approximately RMB342.3
million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total current assets
amounted to approximately RMB1,819.0 million (2021:
approximately RMB1,785.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 1.9% compared to that of the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 2.6 (2021: approximately 3.2), while its quick ratio
was approximately 2.1 (2021: approximately 2.6), representing a
high liquidity.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio (the gearing
ratio is equivalent to total liabilities divided by total assets as at the
end of the year) was approximately 26.4% (2021: approximately
23.0%).

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

In terms of currency exposure, the Group’s sales were mainly
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD while the operating expenses
and purchases were mainly denominated in RMB with certain
portions in USD and HKD. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the fluctuation of foreign currency rates.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’'s capital
expenditure was approximately RMB67.0 million (2021:
approximately RMB81.7 million). The capital expenditure represents
the expenses incurred in purchasing fixed assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The aggregate capital commitment of the Group as at 31
December 2022 was approximately RMB24.0 million (2021:
approximately RMB33.0 million).

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of approximately
RMB227.0 million (2021: approximately RMB219.2 million) were
pledged to secure the bills payables and bank guarantee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENW RSN @

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investments for the year ended 31
December 2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group has no future plans for material investment or capital
assets during 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

In February 2021, two external professional firms were appointed
by the court to act as the liquidation administrators of Sichuan
Zhongruan Technology Ltd. (“SCZR"), which is the associate of
the Group, pursuant to the court order ((2020))!|01048%45% 2 F
Z£). The operation and management of SCZR during the period
of bankruptcy and liquidation is undertaken by the bankruptcy
administrator. On 24 November 2021, the court declared the
bankruptcy of SCZR. In June 2022, the bankruptcy administrator
announced the distribution plan of SCZR’s remaining assets, but
the liquidation process was still in progress at the end of the
year 2022. Therefore, according to HKAS28R (“Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures”), the Group has reclassified the
equity investment of SCZR from the interest in an associate to
FVTPL as the Group has lost significant influence over SCZR. The
Group has reviewed and estimated the fair value of SCZR on a
regular basis under the requirement of HKFRS9.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEN LD @&

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF BBE - HE&EsELO FH%%
SECURITIES

Corporate
Information
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company purchased REZE2022F 12831812 FE - AR A
5,114,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange #HFHFBH A ST A& 5H497,899,000/%
at an aggregate price of approximately HKD7,899,000 (equivalent ¥ (37 & A K ¥ 496,867,00070) BB AR
to approximately RMB6,867,000). The shares were acquired at  @]5,114,000f8 L@ - FIRAZ B BB ED
an average price of HKD1.54 per share, with prices ranging from #1287t B 1 65T 2/ FHER
HKD1.28 to HKD1.65. All the shares purchased were cancelled in S B#& A& 15470 - & R2022F118 2
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The details of the purchase of shares are as follows: RRp O EESFEMT égf
Aggregate S
Highest Lowest consideration T
Number price price paid &
of shares per share per share (HKD) g_ﬁ
purchased (HKD) (HKD) &5t £ g
Month i SRESEX SREEER EXNHE 52
B & R EE (B®) (B (B¥) §
July 2022 202247 R 916,000 1.65 1.59 1,494,305.16 5
August 2022 202248 A 2,208,000 1.65 1.54 3,573,463.49 i
September 2022 2022499 A 1,206,000 1.53 1.45 1,810,618.48 i
October 2022 2022 10AH 784,000 1.30 1.28 1,021,005.89 i
Total &%t 5,114,000 7,899,393.02

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its B Fit #5E4N - AT R EMN B A 57
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's (R#HEEE « L&k iE R (ERAQ T EGD
listed securities during the year. °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN @

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high levels of
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group's environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
management team had managed, monitored, recommended and
reported on environmental and social aspects. An ESG report is
prepared with reference to Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) (Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide) and will be published on the Company’s and the
Stock Exchange's websites.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including anti-corruption, health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment in all
material aspects during the period ended 31 December 2022. The
Group encourages its employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees. The
Group also enhances cooperation with its suppliers to jointly foster
a fair business environment, and provides high quality products
and services to its customers so as to ensure continued and
sustainable development.

26 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 1,583 employees (as
at 31 December 2021: 1,624), with a decrease of 41 employees
as compared to that as at 31 December 2021. Total employee
benefits expenses including Directors’ emoluments, for the year
ended 31 December 2022, amounted to approximately RMB250.9
million (for the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately
RMB216.3 million).

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important
assets. In addition to offering competitive remuneration and
welfare packages, the Group is also committed to providing
specialized and challenging career development and training
programs. Generally, a salary review is conducted annually.
The Group also adopted the Pre-IPO share option scheme, the
share option scheme and the share award scheme to motivate
prospective employees. Apart from basic remuneration, for
employees in the Chinese mainland, the Group makes contributions
towards employee mandatory social security funds, pensions,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and medical and
unemployment insurance in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations of the Chinese mainland. The Group also provides
full coverage of housing provident fund contributions as required
by applicable local laws and regulations in the Chinese mainland.
For employees in Hong Kong and other countries, the Group also
makes contributions towards relevant insurance schemes, pension
schemes and provident fund as required by applicable local laws
and regulations.

The Group emphasises on employee performance and
development, and is committed to enhancing their knowledge and
skills. The Group provides comprehensive internal and external
trainings, such as compulsory orientation, job skills training,
improvement training, information security training, compliance
and legal training, business etiquette training and etc.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS

EENRGREERE @)

=S

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including six executive ZTEHEe@RHNBEEMHK BIENBHITE
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The = W =ZZBIIHEHTEE - UTEBRAL
following table sets forth certain information relating to the ZE=15W :

Position in the Group

SER®

Directors:

Name Age
H A FiR
Executive Directors

BITES

LU Run Ting 68
EEE

HOU Ping 62
& F

LU Runyi 65
E A

WU Sigiang 50
REB®

LING Wai Lim 36
& B AR

LI Yijin 52
F 5

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

MAK Wing Sum Alvin 70
KR
YE Lu 60
® %
LAl Tung Kwok 71
RIRE

Chairman & Executive Director

FREATES

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

BITEERERNTE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President

HITEERaREIBER

Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer

HITEENERELE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President

HITEERSREIBER

Executive Director & Chief Audit Executive & Company
Secretary

WITEE B RRAGIWE

Independent Non-executive Director
BMYIFRITES
Independent Non-executive Director
BMIFMITES
Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFATES
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSHAEEE @)

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (BRI &), aged 68, is the chairman of the Board
(“Chairman”) and an executive Director, and the founder of the
Group. He was first appointed as Director on 10 December 2004
and was designated as an executive Director with effect from
15 November 2013. Chairman LU is primarily responsible for the
overall strategic planning and overseeing the general management
of the Group. He has over 30 years of experience in financial card
industry and was honored as the finalist award of CNBC Asia
Business Leaders Award in October 2015. Chairman LU has been
the Chairman of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries,
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited
(formerly named as “Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited”) since
2011 and also has been the director of Goldpac Fintech Private
Limited (formerly named as “Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private
Limited), the Company’s subsidiary, from 2016 to July 2018,
and has been the director of Goldpac Investment Limited, the
Company’s subsidiary, since 2016, and has been the director of
Goldpac Innovation Limited, the Company’s subsidiary, since 2018,
and has been the director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited
Company and UMV International Holding Limited, the Company’s
subsidiaries, from 2020.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman
LU wholly owns the entire issued share capital of Goldpac
International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL"), the Company’s
controlling shareholder and is a director of GIHL since 1993.
Chairman LU also served as various management positions at the
subsidiaries of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China prior
to the establishment of GIHL in 1993. He currently also serves as
the chairman of GIHL. Chairman LU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in November 2004. Chairman LU had not been a director of any
other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.

The ordinary shares of GIHL are 100% directly held by Golden
Wellness Investment Limited, which is wholly owned by Golden
Lake Investment Limited (“GLIL"). GLIL is wholly owned by a
family trust, the trustee of which is Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman)
Limited, established by Chairman LU as the founder for the benefit
of his family members (including Mr LING Wai Lim, an executive
Director). Chairman LU (i) is the elder brother of Mr. LU Runyi, an
executive Director and a senior vice president of the Company, and
(i) is the father of Mr. LING Wai Lim, an executive Director.

30 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. HOU Ping ({8 ¥), aged 62, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2011. He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August
2011, and was designated as an executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 years of
experience in the banking industry, including approximately 25
years of experience in the card industry. He has been a Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company since 2011. He has
also served as a director of Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company
Limited and Goldpac Limited respectively, since 2011. He has
also served as a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company,
including as a director of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited since
2016, and a director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited
(Henggin), SecureTech Holdings Limited and Goldpac Fintech
Hong Kong Limited, the Company’s subsidiaries, since 2018, a
director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company and UMV
Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since 2020, and also a director of
Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (through
the VIE Agreements, Zhirong Financial Services has been an
indirect subsidiary of the Company as 100% of its equity interest is
attributed to the Company indirectly) since 2021.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to
Huaxia Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre
from 2006 to 2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of
China group and subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited since 1999, including as deputy general manager of BOC
Credit Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to
2004. Mr. HOU received a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong Baptist University in December 2003.
Saved as disclosed herein, Mr. HOU had not been a director of any
other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSHAEEE @)

Mr. LU Runyi (E814), aged 65, is an executive Director and a
senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director in December 2004, and
was designated as an executive Director with effect from November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the sales
department of the Group. Mr. LU Runyi, has almost 30 years of
experience in the security payment industry. He has been a senior
vice president of the Group since 2004 and has been the director
of GIHL from June 2006 to March 2021, and has been director of
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited
respectively since 2011, and has served as a director of Goldpac
Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018, and has also
served as a director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company
since 2020. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Chairman LU, and is the
uncle of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is an executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. WU Sigiang (R B 3&), aged 50, is an executive Director
and the chief operating officer of the Company, and joined the
Group in 2001. Mr. WU is primarily responsible for the overall
operation of the Group, he was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 18 May 2017, and has more than 20
years of experience in the security payment industry. Mr. Wu
was a manager of the production division, vice general manager
of the operation division, general manager of the production
management division of Goldpac Limited from 2001 to 2011
successively, and has been the chief operating officer of
Goldpac Limited since 2011. Mr. WU served as a manager of the
procurement division of Goldpac Limited from 2004 to January
2021, and has been the general manager and legal representative
since February 2021. Mr. WU has also served as a director of
Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018. Mr. WU
had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong Mechanics University
(E M 2T ) (now part of Guangdong University of Technology
(BRI % AZ)) with a Bachelor of Mechatronics degree in July
1993.

32 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LING Wai Lim (E & B) (formerly known as Mr. Wai Lim
(B BE) and Mr. LING Wai Lim (% g\ B&) ), aged 36, joined the
Company as non-executive Director on 18 May 2017. He was
designated as an executive Director with effect from 15 March
2019 and was appointed as senior vice president of the Company
upon the effective date of 22 January 2021. Mr. LING has also
served as a director of six subsidiaries of the Company, including
as a director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin)
since 2018, a director of UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since
2020 and also a director of Zhirong Financial Services Technology
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. since 2021, a director of Goldpac Fintech Hong
Kong Limited since 6 July 2022, a director of SecureTech Holdings
Limited since 22 July 2022, and a director of Goldpac Fintech
Private Limited since 27 November 2022. Mr. LING has over 10
years of experience in biomedical research and research project
management. Mr. LING served as a project analyst, a project
manager and the senior scientific advisor, respectively, of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (Stock Code: 8158), a
company listed on GEM operated by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, from June 2015 to December 2018. Mr. LING served
as a research assistant of The University of Hong Kong, Department
of Paediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, from December 2010 to
May 2012. Mr. LING had not been a Director of any other listed
Companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LING received the Bachelor of Science (Biotechnology) from
the University of Hong Kong in 2008, the Master of Philosophy in
Microbiology from the University of Hong Kong in 2010, and also
the Doctor of Philosophy in Immunology from The University of
Hong Kong in 2015.

Mr. LING is the son of Chairman LU. He is also the nephew
of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director and senior vice
president of the Company.

EERSREEE @)

EREREEE (FIEHRBHERIRIER
BEl) » 36%% » 20175 H18H M A R &£
B EZTRIENTESE - HN201953
R1SEHAETABITES » WR2021F1 A
NEEZEARARA A RE -E L
ENMETARRAZMNEARMNES 7
2018 FBEFLHBERERE (BE)BR
NREE  H2020F BIET B E /BT
(RB)BRRAIES  MBE2021F BIEF
EReREHE (KB BARAFNES - 7
2022F7F6 BRI S B ETRBBEES
ERAGKNES  H2022F7A22HE
fESecureTech Holdings Limitedf) & = » Ji
2022911 A27H 88 FGoldpac Fintech
Private Limited® & F - ELXAELYEE
WRFEIER EE A EEABBI0FEN
KB o B A RR2015968 £20184F12 8
REARAREBABEEBERAA (—R
REBBEXSMBRAAEIZER LMY
NAE RS - 8158) - B RIE(LE
BoOMA BEKEMEFREER - &E
S ER2010F 128 Z2012F5 82X &%
AREGREELTFELRPRYIE - EL
ERBEZFREETHEMFT SRS E
MARIMES -

EREN2008FHBEBERENERLY
BB+ 24 - R2010FBEHE KB
EMBHBET B WHR2015FBEE
BRBRRBB LB -

ERETEEREZT  MRARRZHIT
EERERBERHEBREEZET -

SHEAEZLERERAT —T--FERK 33

Corporate
Information

Financial

2022
Major Events

»
c
©
€

T

<
|9

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Corporate Governance Report of

Financial

Highlights

=
c
@
£
9]
2z
©
3
)

and /

Management

Directors

BEEgWmE

Report

REER

2022 KE5

R

FREPRLE
[E ¥

REERE

ERLE




DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

%%&H &HrEEJE (#&)

Ms. LI Yijin (Z 8 #), aged 52, is an executive Director, the
chief audit executive of the Company and company secretary,
and joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed as an executive
Director with effective from 18 May 2020. She has nearly 30 years
of experience in the accounting, auditing and financial reporting
matters. Ms. LI was the financial controller of the Company from
2004 to 2012, and has been appointed as a director of Sichuan
Zhongruan Technology Ltd. (“SZCR") since 2011, and was the
chief financial officer of the Company from 2012 to April 2019,
and has been designated as the chief audit executive of the
Company since May 2019. Ms. LI has also served as supervisors
of three subsidiaries of the Company, supervisors of Goldpac
Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company and UMV Technology Limited
(Zhuhai) since 2020, and a supervisor of Zhirong Financial Services
Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. since 2021.

Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
in November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA (Certified
Public Accountants) Australia since October 2004, a Fellow of CPA
Australia (FCPA) since May 2020, and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms. LI had not been
a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas
in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Z k&) (also known as Mr. MAK
Wing Sum), aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director.
He joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. MAK
is currently an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Technology Venture Company Limited (formerly known as Hong
Kong Television Network Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (Stock Code: 590), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1125) and Crystal International Group Limited (Stock Code:
2232). He was also an independent non-executive director of I.T.
Limited (Stock Code: 999) from 31 March, 2012 to December 2,
2019. Mr. Mak is a member of Hong Kong Housing Society, and
is currently a member of its Supervisory Board, Human Resource
and several other committees. Mr. MAK, after working in Citibank
for over 26 years, went into his retirement in April 2012. Whilst
at Citibank, he has held various senior positions, managing the
regional global asset management business and financial control
for North Asia, he last served as the Head of Markets and Banking
for Citibank Hong Kong.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been
a Chartered Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since September 1979, a Chartered Professional
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
since November 2012 and currently also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as disclosed
herein, Mr. MAK had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSHAEEE @)

Ms. YE Lu (E ), aged 60, is an independent non-executive
Director. She joined the Group on 18 May 2017 when she was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Ms. YE Lu has more than 30 years of experience in cross border
commercial dispute resolution. Ms. YE joined King & Wood
Mallesons in 2004, and is currently a partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Ms. YE was a member the Council of Singapore Court
of International Arbitration and a member of the Council of the
London Court of International Arbitration. She is currently a
director of the Council of the Singapore Court of International
Arbitration, and also an arbitrator of China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission, Hong Kong International
Arbitration Center and Singapore International Arbitration Center.

Ms. YE received the Bachelor of Laws from the Law School of
Peking University in June 1983, and received the Master of Laws
from the Law School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
in June 1986, and also received the Master of Laws from the
Harvard Law School in June 1994. Ms. YE is qualified as a lawyer
in the People's Republic of China and has passed New York State
Bar Exam. Ms. YE had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LAl Tung Kwok (% E ), aged 71, joined the Company
as independent non-executive Director on 17 May 2022. He was
awarded GBS (Golden Bauhinia Star), SBS (Silver Bauhinia Star),
IDSM (Immigration Distinguished Service Medals), JP (Justice of the
Peace), former Secretary for Security of Hong Kong, the Executive
Vice Chairman of the New People’s Party.

Mr. LAl joined the Immigration Department as Assistant Immigration
Officer in 1973. He was appointed by the Central People’s
Government as Director of Immigration from 2002 to 2008, by the
Chief Executive as Under Secretary of Security of Hong Kong from
2009 to 2012 and by the Central People’s Government as Secretary
of Security of Hong Kong from 2012 to 2017. Mr. LAl has been the
executive Vice Chairman of the New People’s Party since 2018 and
has been a Legislative Council member (Election Committee) of the
HKSAR since 1 January 2022.

Mr. LAl Tung Kwok received Bachelor of Laws (Honours) from
University of London (External) in 1989. Mr. LAl had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT =SREEE
Name Gender Age Position

i 3] F iR B3

LI Yingjie Male 40 Chief Financial Officer
) e 1 ES BREMBE

LI Yijin Female 52 Chief Audit Executive
5 o8 Eif R

Mr. LI Yingjie (RIFE#£E), aged 40, is the chief financial officer
of the Company, and joined the Group in 2014. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the accounting and finance
departments of the Group. Mr. LI has more than 15 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. He was the director of
internal audit of the Company from September 2014 to April
2019, and has served as the chief financial officer of the Company
since May 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI worked as the manager of
internal audit in Galaxy Entertainment Group (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 0027.HK) from 2010 to 2014,
and acted as senior auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
2005 to 2010. He graduated from Sun Yat-sen University and
received a bachelor of arts in 2005. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. LI had not
been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Ms. LI Yijin (Z253#), aged 52, is the chief audit executive of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
internal control matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior

Management — Executive Directors” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.

38 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022

FEFRLEE 405 AR ERUBE -
R2014F IIAREER -t FEZEHEEEAR
EERNS MBI - ML ERGETM
BT ERMEABBISTFRNLR - thE2014
FORE2019F4 A EEA R R M N EBEET
MWE . W E2019F5ARETARE HE
MBE -

RIIAREER - FISEEKR2010F £2014
FRETRIREEBEBERAF (—RR
XA EmE AT - IR RS - 0027.HK)
MEPEE AT B PI4CIE - WA 20054F £20104F
MEEEHEER S SETRMIT=RETA
H2005F 2N ILKRE  BEXEE L2
feFEERBFHFARSHMATERS
B oFlAEENBE-ZEFXDETHMES
FEBINETARINES -

FHELZL 525 RARAFNR R
2001 F MMAKRKE  BEAEBOAES
7o

FHFRtHWEREFBEHE2HLXIES
RERERERE —TESE K-



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z53#), aged 52, is the company secretary of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Executive Directors” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information on Directors are as follows:

1. Mr. YANG Geng retired as the independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 May 2022, and Mr. LAl Tung
Kwok has been appointed as the independent non-executive
Director of the Company with the effect from the same date.

2. Mr. LING Wai Lim has newly been appointed as directors
of three indirect subsidiaries of the Company, a director of
Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited since 6 July 2022, a
director of SecureTech Holdings Limited since 22 July 2022,
and a director of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited since 27
November 2022.

Save as disclosed in the disclosure above, during the year and up
to the date of this report, there is no other change in information
of Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group (or we) prepared and released the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG") Report 2022 (“Report”), which is
in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and is
based on the Group’s actual conditions. The Report presents the
Group’s environmental and social policies, strategies, practices
and performance in 2022. For more information on corporate
governance, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” of
the annual report.

Reporting Period and Scope

This Report supplements the remaining parts of the Group’s annual
report and discloses performance and progress on sustainable
development from 1 January to 31 December 2022. The scope of
this Report covers the Company and its major subsidiaries. The
information stated in this Report was obtained from the Group's
various reports and records of daily operations.

Reporting Principles

Materiality: We conduct stakeholder communication and materiality
assessments annually to identify significant environmental,
social and governance issues. For more details, please refer to
“Stakeholder Communication and Engagement” and “ Materiality
Assessment” sections.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and source of
conversion factors used in calculating the data are disclosed in due
course.

Consistency: This report has been prepared in a consistent manner
with previous years in order to enhance coherence and provide
a meaningful comparison with previous years’ performance.
Appropriate disclosure and explanation will be provided for any
changes in methodologies.
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Feedback

The Group considers sustainable development as its imperative
long-term goal. We would highly appreciate any comments on
improving the content and information delivery of this Report. If
you have any queries or suggestions, please feel free to contact us.

Contacts
Goldpac Group Limited

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor,
Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre,
No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2838 6202
Fax: (852) 2834 6759
Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

As a global leader in offering smart secure payment total
solutions, the Group upholds the mission of “Making Transactions
More Secure and Convenient” and the vision of “Becoming a
Trustworthy Provider for Fintech Products and Services” to deliver
quality products and services for customers across the world.

The Board of the Group understands the importance of sustainable
development for the community and the Group itself, actively
integrates ESG factors into important business decisions and is
committed to being a responsible leader in the industry. The Board
is ultimately responsible for the Group’s ESG issues and the Board
acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the Report
and to the best of its knowledge that this Report addresses all
material issues and fairly presents the Group’s ESG performance.
The Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved this Report.

We are the only secure payment solution provider in China to hold
simultaneous certifications by China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard,
American Express, JCB and Diners. Ensuring product quality and
customer data security are defined as our top priorities. At the
same time, we endeavour to explore and investigate suitable
corporate operational processes to cohere with the Group’s
sustainability development pattern. In 2022, the Group successfully
obtained SA8000 certification for its social responsibility
management system and was awarded the “2022 CLS-ESG ZhiYuan
Award — Social (S) Pioneer Enterprise Award” for its outstanding
practical achievements in the areas of sustainable development,
fintech digital strategy, industry contribution, environmental
protection, social care and employee development. In addition
to the exploration and application of frontier technologies, we
continue to practice ESG concepts and actively fulfill our social
responsibility and achieve high-quality corporate development.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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The Group is committed to integrating its businesses with the A&EBE-—HHMHBEKEBENT 1R
development of environment and society, pursuing a sustainable ZEREMEES HEHAEEERAIFELERE
development. We have established an effective ESG governance HIEES o HIMEY T A MMESGE A5 ¢
structure: The Board is responsible for making decisions on ESG #E € 8 SESGE IR T4 RS0 77 E Ak
management policies and strategies, assessing and identifying % 5714 R RESGHEERA G - EEE A H
ESG-related risks, overseeing the implementation of related EEWEMIE N RESGREGZH : & 123
matters and the approval of ESG reports; Management and FEEERXEBSREESGEER F 4T
management representative are responsible for formulating tBRAESGE i WA FEBRE iE T 1E
ESG-related measures in accordance with ESG management #REFKEE: S8 TE2ESGILIENE
policies, and reporting implementation progress and feedback; % - BESGIE X EINHE IT(EHh - g
employees of all departments are the practitioners of ESG works, BEER @ BBEMBAEIL CEHL ANE
who implement ESG measures into their daily practice. During JREB « 1T E - TI2EE % PR & B9 1%
the year, we continued to promote the collection and reporting = HPIFEHERESNMEERBTEEY
of environmental and social performance information through WEMERITIE: E|E L2 NS HE
collaboration among various departments, e.g. internal control EIEIT{E X B HBLREESEIER

department, corporate business management department, human

resource department, administration department, engineering

department and etc. Staff at all levels fully cooperated with
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In order to manage sustainable development better, we
continuously communicate with stakeholders, assess and prioritise
the identified ESG issues based on their materiality, and set up
key goals and work plans. For goals and measures, please refer to
“Environmental Management” section.

The Board oversees the overall management of Group’s risks,
continually overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal
control system and reviewing their effectiveness through Audit
Committee. The Group has in place a risk management framework,
which enables the Group to adopt a proactive and systematic
approach to identify and manage risks (including ESG-related risks)
as well as to evaluate risk severity and likelihood of occurrence.

To achieve environmental sustainability, the Group complies with
all related environmental laws, regulations (Appendix 1) and
standards. Starting from the energy saving, emission reduction
and waste management as key aspects, we established a series of
internal procedures and systems to help our employees properly
handle the wastes generated in the operation process. As a result,
we are able to enhance operation efficiency, reduce the negative
impact on the environment, and fully shoulder the responsibility of
environmental protection.

The Group not only abides by relevant laws and regulations
relating to employment and safety (Appendix 1), but also pays
considerable attention to employee welfare and safety, and at
the same time it devotes itself to a well-established management
and training system, offering employees a broader development
space in an inclusive, fair, safe, healthy and harmonious work
environment, to realise the talents sustainable development.

Appendix 1 presents the list including but not limited to laws and
regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant impacts on
the Group.

We are grateful to every stakeholder for their support on our
growth and improvement. In order to lay a solid foundation
for the success of our sustainable development, we have made
great efforts to understand opinions suggested by stakeholders,
e.g. investors, customers, suppliers, employees, community,
government. We have established multiple communication
channels for stakeholders to deliver their comments on our ESG
performance and future policies to us.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Stakeholders Areas of concern Communication and engagement channels oS,
RS AEBAT BixEE BERSHERE g@
. | 524
Investors e Financial performance e Annual general meeting =
e Business strategies e Regular disclosure on financial and operational
Operation in conformance of laws and information
regulations and corporate governance e Investor relations management
e Sustainable development and risk control e The Group’s website
REE o MIBRE N o
o XIEHm s THIRBEMBERERELER v Ex
s AMKEEMEER s REHMERER S5k
s MHEBRERARERE o REEB 38

Customers e Product and service quality e Customer service specialist C E41
e Client information security e Customer satisfaction survey S Lo
Business ethics e The Group's website 55t
e Social media, e.g. WeChat official account o
EF ERRBBER - ZERBEE 5
EEEER2 - ZEREERE :
BRR T o AZEMY
o HMRIEE WMMEEFARR 5
Suppliers e Fair competition and dealing e Supplier site visit : i
Mutual benefit and long-term cooperation e Regular assessments =
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We believe that proactive two-way communications with
stakeholders will help formulate business strategies better
conforming to their expectations and requirements, improve
the ability of risk forecast, strengthen crucial relationships, and
finally realise sustainable development in economies, society and
environment together.

Materiality Assessment

We identified 26 ESG issues with reference to industry-related laws
and regulations, the important topics identified by global industry
peers, the business scope of the Group, ESG risks identified,
macro policies and hot topics. Questionnaires and interviews
were conducted to understand the views of management and
stakeholders on these issues, and to assess the materiality of
these issues. The results serve as an important basis for the
preparation of this Report and the promotion of future sustainable
development efforts. The assessment result has been reviewed and
approved by the Board.
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Materiality Assessment
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Environment Protection BiE {7 &

1.

Usage and recycling of materials

YRR (E A R B B R A B R

Energy consumption and saving measures
BEIRE#E K Bh B HE i
Usage of water resources and saving measures

IKERBE R M EIKIE b

Greenhouse gas emissions and reduction measures
B R BE HE h SR HE R BE

Wastes and their disposal

BEEMNELENREE

Air pollutant emissions and reduction measures

B R BRI NOR B 45 1

Employee Policy 8 TH ¥

12.

Operation Management E %

18.

20.

21.

Talent management policies and status

AT EBBE KRB

Protection of employees occupational health and
safety

REEREBRERFEHRRZ S

Employee development and training

BB #HEEE
BB

Guarantee the quality of products and services

REERMRBEE

Protection of information security

REFERE

Customer complaints dealing with and customer
satisfaction improvement

BREEFPERFREAZFPMEE

Protection of intellectual properties and research
outcomes

R o R 8L E R M BT TR AR

Community Contribution & &

26.

Community engagement
%:I: 2] / /\

10.

11.

15.

16.

17.

22.

23.

24,

25,
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Wasted water discharge and reduction measures

FE 7K BERR OB BESE e

R&D on clean technologies and green products

BRI B AR € fn ) T 7T L 3

Compliance with environmental laws and
regulations

BTRBEAREARBNR

Protection of biodiversity

REEMZ M

Concerns and responds for climate change

BT M EE RIRE (L

Internal communications

Dg/ﬁ |ﬁ /E:

Anti-Child and Anti-Forced labour
RET k&5 T

Compliance with laws and regulations of
protection of labour rights and interests

BT IRBREEFERBEN

Compliance with industry-specific laws and
regulations, and business ethics

BTIRERERNEEER

Supplier status
fH pE B IR R

Supplier policies and management

HERmBR R EE

Anti-Corruption policies and performance

REFEER RKRER
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Looking ahead, we will interact with stakeholders and review
our performance as always. We persist in taking the social and
environmental responsibilities, optimising our sustainability
initiatives and integrating our business with environmental
management and social impact to stimulate business growth.

INFORMATION SECURITY

The Group believes that information security is the primary
prerequisite for creating secure and quality financial technology
services, and we have always attached a strategic importance
on the application of information security technologies and the
protection of information security.

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
and adheres to the protection of information security. The
compliance risk of newly issued laws, regulations and regulatory
requirements is also a key concern. The Group has successfully
passed a number of certifications such as 1SO27001 Information
Security Management System, SAS-UP certification of Global
System for Mobile Communications Association (“GSMA"), the
National Network Security Level Protection Level 3 Certification,
and PCI 3.0 Annual Audit of global Payment Card Industry
organisation and global credit card organisations. Meanwhile,
the Information Security Management System Manual and its
subordinate documents were issued to all the staffs within
the Group, in order to comprehensively define the security
management structure and information security objectives and
planning, and specify the specific security requirements for
information processing.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Based on the nature of technological innovation in the Group,
we have continuously increased our investment in digital
transformation and platform building, proactively using information
technologies to identify and control risks with a comprehensive
upgrade of the information security system software and
hardware. After the Group was granted by the certification of 1SO/
IEC20000 Information Technology Service Management System
in 2020, we has certificated by CMMI Level 5 — Optimisation
Level, the highest level internationally used to evaluate the
maturity of an enterprise’s software development capabilities
in 2021. And in 2022, the Group successfully passed the ITSS
(Information Technology Service Standards) Information Technology
Operation and Maintenance Service Capability Maturity Level 3
certification, which represents the effort we make to maintain an
industry-leading level in the construction of standardised IT service
systems and our ability in innovation and change, and we have
also stepped up to a next level in our Operation & Maintenance
service process management capability. The development of
Internet technologies increases the risk of hacking attacks,
which are continuous and constantly changing. The Group’s top
management has authorised the Information Security Management
Group to formulate information security policies, taking into
account the internal and external circumstances of the Group.
We consistently adhere to the information security policy of “full
participation, prevention-oriented, risk control and continuous
improvement”, doing a comprehensive job in all-oriented
information security control and data protection, and continues to
maintain the 'double-zero’ standard which indicates zero incidents
and zero complaints. We are committed to providing a safer, more
convenient and more accurate services to our customers.
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The Group emphasises the risk awareness in information
security among its internal staff, based on the management of
employees with “integrity” as the primary element of its corporate
culture and values, and prevent security issues through efficient
implementation of security systems and comprehensive internal
oversight checks. The Group permeates the management of
information security in all aspects of its operations. Through
safety awareness training, all staff to be equipped with risk
awareness, actively participate in the safety management process,
and assume the corresponding safety responsibilities. When
signing employment contracts, employees are required to sign
a Non-Disclosure Agreement. We also insist on doing annual
information security training for all staff and quarterly information
security training for professional information security positions
to improve staff’s risk awareness, and continuously optimise the
security system through risk assessment. In daily work, the Group
continuously enhances the security awareness of employees. The
Group forbids any employees to send information to unauthorised
colleagues or outsiders, or duplicate any confidential information
and/or sensitive information.

Apart from educating and popularising information security
management within the Group, the Group also assist local
community to promote anti-fraud training to raise public awareness
of the need to protect sensitive information. We are also subject
to security checks by industry regulators, card organisations,
customers and professional bodies at all times. We successfully
passed the annual certification audit and flight inspection of China
UnionPay, as well as the industry management on-site audit and
regulatory assessment of over 200 customers, which again ensured
the reliability of our services and achieved high standards of
security management.

For independent intellectual property, the Group has developed
Intellectual Property Management Manual and other relevant
procedures to clarify intellectual property management principles
and objectives, and standardise the management of existing
information assets and intellectual property rights. The Group
identifies, obtains and updates applicable intellectual property
legal information and other requirements in a timely manner and
communicates them to employees. We will be mindful of suppliers’
relevant intellectual property information when purchasing to avoid
the purchase of infringing products. Intellectual property rights
in R&D activities will be tracked and monitored to timely adjust
R&D strategies and contents, make reasonable use of intellectual
property rights of others, and avoid infringement risks. We also
monitor our intellectual property rights in the product market,
timely track and investigate if our intellectual property rights are
infringed, and actively take measures to protect our rights. The
Group successfully renewed the Intellectual Property Management
System Certification in 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Our commitment to upholding the highest level of business ethics
and integrity connects to what we do and we believe, and that it
is our competitive advantage.

Product and Service Quality

Following the quality policy “All for better meeting customer
requirements, exceeding customer expectations and improving
customer satisfaction!”, the Group pursues to achieve operational
excellence in line with the value of “Customer-oriented”. Guided
by such policy, the Group has established a quality management
system supported by a set of policy documents, e.g. Quality
Manual for Payment Products, Quality Manual for Data Processing
Services and subordinate documents. The Group has successfully
renewed the 1SO9001 Quality Management System Certificate.
With the joint efforts of all departments, our products and
services are subject to strict safety standards and comply with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations. The Group has been
granted certifications by the six global credit card organisations.

Regarding product quality, we have established quality
management department, which is in charge of carrying out
quality check during the operating process for raw materials,
goods in progress and finished goods, in accordance with quality
management system and industry requirements. Unqualified
products will be analysed and reviewed, adjusted, improved,
re-manufactured or even disposed according to the Unqualified
Products Control Procedure. If the products need to be recalled,
we will arrange the logistics provider to pick up and return the
products, and quality management department will be responsible
for the return inspection of the products. Those products will
be adjusted, improved or re-manufactured based on the specific
situations, and then re-deliver to customers. In 2022, there was no
occurrence of any recall of the Group’s products sold or delivered
due to safety and health concerns.
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In terms of customer service, we dedicate in offering high quality
services to our customers. For each customer, the sales staff will
design a tailored sales strategy and a customer service person will
be designated to follow up after-sale issues. Both our product
quality and services and communication have received a high
appraisal from customers. Our Customer Complaint Management
Procedure defines the measures and procedures in dealing with
customer complaints, by which we effectively enhance our internal
management, assist customers to solve problems and continuously
improve customer satisfaction according to customer suggestions.
We also built a special team to record, internally coordinate and
summarise customer complaints for future reference. In 2022, the
Group received 47 complaints (36 cases in 2021), mainly related
to delivery delays due to the impact of the epidemic on the supply
chain, card appearance defect (ink spots, scratches) and quality
of supplier products. After receiving customer complaints, we put
them on record, verified the contents of customer complaints,
informed relevant departments to investigate, worked out solutions
and fed back to customers. We followed up customers’ opinions
after implementing the solutions. For customer complaints received
during the year, we provided feedback to customers within two
working days, and most of the complaints were closed in the same
month or the following month. During the year, we do not find
any cases about privacy leak or significant accidents that have
material effects on the Group in terms of product quality and
services.
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In the first half of 2022, an epidemic closure occurred in Tianjin
and Shanghai, and the Tianjin Data Processing Centre and
Shanghai Data Processing Centre were forced to cease operations.
In order to ensure the daily operation of data processing services
for our customers, the Group generated workflows closely together
to deploy and switch the data processing to the base in Zhuhai’s
production in a well-organised manner. The progress of issuance
and mailing work for our customers were highly guaranteed, which
was praised and affirmed by our customers and highlights the
significant effectiveness of the three-location disaster responding
mechanism. The Group has always aimed to deliver a professional,
all-round and multi-dimensional service quality to our customers
and play the role as a trusted supplier of financial technology
products and services to provide a safer, more comprehensive and
more intimate financial technology services.

-

)

Client Appreciation Letter

EPEHE

The Group also adheres to business ethics in advertising and
marketing. All product brochures we provide are reviewed to
ensure the completeness and accuracy of information. Product
design and use of product logo are strictly in accordance with
the requirements of credit card organisations. In 2022, the Group
is not aware of any material breaches of laws and regulations
relating to privacy, health and safety, advertising, labelling and the
products and services provided.
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The Group has been upholding the core values of “virtue,
innovation, efficiency and cooperation”, keeping pace with market
development and customer needs, and continuously strengthening
technological innovation to forge superior quality. We continue
to promote the innovative development of payment diversification
and accelerate our digitalisation and platform development
strategy to build an innovative ecosystem of secure payment
value chain. The Group not only launched its independent and
controllable embedded software and products to satisfy the needs
of the Chinese market, but also launched embedded software and
secure payment products that meet the technical specifications
required by overseas markets and meet the diverse needs of each
country through localized development.

The “Pudong Development Yangtze River Delta Card — Shopping
Theme Edition”, launched by the Group in collaboration
with Pudong Development Bank, has won the 2022 CGD
Contemporary Good Design Award attributed to its innovative
design, highlighting innovative warming technology and a perfect
combination of design quality and unique humanistic care, among
many entries from around the world. Contemporary Good Design
(CGD) is an international design award organised by the German
Red Dot Award, one of the most authoritative industrial design
awards in the world. This award is regarded as recognition of our
innovative capabilities in product design and also demonstrates our
determination of continuing to improve our design and technical
capabilities. We also attach great importance to the social and
cultural values behind our products. The Group insists on the
integration of product design and aesthetic technology, pursuing
excellence in card materials, card appearance design and innovative
empowerment, and has launched a number of personalised and
customised financial payment products that combine high value
and high technology.

Pl

2022 CGD Contemporary Good Design Award
L2022 CGDE L 47 R 7158
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group has entered into a strategic cooperation with HUIYEE
in the areas of transportation, financial services and product
innovation, and jointly launched the UHO-STAR Transportation
Card, a financial and creative product. The product is based
on Goldpac’'s own IP “UHO-STAR” cartoon image and aims to
provide a more trendy and personalised travel service experience
for the young “Generation Z"” clientele. In terms of practical
functions, cardholders can enjoy public transport in 327 cities at
prefectural level or above, truly realising the concept of “one card
in hand, travel across the country”. Consisting with the concept
of "creating more value for our customers”, the Group actively
builds a new service system of “finance + technology + culture”,
empowering IP culture innovation with financial technology,
and then making IP culture feed the financial industry, providing
financial institutions with “one-stop” innovative marketing
solutions including product design, mobile internet payment,
operation and promotion.

During the year, the Group presented our advanced secure
payment products, UMV platform and portable self-service kiosks
at the 24th China Hi-Tech Fair (“Hi-Tech Fair”), the 14th China
International Aviation and Aerospace Exhibition (“Airshow
China”) and the 2022 China International Fair for Trade in
Services (“CIFTS"), displaying our latest innovations in the field
of financial technology. The Group adheres to technology-driven
financial innovation and uses modern technological achievements
to transform and innovate financial products, business models
and business processes to promote quality and efficiency in
financial development. Based on 5G network as the underlying
communication foundation, we will strengthen the deep
integration of artificial intelligence, big data, cloud computing,
Internet of Things and other emerging disruptive technologies
with financial businesses to promote continuous optimisation and
innovation, thereby providing a constant source of innovative
vitality for financial development.
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During the year, according to Anti-Corruption Programme
- A Guide for Listed Companies released by the Hong Kong
Independent Commission of Corruption, and in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations, the Group established Corruption
Prevention System, firmly stated the Group’s zero-tolerance
of corruption, further ensured the awareness of the roles and
responsibilities of each staff under the anti-corruption programme,
upheld the integrity requirements for directors and staff as well
as the corruption prevention requirements for all stakeholders.
At the same time, the Group also established a Code of Conduct
to set out the basic standard of conduct expected of all directors
and staff, and the Group’s policy on acceptance of advantage and
handling of conflict of interest when dealing with the Group's
business.

The code of conduct to prevent corruption has been set out in
Staff Manual to enhance self-discipline among employees. Our
Anti-Fraud Reporting Management System strictly manages our
businesses with all business partners, including our customers,
suppliers, creditors and debtors. We encourage stakeholders
reporting on any suspected behaviours against policies and protect
the whistleblowers against any punishment due to his/her accurate
report. The whistleblowers’ identities are strictly kept confidential
unless it is necessary for investigation, malicious reporting or
required by relevant laws and regulations. We treat with and
fight against fraud and bribery in any forms such as cash or gifts
seriously.

Whistleblowers can report to the Chairman of the Group’s audit
committee or to the Chairman of the Board. Materials will be
forwarded to the other audit committee members for internal
investigation or to other department for investigations if it is in
line with the best interests of the Group. Meanwhile, we set up a
mailbox for the president to receive reports and comments. Regular
evaluations on our management system ensure the compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations and their effectiveness.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

To prevent misconducts such as corruption, the Group has adopted
a series of preventive measures and methods, such as the adoption
of prior monitoring, checks and balances through segregation of
duties, staff rotation, mandatory leave, review and team strategies;
monitoring through an information-based financial system to
decrease human intervention; conducting due diligence on business
partners and including integrity pledges and corruption prevention
clauses in relevant contracts. The Group conducts training on
business ethics including anti-corruption topics for all staff, such
as special training on anti-corruption systems and legal classes to
promote and popularise relevant legal knowledge and cases among
staff, so as to further strengthen the education on business ethics
for staff. During the year, the Group has one concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices which related to embezzlement
by canteen employees, and the Group has recovered the majority
of the loss. In 2022, the Group complied with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering which had a significant impact on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that effective management on suppliers and
good cooperation with suppliers will help us reduce costs and
cooperation risks, improve the quality of products and services, and
build up an excellent brand. As such, we have developed Supplier
Evaluation and Control Procedures to ensure that all the Group’s
suppliers possess adequate capacity and are able to maintain
suitable and reliable quality.

We also maintain regular communication with suppliers to ensure
that both sides are well prepared to forecast capacity (mainly
monthly and quarterly) and supply. Where feasible, we will prepare
multiple suppliers so that, in addition to maintaining the supply
cost advantage, the Group has standby suppliers. Under this
mechanism, when a supplier is at risk in its supply chain, we can
quickly switch to another supplier to ensure that the product can
be completed on time. The Group maintains 3 or more suppliers for
major materials (financial chips, key base material for cards, etc.)
and smart kiosks. In addition to reasonable prices, environmental
and health considerations are also taken into account in the
procurement review. The Group will sign contracts with suppliers
based on a reasonable account period and payment method, and
suppliers are required to sign an Anti-Corruption Commitment to
emphasise the requirement of honest cooperation between both
sides. At the same time, the Group will cooperate with suppliers to
jointly explore the market, so as to promote long-term cooperation
and achieve win-win results.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBRE @)

During the year, the Group has 195 suppliers, 181 of which are
in the Chinese mainland and 14 in other regions. According to
2022 annual supplier evaluation, 91% of suppliers assessed as
satisfactory (including 54% as of excellent suppliers) and 9% are
in need of continuous communication and improvement. We keep
building healthy relationships with supplies, achieving mutual
benefits and growth.

We track the daily supply and service quality of our suppliers to
form monthly statistics, which serve as an important basis for
the annual review. Meanwhile, we continue to evaluate new
suppliers, which are assessed from different perspectives by
various departments, including application of new technologies,
quality, delivery, cost, environment, safety management and etc..
After each assessment, we issue the corresponding evaluation
reports and update the list of qualified suppliers, so as to provide
reference for screening suppliers.

On the other hand, according to Risk Management Procedures, the
Group regularly conducts supply chain risks assessment, evaluates
the possibility and severity of related environmental and social risk
events, keeps communication with suppliers and formulates and
implements management measures to proactively control related
risks.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Increasing the proportion of eco-friendly products or renewable
materials is the key strategy of the Group's long-term development.
We actively promote green procurement practice, and during
supplier assessment, suppliers are required to ensure that their
products comply with 1SO14001 and HSF (Hazardous Substance
Free), and will not contain the materials that are harmful to the
environment and human body and are prohibited by Chinese
standards and EU RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances).
For products using eco-friendly materials, we will evaluate and
record the supplier's environment-related certifications, including
UL safety certification and Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)
certification for the supplier's products and supply chain. In
the meantime, the Group reviews suppliers regularly to check
whether the relevant production control procedures conducive to
environmental protection are properly managed and implemented,
and continuously introduces biodegradable or recycled raw
materials to improve the sustainability of the products. Moreover,
along with the industry’s acceptance and maturity of eco-friendly
products, we will look for new suppliers and run product testing
in advance to gradually increase the proportion of eco-friendly
products.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Our main principles in environmental sustainability are to
diminish consumption of materials and energy and optimise
waste management, achieving the “energy saving and
emission reduction” goal, and to reduce negative influence on
eco-environment, creating an eco-friendly enterprise.

In addition to seeking business growth by providing high quality
and high class techniques, products and services to customers,
the Group, as a trusted financial technology service provider,
always concerns environmental management to mitigate negative
influence on eco-environment through operational excellence.
The Group’s major impacts to the environment were mainly
resulted from the energy consumption and emissions caused
by the operation processes of smart secure payment products.
Through risk control and measures on minimising resource usage,
we will continue to monitor the impacts on the human being and
the environment. The Group has strictly abided by all relevant
environmental laws and regulations in the Chinese mainland,
Hong Kong and other regions where the Group’s subsidiaries
locate. During 2022, we did not find any practices or issues
caused by environmental problems may significantly influence
the environment or the Group. During the year, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste which had a
significant impact on the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBRE @)

Guided by standards under the 1SO14001 Environmental
Management System and referring to environmental factors, the
Group has established an environmental management system
in which Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual provides the general guidelines and other
subordinate documents describe the implementation details, in
order to make best utilisation of raw materials and resources
and to reduce pollution, eventually realising the sustainable
development goal. In addition, management designates
environmental management representative to communicate
with stakeholders and understand their opinions, to confirm
environmental management plans and internal approval, and
to report to the CEO to ensure the environmental management
system functions well.

Environmental

AEFELAISOT4001IR IR ERBRIZERS
m2BRREERKRESEEYL TUCRERN
BERRL2EEFM ARIEEFT
REEMEZRAXHAERMAUNEREEE
BEX BORZSEBREVBTER R
DER - DERAFERROEE - 340
FEEZRRETENR  EFFHEBAH
REFBB HRBEEEET S METRE
E O WAEFATEERMEBEIE L
HREETEERFSUERER -

Stakeholder Programs Internal management Report to

communication confirmation approval system assurance Report to CEO the Board

3180877 HEwR REBEH B [[CEO# MESE
BB AR H]s

To maximise the value of stakeholders, the Group integrates
environmental protection concepts with its business to realise the
vision of environmental friendly and a harmonious development
mode between economy and environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Resources Consumption

The Group’s energy consumptions are mainly due to electricity
usage in operation facilities and office activities, fuels used by
automobiles, and liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) consumed
by cooking stoves. We have strengthened the management of
resource usage by a series of management procedures, such as
Energy and Resource Consumption Control Procedures, Regulations
on Electricity Consumption, and Regulations on Automobile Safety.
We make timely adjustments to the supply and usage of electricity
including lighting system, air conditioning system, ventilating and
operation facilities. We analyse the energy efficiency based on the
collected data and computed statistics. If any exceptions are noted,
necessary improvements will be carried out. We actively implement
the concept of “energy saving and emission reduction “ and adopt
a series of control measures to improve energy efficiency:

o Electrical engineers should be qualified to guarantee an
effective allocation and management of electricity to avoid
waste;

o Electrical facilities shall be switched on and off at the right
time and shall be at closed state when off duty or when
people leave the offices;

° Carrying out energy saving projects, such as air pressure
system improvement, installation of central dust collection
system, using energy-saving lamps in the workshop and
offices, and using energy efficient stoves in canteen;

o Automatic modification of central air conditioning in office
area to achieve smart control;

° Regular maintenance of air conditioning equipment to ensure
cooling effect;

o Considering energy-saving equipment when purchasing new
equipment;

o Regular vehicle inspections and maintenance to maintain
engine efficiency and reduce fuel waste;

o Planning driving routes in advance to optimise fuel
consumption.

BiE HE2REBRE @)

EREH

AEEEREEIERGESRENHA
EEHE NRER  AEMBNEANUR
REEAHBR(CA MR (LPG]) B HFE -
BPRBACREEREFEESRF) (84
REEEBMAE) (TEL2EBRE)SE
—RIEBIE - MREEREANERE -
ﬁiﬁ‘aﬁ@%ﬁ” CERERG - BRMES

RIEERNNENHEMECHAELEHEE
EHAE - BT BKEREIREREE L
ﬁﬁltb'?v u+ J//\ W /ﬁ\)&—v— +§§ﬁ£%
B KRN EREE - RMERER
T RE R BE) 3B 2 - 3838 — R 51 28 il 78 e 2K
IRFTBEIRE A

e BEIHELM HERHEBRENETH

MHARLEERE  HAOENRE

. EREBERFHA - THHABEF
HﬂEFﬁEﬁﬁH:“

e FMRERMEER MEEBERRXN

R ﬁ%ﬁ:y&uﬁggﬂ
e AR A

A PYE N

s MAREAPREFEBLUE AE
B RZEFH L B

s TEHHRERRE ERELSUR:

o BEMRMBISIEMERE

. ERMEMRSERRE  REABHEM
R BRERE

o  IEABRBITEER  EME-

EHREREERERAT —B-_FFR 61

Corporate

Financial

2022
Major Events

Chairman’s

Iscussion

Managemen

Directors and Senior

Corporate Governance Report of Environmental,

Financial

Information
AR

Social and
Governance Report
BB HEREARE

)

5 Highlights

2022 KE5

Statement
EREWE

Directors
ERERE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBRE @)

Energy consumption figures are summarised as follows:

ERRERMEZERAMANT -

Resource type Unit 2021  Unit 2021
ERES BN B
LPG KG 17,103 20,250 MWh 238 282
AL AR /N JK LB
Unleaded petrol Litre 7,134 7,217  MWh 69 70
i Pan JK LB
Diesel oil Litre 1,173 2,977 MWh 13 32
By Pan JK L BF
Electricity kWh 14,399,443 13,960,570 MWh 14,399 13,961
&7 T LB JK FL B
Total energy consumption MWh 14,719 14,344
BREEAE JK FL B
Energy intensity MWh/RMB 10 10
BERE E million revenue

MY SN

BERA

Notes: Eit -
1. The above consumption figures’ calculation methods and relevant conversion 1. R EENtE AR AEERE T

factors refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting
guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
Energy Statistics Manual — Annex 3 Units and Conversion Equivalents issued by
the International Energy Agency.

2. In 2022, the Group's revenue was approximately RMB1,530 million (2021:
approximately RMB1,377 million). This figure is also used to calculate other
intensity data.

By effective implementation of various measures, the Group has
successfully achieved the energy consumption target for 2022: 10
MWh per RMB million revenue. the Group’s electricity consumption
has increased after Zhuhai Fintech Center has partially placed
into use from September 2022, but in terms of the overall energy
consumption level among the Group, the energy consumption
intensity remains within the target range. The Group will continue
to implement measures to enhance energy efficiency and strive
to achieve the energy consumption intensity target of 10 MWh/
RMB million revenue in 2023 for former business operation scope.
Meanwhile, the annual electricity consumption of the Zhuhai
Fintech Center will continue to be monitored in order to set the
reasonable energy intensity targets subsequently.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In terms of water consumption, our operation activities do
not involve massive water usage. Our water consumption is
mainly from daily office and life activities. Our water source is
municipal water supply and we do not face any problem or risk in
accessing sufficient water source. Administration department and
engineering department are responsible for daily management and
control of water consumption, collecting and analysing monthly
consumption figures. We are committed to water consumption
reducing and water saving, so timely renewal and modification
of water pipes are carried out to avoid water leakage caused by
pipe rupture, replacing traditional faucets with time-lapse faucets
to reduce waste of water, advocating water-saving information
to employees to improve their water-saving awareness and
encourage them to develop a habit of conscious water use. Water
consumption figures are listed below:

BiE HE2REBRE @)

KERERAE  RANELBETFE
RERKNIF T2KERHEE/EL
BERL  EEMRE - HANBKIR A
R oK N TE R SR EGE A KR 77 A R
BLER - THEIEIRRENEFHKER
HREETREBEES St & A
FEBM - BPIB IR A REK - BRI AK
BERMERERRERKEE  #2H
BBWIGERRAORE ¢ IR BB K EE
BEREERKESE B ARNKERR
E MBEISEHNKRES RRET
B EH BB T EREHNAKNEE -
AKEREZERBBALT

Resource type Unit 2021  Intensity unit 2021
ERESE B ZEBEN
Water (former business Tonne 77,920 77,225  Tonne/RMB million 51 56
operation scope) i revenue
BRK(BEEEXEREZHE) W/ AREEEBRA
Water (Zhuhai Fintech Center) Tonne 26,919 20,941
BARK(RETEREEHERL) B
Total water consumption Tonne 104,839 98,166  Tonne/RMB million 69 71
BRKEE i revenue
W,/ AREFERA

Within the former scope of business operations, the Group
successfully achieved the water efficiency target for 2022: 56
tonnes per RMB million revenue. The Group’s water consumption
increased after Zhuhai Fintech Center partially put into use in
September 2022, but in terms of the Group’'s overall water
consumption level, the consumption intensity remained within
the reasonable range. The Group will continue to implement
various measures to conserve water and strive to achieve the water
efficiency target of 56 tonnes per RMB million revenue in 2023
for former business operation scope. Meanwhile, the annual water
consumption of the Zhuhai Fintech Center will continue to be
monitored in order to set the reasonable total water consumption
targets subsequently.

HEREXBECHE ASEXNER
2022F KM EIZ 56l ARKEEE
WA 220229 A 3K 8T & B AL B A 0 2P
DEWAERE - EEKEREREER L
EMEEREKERERKERE R
TBENEHAEHEERN NEBGEEN
AHNAKNEEER SHEBRAE
5B L EAN2023F Ak B 12560
JSARBEBWA - B S B%E
MERMBEPLE2EAKENBEEEST

BEMNBRERR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR -8 RERRE 8

In addition, the Group also established OA system to promote
paperless office, achieving paperless operation of office processes
such as document release and process approval. Double-sided
or multi-page printing is encouraged to reduce paper waste. We
post warning signs around printers and copiers to remind staff not
to over-print to avoid unnecessary paper waste. The Group also
advocates the “Clean your plate” initiative to reduce food waste.

Emissions Reduction

In order to effectively reduce the emission of various pollutants,
the Group on one hand strictly complies with applicable laws
and regulations; on the other hand, specific pollution preventing
procedures have been formulated to standardise pollutant emission
processes from business operations and office activities, and to
control the discharge and release of exhaust air, greenhouse gas,
sewage and noise.

Each department is responsible for the control and prevention of
the possible water, air and noise pollutions generated during their
operation and office activities. Engineering department takes the
responsibility of regular maintenance and management of the
equipment. Quality management department works together with
qualified testing organisations to monitor pollutions. They will
compare the testing results with standards set by relevant laws
and regulations and report to the environmental management
representative. Once any inconformity is noted, departments
involved have to investigate and solve the problem in accordance
with Corrective and Preventive Measures Control Procedures, and
then propose improvement measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In 2022, independent testing organisation has tested the quality
of noise, sewage and exhaust air in Goldpac Tech Park located in
Zhuhai. It indicates a qualified result when comparing with relevant
national standards or local standards in Guangdong Province.

The main sources of the Group’s exhaust air emission come from
fuel combustion, vehicle exhaust and volatile organic compounds
("VOCs") during operating processes. Based on the Group's
records on fuel and vehicles usage, we calculate and convert the
amount of air pollutant emissions as presented below:

BiE HE2REBRE @)

R2022%F » REBKEERNRFERAIR
AR B ETT HRE - BEKAE
REBETRRE HRETKSEENSS
BREERE M HEERE -

AEBERFBREZERMEMRE A=
BERMELHBRETELNEZLEERD
(VOCs) » RIBEAE B R EBEWMHERIE
o BT ERERSRDEERESI RN
I

Air pollutants Unit 2021
BREEY By
Sulfur oxides (SOx) KG 0.1 0.2
i &L ¥1(SOx) N
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) KG 16 16
RE/LP(NOX) NS
Particulate matter (PM) KG 1 1
AR (PM) NI

Note: The above emission figures’ calculation methods and relevant emission factors
refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Group was successful in achieving its 2022 emissions target,
with NOx emissions controlled at 16 kg or less and SOx and PM
emissions reduced compared to 2021, representing a success
in control measures. The Group will continue to control vehicle
usage, regularly inspect and maintain vehicles, reduce fuel waste
and optimise fuel consumption in an effort to achieve the 2023
emissions target which should be essentially the same level of
emissions as in 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBRE @)

The Group's operation and office activities, such as fuel
combustion, vehicle fuel usage and electricity consumption,
lead to both direct and indirect carbon emissions. We dedicate
to integrating the concept of environmental protection into our
corporate culture and encourage low-carbon office activities.
During daily operation, we actively advocate employees’ awareness
of environmental protection through documents, slogans,
training, publicity boards and etc. Environmental and occupational
health and safety training is not only a mandatory item for new
employees, but also a regular item for all employees every year.
The emissions of greenhouse gases are presented as below:

Scope of greenhouse gas

REBMEERE QRS - RBHIRE -
MEMRRER  ENERSE  EEAME
ERELBRPER BRI BRERFES
BMARGEX P - FEEBRBLOTA -
AE&EH  RABRERG  FE
B EERETARABIRFRER
RENMBERFELZEZHITERFETA
BHKEEE HREFE2EEINER

HE - RERBHERBRAMATRIIR

(CO,e) emissions Unit 2021 Intensity Unit 2021
BRERB(CEILtRESR)
PR & E By BEEBEN
Scope I: direct emission Tonne 74 88  Tonne/RMB 0.048 0.1
#HE— BEEHEK i million revenue
PN
BEBA
Scope II: indirect emission  Tonne 11,577 11,224  Tonne/RMB 8 8
#HE— - FEHEK i million revenue
PN
BEBA

Note: The above emission figures’ calculation methods and relevant emission factors

refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting guidance
on Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and Baseline
emission factors of China’s regional power grids for emission reduction projects
in 2019 released by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

The major sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are
direct greenhouse gases emission from LPG and fuel consumption
(Scope 1) and indirect greenhouse gases emission from electricity
consumption (Scope Il). The Group has achieved 2022 emission
intensity targets through controlling the use of vehicles and energy
saving measures. 2023 Scope | and Scope Il emission intensity
targets for former business operation scope are 0.1 tonne/RMB
Million revenue and 8 tonnes/RMB Million revenue, respectively.
Meanwhile, the annual emission of the Zhuhai Fintech Center will
continue to be monitored in order to set the reasonable intensity
targets subsequently.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In order to meet the emission standards of exhaust air and reduce
carbon emissions, we have developed a series of control measures:

o Upgrading VOCs exhaust gas processing system, the
processing efficiency increase by 40%. Specifically, the device
has the capacity to filter tiny PMs and VOCs are absorbed by
activated carbon. After desorption and catalytic combustion,
VOCs are finally decomposed into non-hazardous gases
and water, and then discharged into the atmosphere. The
desorbed adsorption material can be reused for adsorption
after cooling, which can largely reduce the replacement
frequency of activated carbon;

o Gradually replacing the high-VOCs printing ink by eco-friendly
UV ink;

o Adopting advanced technologies and processes to reduce
errors and wastes, and improve efficiencies;

o After entering the Tech Park, vehicles must stop and turn off
the engine to reduce exhaust emissions;

o Encouraging employees to choose public transportation;

o Using teleconferencing instead of business travel whenever
possible.

The Group has been treating sewage and effluent according to
wastewater treatment plan made in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, to mitigate the impacts on the environment.
Zhuhai Fintech Center is designed with wastewater treatment
facilities and used to monitor the discharge standards, which can
handle wastewater including domestic sewage from the kitchen
and toilet.

Waste Reduction and Recycling

Waste management is another key focus for the Group’'s
environmental management. Under the requirements set out
in relevant laws and regulations, we published Waste Disposal
Control Procedures which manages the generation, storage,
marking and disposal of wastes, to pursue wastes deduction in
operation activities and to prevent and lower the negative impacts
on environment.

BiE HE2REBRE @)

AR IR RR LB B
%5 T — R 51 2 3 1

o FAVOCSEREE XL mE MR
BH40% - HEME M) HERBE

FRRBORR AR - A YRR
PER M BB - R
REDEBEFTRBMAK - REBEN
EARRF o BF 1R B9 R P A RS A1
XA EFLARMER - AJARARE
EERE R FFREM W ERER

e EEBIWHVOCSEEBE S HI 4 HNHMB
BRKRRBOUVIEE

o REEEMRWRAR BRRR
ENBERNESL  EREANE

s HWEARRRVLAFEVEMED
# R AR R

s HREBEIHTEREEEAHBIA:

. EUEEAEEETEREEER
7 -

AEEERBBEREEZENER  RES
THRBOEKEIE RS KETEER
PR RAOHBRBEATE - KEMESHEE
A=A S KEE M A 28 BE UE
EAREBEPEKREEEMEERNES
V5K e

18 3R AL &

HEE W E IR R A KBRS E RS
—HTEES - REARAEERNES -
175 4 R 28 0 08 12 652 1) DA 4% B
EMMEL FHBRBREE  BOR
LB E AN ERY AL E
HEEMAELE -

EHREREERERAT —B-_FFR 67

Corporate

Financial

2022
Major Events

Chairman’s

Iscussion

Managemen

Directors and Senior

Corporate Governance Report of Environmental,

Financial

Social and
Governance Report
BB HEREARE

Information
AR

)

5 Highlights

2022 KE5

Statement
EREWE

Directors
ERERE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE HSRERBRE @

We compile a detailed list of wastes annually to conduct a
comprehensive review on the waste production and treatment
and submit it to environmental management representative for
approval. Wastes are classified into non-hazardous wastes and
hazardous wastes, while the non-hazardous wastes are further
classified into non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes and recyclable
non-hazardous wastes. Through collaboration among departments,
specific waste management is designed to each type of waste
according to their classifications. Departments where the wastes
are generated account for collection and storage. Administration
department is responsible to contact qualified waste management
contractors for treatment and final disposal of recyclable
non-hazardous wastes and hazardous wastes. For non-recyclable
non-hazardous wastes, they are disposed with the assistance of
the municipal sanitation department contacted by administration
department.

BMEBFREIEEYEE 2HEEER
MOEENMEEBRL  KBERFEERR

HE - REREVWEEEE AREER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During reporting period, the Group’s wastes are mainly recyclable
non-hazardous wastes, e.g. leftover materials, wasted packaging
materials, wasted paper and etc.. Hazardous wastes, mainly from
printing process, account for only a small part of total wastes.
Our waste management system, following the 5R principle of
“Reduction, Replace, Reuse, Recycle and Reduce”, allows most of
the materials to be recycled so that environmental impacts were
significantly reduced. Wastes-related figures are presented as

HERERRE @

RIE -

RABERA  AEEEEHTEZLA M
W—RERY TEREMAEAR B
ENEBEDH BRORGE -BRER
MRIEBEEDEEN — /A TERAE

ERHR - RPN EZENER RFERFEY
:*:Tﬁﬂ’ﬂff%m/ﬂ BARER - BEYF

CEERBERA - RDERISRERR - AR
fr%ﬂ TERAA - BERELYIRE

below: WEBETE  RNEENERBBIIRAOT
Waste type Unit 2021 Intensity Unit 2021
BEYPER By BEEN
Hazardous wastes  Wasted ink Tonne 15 19  KG/RMB million revenue 10 14
EREREY & i & A AT AREBEBRA
Developer/fixative ~ Tonne 11 10 KG/RMB million revenue 7 7
solution
B EEER I DT/ AREBEERA
Wasted rags and ~ Tonne 19 28 KG/RMB million revenue 12 20
gloves with ink
EMEREKD A AT/ AREBEBRA
FE
Wasted empty Tonne 5 7 KG/RMB million revenue 3 5
barrel
& = 4 A DTS AREBEBRA
Others (eg. Used Tonne 11 0.1 KG/RMB million revenue 7 0.1
activated carbon)
Hab (BB/EMERE) W DTS AREBEBRA
Total hazardous wastes Tonne 60 64 KG/RMB million revenue 40 46
EREEMES L7 DTS AREBERA
Non-hazardous Recyclable Tonne 289 271  KG/RMB million revenue 189 197
wastes a] B4 U DT/ ARBEEBRA
—REED Non-recyclable Tonne 36 16 KG/RMB million revenue 23 11
] [E 145 DT/ ARBEEEBRA
Total non-hazardous wastes Tonne 325 287 KG/RMB million revenue 212 208
—REEDEE 185 DT/ ARBEEBRA

Note: Other hazardous waste in 2022 is mainly waste activated carbon generated
from the replacement of activated carbon in the exhaust gas treatment system
of approximately 8 tonnes and waste toner cartridges, etc. of approximately
2 tonnes. It is estimated that 4.6 tonnes of waste activated carbon may be
generated in 2023.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBRE @)

The Group successfully achieved its 2022 hazardous waste density
target, which was kept within the overall target range of 50 kg/
RMB million revenue. Hazardous waste has increased in 2022
compared to 2021 due to the upgrade of equipment and resulting
in a total amount of waste activated carbon exceeding the original
expected tonnage. Non-recyclable Non-hazardous waste has
increased compared to 2021, with most of the increase derived of
green waste disposed of nearby, and more waste generated in the
office area coming from takeaway meal leftovers and packaging,
due to the suspension of dine-in meals on several occasions in
response to the requirements of the epidemic prevention and
control policy. Taking into account the above factors, the control
target for hazardous waste in 2023 is 50 kg/RMB million revenue,
and the control target for non-hazardous waste in 2023 is 212 kg/
RMB million revenue.

In our operation process, packaging materials are mainly
composed of paper boxes, paper carton boxes, tags, tapes and
fillers. These materials are necessary to prevent the smart secure
payment products from any damage. Packing materials are strictly
forbidden to be discarded randomly, and are regularly recycled by
professional companies.

NEEEFERK2022FE B EEYHRE R
= BEEHESOR T S ARBEEHEERA
BZHENUR - 2022FHEEBREEYR
2021F 80 - ERREEIAS  BEEER
BEBIBIRTETBEMEE o 0] [/ U7 — A% BE
EYE2021FE M HPp R 2B EKA
PR RENZEN R BEEEZEH
THRER  BRMZAEEER AR
BEEYNELEZREBINEBHTIRE
BAEBENLERAE  2023FBREZYHN
TH BIZASOAT AREEERA - —
BEEDNESHERBRN2AT/ARER
BUA -

HMELERETPRANBEYHEIZERE
e AE B8R B% ExR®DE B
SREBEZEXNEMRXBRENOLE
BEY BEVHEEEEER HYHE
ERABETE R EE -

Packaging type Unit 2021 Intensity Unit 2021
BEMBER B BEEN

Paper box Unit 1,547,418 1,503,200 Unit/RMB Million revenue 1,011 1,092
e & B/ ARBEBEERA

Paper carton box  Unit 184,823 189,438 Unit/RMB Million revenue 121 138
i) & B/ ARBEEERA

Tag Piece 4,852,500 5,673,200 Piece/RMB Million revenue 3,172 4,120
R iR R®AOARBEERA

Tape Roll 39,583 37,589 Roll/RMB Million revenue 26 27
B 5 5/ AREBERA

Filler Piece 256,300 384,670 Piece/RMB Million revenue 168 279
ERxY iR R®AOARBEERA

Green Product

As an excellent technology enterprise, the Group actively
undertakes corporate social responsibility, takes the lead in
practicing green and low-carbon development, increasingly invest
in the development of eco-friendly manufacturing industry, and
dedicates to being a green and low-carbon practitioner in the
fintech industry, contributing to achieving China’s “3060" carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality goals as planned.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In the past 30 years, the Group has been adhering to the
exploration and innovative application of cutting-edge
technologies. We have actively practiced the concept of green
and low-carbon life, leading in the research and development of
“eco-friendly cards” manufactured by eco-friendly materials, such
as recycled materials, biodegradable materials, bio-based materials
and others. Currently, RPVC (rigid polyvinyl chloride) materials
have been localised and are certified to be put into production by
Intertek and UL and licensed by MasterCard and VISA. The physical
and chemical properties of RPVC are similar to PVC, which can
completely replace PVC. The recycling material content of RPVC
eco-friendly cards is as high as 93%, and the production of the
same amount of RPVC eco-friendly cards will emit about 44% less
CO, than the traditional PVC cards. In 2022, RPVC has started to
be used in bulk by overseas banks and the total number of cards
issued has exceeded 1.8 million.

The Group’s eco-friendly cards are respond to the international
community’s goals of “low carbon”, “plastic ban” and
“biodegradable”, and are in line with environmental requirements.
It is also a manifestation of the Group’s mission to fulfill its
environmental, social and corporate governance responsibilities.
The Group will continue to follow the green needs of the financial
market, focus on green resources and technological innovation,
and continue to actively explore the environmental protection
and low-carbon fields to achieve longer-term and more in-depth
sustainable development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE -HERE

SBHRE (|\)

Concerns and Responds for Climate Change

The Group is also concerned with climate change related issues,
constantly identifies and evaluates the risk of climate change on
our business operations, and formulates policies to manage the
identified risks based on Risk Management Procedures.

Physical risks
Acute risks

Chronic risks

These risks are mainly related to extreme
events under climate change (such as super
typhoons, floods, epidemics, etc.) which
may bring risks to the assets of the Group,
affect our ability to operate, make damage
to our reputation and cause loss of business.
Through Business Continuity Management
Procedure, we developed business continuity
plans for the events of non-destructive
and destructive natural disasters. By using
flexible working arrangements and preventive
measures to ensure the daily production, the
Group continuing to operate and provide
uninterrupted service to our customers.

These risks refer to risks arising from
long-term shifts in climate patterns, such as
chronic heat waves and rising sea level. For
example, an increase in average temperature
would increase the demand for cooling
equipment in data centres and failure to meet
this requirement could adversely affect the
Group's service provision. Thus, we monitor
the risks closely so as to take timely measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Transition risks
Policy and The introduction of policies and measures
legal risks related to carbon peak and carbon neutrality
may bring about legal and regulatory changes,
which may increase the legal risks faced by the
Group. We will continue to monitor climate
change related trends, policies and regulations
to avoid cost increases and/or compliance risks
caused by delayed response.

Market risks The Group will be at risk if it fails to keep pace
with the growing demand for green products
from its banking and retail customers. After
years of exploration and innovative application
of cutting-edge technology, the Group has
developed a number of “eco-friendly cards”
and implemented a number of projects, which
largely improve our market attractiveness
and competitiveness, and turn risks into
opportunities.

Reputation risks As a responsible fintech company, we must
strongly support sustainable development. If
we fail to address the climate change issues
proactively, we will expose to the risk of losing
recognition from our customers and society.
Therefore, we actively monitor the climate
change issues, continuously assess related
risks and opportunities, and take actions to
control risks and seize opportunities.

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

Employees are critical support to our on-going development. We
treat our people well to bring mutual advancement. The Group’s
operations also need to cooperate with the community. Thus, we
proactively contribute to the community and endeavour for mutual
prosperity.
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The Group regularly reviews Human Resource Management
Procedure and Staff Manual, which specify the Group’s
requirements and procedures for employment, including
recruitment, dismissal, promotion, remuneration, working hours,
rest periods, diversity and other benefits. Under the principle
of being open, fair and just and merit-based selection, we treat
every candidate equally regardless of their race, ethnicity, colour,
religion, gender, age, region, marital status or disability. However,
child labour is strictly prohibited. We will verify the age of
candidates to avoid child labour. Once we discover that individuals
below the legal working age are hired, the Group will take
immediate action to rectify the situation. The Group also forbids
any form of forced, bonded or forced labour, and no employee
will be required to surrender original identification documents or
lodge deposits as a condition of employment. Candidates need to
pass rigorous written tests and interviews in order to obtain the
offer. Besides specific professional skills and working capabilities,
candidates should be honest, possess a correct working attitude
and a high professional dedication and comply with laws,
regulations and ethics. The Group is committed to creating a
diverse, inclusive, egalitarian and collaborative workplace for
its employees and protecting them from discrimination and
harassment. Any employee who is intimidated, humiliated, bullied,
harassed (including sexual harassment) or discriminated in any
way can report to human resources department or file complaints
directly to the management representative or the general manager.
Upon receiving the above complaints, human resources department
will cooperate with relevant departments to investigate, and the
relevant personnel will be seriously dealt with if the complaint
is true. Similarly, procedures for termination or cancellation of
employment also follow the requirements and procedures stated in
the above documents and comply with the statutory requirements
of the place of operation. Human resources department will
also conduct exit interviews with employees in conjunction with
employees’ department to gain insight on employees’ opinions and
suggestions to ensure the implementation of relevant policies. The
Group treasures every staff, pays attention to staff mind and takes
action to retain talents as early as possible.

The Group’s employment policies comply with all relevant labour
laws and regulations at each operation location. During 2022, the
Group observed no violations of any applicable labour laws and
regulations including child labour and forced labour issues.
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As at 31st December 2022 - employee-related figures are as F20224F12A310 - EEB@&BENT -
follows:

Corporate
Information
AR

2021

Total number of active employees 1,583 1,624
ERESRH

By gender

e E by

Male 907 928
St

Female 676 696
gegliid

By employment type

REREDLES

Direct labour 776 799
AIAZR T

Indirect labour 807 825
FERTZBE T

By age group

RERARNE D

Under 30 years old 403 461
L3088

30 to 50 years old 1,131 1,111
30E505%

Over 50 years old 49 52
5057 A £

By geographical region

Rt EE D

The Chinese mainland 1,557 1,597
B A 3

Other regions 26 27
H i [2
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Employee turnover rate
EERKR

By gender
Qe E by

Male

B

Female

Eegid

By age group
RERARE D
Under 30 years old

L H305%

30 to 50 years old
30E5073%

Over 50 years old
505% A

By geographical region
&t EE 5

The Chinese mainland
B A

Other regions

H b 3 [=
Employee Benefits

With the progress and development of the economy and society,
the change of industrial policies and talent policies, it increases the
possibility that the human resources policies not achieving their
objectives in formulation and implementation of corporate human
resources policies. The loss of talent and the shortage of highly
skilled personnel in line with business development are the main
aspects of human resources risk management and control.
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16% 28%
16% 27%
15% 28%
28% 54%
11% 17%
35% 19%
14% 28%

4% 4%
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Remunerations are determined and adjusted based on factors
including economic conditions, personal experience, performance
assessment and operational results. To motivate employees at every
level to fully reach their potentials, in addition to basic salaries, we
also offer bonuses, allowances, shares award schemes and other
benefits. Employees are entitled to paid leaves, including but not
limited to annual leave, overtime leave, marital leave and maternity
leave, as stated in applicable laws of their working places. Working
hours also complies with local laws and regulation, as well as
the industry norms. Forced labour is prevented within the Group
and we do not encourage employees to work overtime under
normal circumstances, while legal and reasonable subsidies will be
provided to suitable voluntary overtime and special positions. In
2022, there was a significant improvement in overall staff retention
compared to the previous year. Under the serious epidemic, the
Group still adopted a humane policy, allowing employees to work
from home but no decrease in their salary income according to the
needs of their positions, and the Covid infected employees who
were unable to attend are also under the basic salary protection.
Through the cultivation of the talent team in each department and
increasing internal training opportunities, we strive to enhance
the job satisfaction of our staff, and create a pleasant working
environment.

Statutory benefits are offered to employees under the requirements
of local laws and regulations. Such benefits include insurances and
paying entity’s section of accumulation funds on time. The Group
also arranges physical examinations for all staff every year and bears
all expenses. The physical examinations of 2022 were successfully
completed in the fourth quarter. The group companies convey policies
about settling down in local household to employees and support
them on such issue. In order to help employees of the Chinese
mainland solve the problems of children’s education and settlement
of residency for fresh graduates, the Group companies promptly
conveyed the settlement policy and actively assisted employees in
settling their residency, so as to solve their worries. The Group has
been providing humanistic care to its staff by offering holiday benefits
to female staff and granting them half-day holidays for Women's
Day, conducting thematic talks on female care from time to time to
help female staff achieve a work-life balance, paying attention to the
health of female staff and enhancing the medical check-up program
for female staff in the annual physical examination, and setting up a
separate mother’s hut (mother and baby room) in the office building
to provide special care to female staff during breastfeeding.
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Development and Training

ET#RHEFZI

In 2022, in order to effectively improve the overall quality of staff, 20224 - Fjﬁxﬂmﬂg THHEAERE &’
strengthen professional skills, expand career development horizons, {tEZ2E K IHEBREZERET RS
and at the same time cultivate a group of excellent lecturers, %—ﬁt@%ﬁ’qéﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁi KA FTEEFR
gradually build a learning organization and create a career MWAEAKZTAE—FEEEE K HFHH
development platform that integrates learning, communication —EHBELXRTES SKRESBAALES
and interaction, and ultimately improve the comprehensive ability 8¢ H Wi EEZOLE S HIAER L5 %
of individuals and enhance the core competitiveness of the Group EWE® @ EEFE T AHIE0HE I FEIK
for the purpose of achieving win-win development, the Group =12l #HEEBERNIPRENHZMNETE -

launched an internal training lecturers and selection program to
promote the development and promotion of the Group's internal

courses.

Data on employee training in 2022 are as follows:

Internal training lecturers selection

& HB12 15 D B BB 15 | i BB K BARAS
2025 RERIIABBENT

Percentage of employees trained

ZIEEES L

Total

HES

By gender
e E by
Male

S

Female

Eegis

By employment type
RESENE S
Direct labour
RIARE T
Indirect labour
FRIFET

97 % 91%

97 % 92%

97 % 89%

96 % 91%

98% 90%
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Average training hours (hours)

F 15 32 3 B B (/)

14.47 11.73
15.09 12.50
13.63 10.69
14.26 9.43
14.66 13.95
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The Group has always attached importance to staff training and
development, and is committed to enhancing the professional skills
and professionalism of its staff. The development of corporate
staff is also an important factor in assessing the sustainable
development of a company. The management capability of human
resources should match the needs of the new business model and
control model, and should support the Group’s strategic planning.
The length and scope of employee training in 2022 are significantly
higher than last year under the Group’s strategy of building a
talent-rich enterprise. In order to encourage employees to add
value to their knowledge and to increase investment in talent
cultivation, the Group innovated and launched the “Dynamic Image
Training Mode” in 2022, which is suitable for various training
application scenarios such as newcomers’ induction and transfer
training in conjunction with the strategic process of digitalisation
and platformisation and was highly appreciated by the staff.
We have developed an effective Training Management System
to provide comprehensive internal and external training and a
comprehensive and effective evaluation system for our employees.
Internal training includes mandatory induction training, job skills
training, on-the-job improvement training and information security
training. External training includes conferences and training
courses organised by various organisations, for which the Group
will provide appropriate allowances as appropriate. During the
year, training activities were successfully held in various ways, both
online and offline. At the end of the training, the trained staff are
required to participate in the evaluation to ensure the effectiveness
of the training.
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According to Management Method of Performance Appraisal,
employees are assessed on a regular basis, that is, performance
appraisal, to review their work progress, quality and effectiveness,
so as to set further improvement plans and better goals in the
future. Performance appraisals are carried out every month,
quarter and year and its contents should be specific and
quantified. The results serve as a vital reference in deciding salary,
promotion and training opportunities, as well as a platform to
strengthen communications between department and employees.
In order to enhance the overall quality and competitiveness of
employees, we continue to improve our Management Method
of Performance Appraisal and promotion process, and a broader
platform could be provided to qualified employees through
comprehensive assessments under the principles of being open,
fair and just. Meanwhile, the Group becomes energetic with
positive competitions which also lay a good foundation of greater
progresses in the future.

Employee health and safety is a key aspect of human resource risk
management and control. The Group is committed to continuous
investment in occupational health and safety and attaches great
importance to the issue of employee health and safety, through
the introduction of a series of health policy measures, including
the management of the health classification of all employees,
travel control, control of the flow of people in the Tech Parks,
continuous operation protection, environmental cleaning and
disinfection, emergency dormitory allocation, emergency response
and other aspects, which strongly guarantee the efficient and
continuous operation of the Tech Parks. The Group has obtained
OHSAS18001 (upgraded to 1SO45001) Occupational Health and
Safety Management System Certificate since 2012, and has
successfully renewed the certificate. The Group issues Environment
and Occupational Health and Safety Management Manual as a
general policy, together with other subordinated documents as
specific procedures. Our occupational health and safety related
policy complies with all applicable laws, regulations and standards,
aiming to improve the Group’s management on occupational
health and safety, manage risks and mitigate the operational
impacts on employees and create a safe and harmonious
environment.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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We encourage employees to engage in the management of
occupational health and safety and work together to establish
a safe workplace. The Group has appointed the management
representative to implement the management of occupational
health and safety. Employee representatives are also selected to act
as a communication bridge with management to reflect employees’
opinions about matters related to occupational health and
safety. In addition, there are regular internal monitors by quality
management team to ensure the effectiveness and compliance
of the health and safety management system, operational
controls and emergency preparation control procedures. To
promote occupational health and safety education, the Group
strictly implements employee safety training. During the year, we
organised a series of occupational safety training such as fire drill
and safety production.

There was no work-related fatality occurred in the past 3 years.
There were 78 lost days recorded due to work injury in current
year. The employees were accidentally injured while carrying goods
or walking. To ensure they can fully recover, we provided the
injured employees with the adequate period for medical treatment
and subsequent rehabilitation. Facing the epidemic, the Group
responded quickly, and effectively protected the health and safety
of employees via making detailed prevention and control plans,
providing epidemic prevention guidelines to employees, purchasing
and distributing protective tools, and strictly disinfecting
operation and office sites. We constantly tracked the changing
situations of the epidemic, updating and implementing necessary
health control measures in real time. We complied with the
government’s epidemic prevention and control requirements, and
implemented the epidemic prevention and control measures for
trucks entering and leaving Guangdong and Hong Kong to ensure
the safety of employees and goods. We also actively cooperated
with the community to facilitate employees’ vaccination against
COVID-19. In 2022, the Group complied with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards which had a
significant impact on the Group.
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The Group is committed to growing together with the community.
We understand the importance of community engagement and
encourage our employees to participate in community activities to
strengthen our relationship with the local community. As a fintech
company, the Group is also actively taking social responsibilities
while providing quality services and products. Our smart products
and services not only serve for people’s livelihood in the fields of
social security, transportation, medical care, etc., but also promote
the sustainable development of charity and philanthropy and
spread positive energy. The Group have participated in charity
and donations many times to grow and progress with the society.
Over the years, we have actively engaged in poverty alleviation,
education assistance, anti-epidemic relief, public facilities
construction, voluntary services, etc., and participated in charitable
donation projects in several cities such as Zhuhai, Lushui, Yingde,
Yangchun, and Guangzhou to practice social responsibilities and
promote social development.

In addition, the Group has always attached great importance to
the cooperation between industry, university and research, fully
tapping the resources of scientific research teams, promoting the
commercialisation of scientific research achievements, and realising
cutting-edge technologies and talent reserve. At present, the
Group has established partnerships with colleges and universities
on projects and talent trainings, including joint laboratory of
Internet of Things with Wuhan University, talent training programs
with Zhaoqging Science and Technology School, Zhuhaishi New
Thinking Secondary Vocational School and Zhongshan Torch
Polytechnic, teaching and practice base for Jinan University,
Beijing Normal University Zhuhai Campus and other colleges and
universities.

In response to collaboration and paired assistance between the
eastern and western regions, giving full play to the important
role of labour cooperation in paired assistance, the Group actively
responded to the call of government to engage in the labour
cooperation between Zhuhai and Zunyi and went to Fenggang
and Wuchuan in Zunyi. The Group studied the situation of
their labour force and employment demand and released the
requirements of recruitment to provide targeted assistance, and
further communicated with two local secondary vocational colleges
in talent training and talent delivery. Over the years, the Group
has proactively carried out activities to promote the employment
of people with disabilities, combining the characteristics of
the enterprise to provide stable employment for people with
disabilities.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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The Group has also played an important role in the development
of inclusive finance, and in 2022, it has provided a number of
small and micro enterprise cards to a number of banks in China to
promote the long-term sustainable development of small and micro
enterprises. By the end of 2022, it also provided a total of around
8 million rural revitalisation cards to dozens of banks in China. The
rural revitalisation card is a series of special bank cards issued by
China UnionPay in conjunction with commercial banks for users in
rural areas for use in scenarios such as agricultural production and
living, to implement financial services for rural revitalisation and to
enhance the efficiency and level of rural financial services.

During the epidemic period, the Group actively cooperated with
epidemic prevention and control works of the local communities
and undertook the epidemic prevention responsibility. In addition
to doing well in our own epidemic prevention and investigation,
we also gave great support to the community team. In 2022, in
order to help the frontline fight against the epidemic, the Group
donated epidemic prevention and heat protection materials to
Fengshan Street, Sanxi Town and Chancheng Hospital respectively,
and organised volunteers to support the community prevention
and control work.
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Supporting the community in epidemic prevention

XtFH @GR TIE

By leveraging our experience and expertise, we offer supports in
a wide range of areas in infrastructure construction, technology
development, education, and etc., fostering the development of
the community and giving back to our society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE -HEREBRBRE @)

ESG CONTENT INDEX

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEHERE

ESGHREARREGI

Section/Remarks

B #E

Governance Structure

ERRE

Reporting Principles
ERIR A
Reporting Boundary
EREE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEHE EH —REBEREREVEES

Governance Structure
EIRRE

Stakeholder Communication and
Engagement

=A@ ERARS2H
Materiality Assessment
BEMEBENE

Reporting Principles
ERER A

Reporting Period and Scope
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Section/Remarks

B RE

A. Environment
ABE
Aspect A1

EHA1
General Disclosure

— MR I BR

KPI AT.1

84 Goldpac Group Limited

Emissions

B

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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The types of emissions and respective emissions
data.
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Annual Report 2022

Environmental Management
Emissions Reduction

Waste Reduction and Recycling
Appendix 1
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Emissions Reduction
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Section/Remarks

TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER BERE

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)  Emissions Reduction
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
B (SHE) kepREE (BE2)REREBHEKNE  HIHEK
(LAWEET & Mﬂw BR)BE (WABESHA -
BERETE

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,  Waste Reduction and Recycling
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEEAEEEEYEE AAE) R (ER) BRARE
BRE(NMAGESEN BERMETE) °

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  Waste Reduction and Recycling
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
MEXEEEZEYEE CAMHE )&(ZZD )  TEERRERE
BE(MAGESSEN  BERETE

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps  Emissions Reduction
taken to achieve them.
RTINS BERE REDELBEMEKR B PER
B A9 25 8 o

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous  Waste Reduction and Recycling
wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
MR EERETEEYN L REMAMET BERBE
VHRBEERRREINGEL R EMERMON LR -

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

BmEA2 EREA

General Disclosure

—RIWE

Policies on the efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERER(BERIR - KEEMEREME) K
ﬁ o
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EFEH —REBEREREXER

REPORT (CONTINUED)

Section/Remarks

- D

KPI A2.1

KPI A2.2

KPI A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI'A2.5

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

REREASHEER IHEEZER(WE - Fk
H)BEE (UNTHETFRERAE) REE (LS
ESBA BERM;HE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.qg.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BERERKERTEE (WASESEN  BERME

= <]
Ft

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

RPTEI L REREM MR B R R AEDELR
TR P EREREY 2P 8]

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

fie 3t SR EE B 7KOR £ AT A ] R - A KPR ET 32
BRI S B R R AESE L B IRATERIEY T 5R -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

R mABEEMENEE (UEFE) & (10E
R)BEESBMGLE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Section/Remarks

TEHRE EFEH —REERBEERER BERE
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
[EEA3 BERRXARER

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI A3.1

Aspect A4
B A4

General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI A4.1

Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant
impacts on the environment and natural
resources.
MEBETAHRRERRAEREREATENK
= o

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them.

Ml EBEHHRBERRARERNEATER
KRERBHETENITE -

Climate Change
RIxE 1L

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

R M EH B &M
ﬁ\kﬁﬁ$ﬂmﬂ

%QE%ﬁAEE%@WE

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.
HABKRAEEHBTAEEFENEARR
=R REHTH -

Environmental Management
Resources Consumption
Emissions Reduction
RIREE

BRfER

A BE

Environmental Management
Resources Consumption
Emissions Reduction
RIREE

ERfER

B BE R

Concerns and Responds for
Climate Change

&L

*T

ey

5T R

Concerns and Responds for
Climate Change

I RIREC
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EFEH —REBEREREXER

B. Social
B.iE

Employment and Labour Practices

EBREREZETIER
Aspect B1

JEEB1

General Disclosure

— AR I 5R

KPI'B1.1

KPI'B1.2

Employment

ER®

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

ERAFTHNRARE BERSM  TERE - B

FEHRE  Zulb REKRUAREMFEREF

)

(@) EE: Kk

by BTFHETABEAZZNHBEEZERR
By & #E -

Total workforce by gender, employment type
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

BRI ERAL (MR REHEE)  Ficdn R
MEESWEELE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

BUER - FRANMEREDWEERKLE -

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Recruitment Policy
Employee Benefits
Appendix 1

EEBUR
BT FH
B 8% 1

Recruitment Policy

BB IR
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER

Section/Remarks

- P

Aspect B2
B mB2

General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI B2.1

KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

Health and Safety
REHEZ2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

FHRHLZ2IHERBAREREEBEBENLRE

EH

(@ HXR: Rk

(b) EBFHBETABEATZENHEBEEZLR
fIE)E# o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years including
the reporting year.

BEZF (BRERFE)SFAITHNAREK
L o

Lost days due to work injury.

AIBEEATIERS -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R PR ER M B R R R e 2 5 - A RABB R
TRERITE -

Occupational Health and Safety
Appendix 1

BERRELE
B £ 1

Occupational Health and Safety

BERERZE

Occupational Health and Safety

BERRZE

Occupational Health and Safety

BEEmLe
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EFEH —REBEREREXER

Aspect B3
[EmEB3

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

Aspect B4
[E EIB4

General Disclosure

— AR 4% 5R

KPI B4.1

KPI B4.2

Development and Training

B K%

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

BRARHE B BT TIERE ) A R R AE IR -
B IES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).
BMRIREERMN(NERERERE HREEE)
SomXilEERS L -

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
mMRIREBERNE S  FEREETKIINF
RFE -

Labour Standards

B TRA

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

BB IEZE T34 T -

(a) WK K

(b) BEBFHEHBETAGEATZENHEBEZLR
{189 & # o

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
f i st M E DI AR R E T RORHE T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.
i A IR E R BN OHR B BIS LT EREL &

B o
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Development and Training
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Development and Training

BT H#REF

Development and Training

B TH#REF

Recruitment Policy
Employee Benefits
Appendix 1

BEBE
BIR8

B &% 1
Recruitment Policy
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER

Section/Remarks

- P

Operating Practices
EEEM

Aspect B5

JE EBS

General Disclosure
— B E

KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

KPI B5.3

KPI B5.4

Supply Chain Management
ftEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRERTSRARBE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR E D WHEEHEE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

WA ERAERHEEENED  mERTARIED
MHEREE  ARMBERTRERTE-

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

M AR EEGEARHOREI L ERAR
BB - ARMEERITRERTE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Mt EREHEBRREZARRERIRBH
ol - ARMBEARITRERTE -

Supply Chain Management
HEREE R

Supply Chain Management
HEREE R

Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

Supply Chain Management

HEBEEIE

Supply Chain Management

HEEEIE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EFEH —REBEREREXER

Aspect B6
[EEB6

General Disclosure

— AR I 5E

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods of redress.

ERAMREERNBRENRERLS B 8

KRB EEURBERA AR

(@ BER:RK

by BTHETABREAZENHBEEZLR
DI B #L -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEHACERERBHETRAL T BERBEHMA
B H B 5L °

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with.

BEEBARERNMRBORFEE AREHTTE

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
Rt R g R RB B ERBEANER -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
it B e T AR N E m AR FF e

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

i )8 B & BB RIS MALBBUR - A KRBT
NMEERITE
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Appendix 1
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BiE HE2REBRE @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Section/Remarks

TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER B8 EE
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
[ EB7 R&ES

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI'B7.1

KPI B7.2

KPI'B7.3

Community
HE
Aspect B8
fE HB8

General Disclosure

~BEE

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
BRI ILAE  $R BEFREREN
(@ HME: &

(b) BITUBTABEAZENHEBERLR
e E#YE -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
REBRBHANBETAXHESRIIEEENE
AR E RFRER -

Description of preventive measures and

whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.

ﬁ%%ﬁ%m&%ﬁﬁﬁ’uﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ&%%
Y o

Description of anti-corruption training provided
to directors and staff.

fimEERE TRHENREFE -

Community Investment

HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

BN E2ER T FE @%Eﬁ& TRAER
HEBKZSHEGEEMERNREOBUOR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).
ZIERERB(INHE REFE HILHFX-
fEpE - Xk - 85) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

EEIREMBAER(WEELKHE)

EHEREEZRERAT

Anti-corruption
Appendix 1
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&
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Community Engagement

HESE

Community Engagement

HE2E
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBRE @)

APPENDIX 1
LIST OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS WITH
SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE GROUP

The following table presents the list including but not limited to
the laws and regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant
impacts on the Group.

GENERAL

Constitution of the PRC

Civil Code of the PRC

Criminal Law of the PRC

Company Law of the PRC

PRC tax laws

The Basic Law of the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region of the PRC

Companies Ordinance (Hong Kong)

Inland Revenue Ordinance (Hong Kong)

LISTING

Listing Rules (Hong Kong)

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Hong Kong)

Rules of Securities and Futures (Listing on Stock Markets) (Hong
Kong)

OPERATION ISSUES

Information security

Measures for the Regulation of Risks in the Information Technology
Outsourcing by Banking and Insurance Institutions

Cybersecurity Law of the PRC

Data Security Law of the PRC

Personal Information Protection Law of the PRC

Patent Law of the PRC

Copyright Law of the PRC

Trademark Law of the PRC

Regulations of the PRC on Customs Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights

94 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE HEREBRBRE @)

Card organisation

Rules and guidelines on the qualification certifications, quality
control certifications, security management for product
manufacturing and personalisation enterprises

PCI" Card Production Physical Security Requirements

PCI Card Production Logical Security Requirements

Product and service quality

Law of the PRC on Work Safety

Product Quality Law of the PRC

Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of
Production License for Industrial Products

Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes

Advertisement Law of the PRC

Regulation on the Administration of Outdoor Advertising Facilities
Recruitment and Establishment in Special Economic Zone of
Zhuhai

Specification for Identification Code and Card Number of
Bank Card Issuer

Specification for Format and Use of Bank Card Magnetic Stripe
Information

Anti-corruption

Law of the PRC Against Unfair Competition
Anti-Monopoly Law of the PRC

The Bidding Law of the PRC

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Hong Kong)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ISSUES

Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes

Energy Conservation Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution

Law of the PRC on Noise Pollution Prevention and Control

National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste

1

PCI stands for Payment Card Industry

A&

EFEBERCEEERERA

n'E

ETERIRY LECEREEER

Mo EAALEELE2ERERSE
(XNRTERREEMELZ2ER)
(INRTERREERBEL2EXR)

EmRkBREEE

(REARAMBERZ 2EER)

(PFEARKNBEEREEZR)

(REARAMB T XEEREETAIE
B 15 BI)

(PR =S E IR AR B )

(PEARANMBEESE)

(REEBEFRPIINESREBERE
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S
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EMPLOYEE AND COMMUNITY ISSUES EIRHEZEIEEE

Labour Law of the PRC (P AREMBELEE)

Labour Contract Law of the PRC (PEAREMELEA RE)

Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances (TERE &6

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of (RE ANREFBEBZERBEE)
Occupational Diseases

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of (RE AR EFBEERBRAE)
Infectious Diseases

Social Insurance Law of the PRC (pEEAREMBEEZREIE)

Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour (EILFERETRE)

Provisions of the State Council on Working Hours of (EMEEBEPRE T TERBAETE)
Workers and Staff

Labour Relations Ordinance (Hong Kong) CBEBERIEDNY(FH)

Employment Ordinance (Hong Kong) CRIBIED)Y (FE)
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The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004, the Company
was publicly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
4 December 2013. Primarily operated through its subsidiaries in
the Chinese mainland and Hong Kong, the Group is specialised in
delivering embedded software, secure payment products and A.l.
financial self-service kiosks for global customers and leveraging
innovative Fintech to provide date processing, system platforms
and other total solutions for customers in a wide business range
including finance, government, healthcare, transportation and
retails. The Group is the only secure payment products supplier
in the PRC certified by all six of the world-leading credit card
organisations of China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard, American
Express, JCB and Diners Club.

As a global leading secure payment total solution supplier, the
Group is actively involved in drafting and formulating industrial
standards and criteria. Driven by customers’ diversified demands
and evolving technologies in innovation, the Group watches
the cutting-edge technologies trends with the closest interests,
covering digital currencies, A.l.,, mobile payment, loT, to reinforce
the Group’s leading industrial position and boost the whole
industry’s evolution. Motivated by the strong R&D aptitudes and
affluent practical experiences, the Group was actively involved
in numerous significant industrial events and projects, including
China’s secure and reliable financial IC card chip promotion
project, the first EMV (Europay, MasterCard and VISA) projects
in Hong Kong and the Chinese mainland, the first provincial
social security card project, the first financial social security card
project, the first citizen card project and the first healthcare
card project in the Chinese mainland. Adhering to the spirit of
“Virtue, Innovative, Efficiency and Cooperation” and leveraging its
leading technologies, preeminent qualities and premium service,
the Group is fully engaged in promoting a wider and in-depth
Fintech application. At the same time, inspired by the Chinese
government’s “Belt and Road” initiative, the Group is now
continuously expanding its international market and extending its
superior solutions and services to a wider geographical area and
delivering convenient, secure and easy payment experiences to
people around the globe.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2022 are set out
in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 259 to
page 264 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEESWRE @)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 188 and 189 of this Annual
Report.

A final dividend of HK12.0 cents (2021: HK10.0 cents) and a
special dividend of HK4.0 cents (2021: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 has been
proposed by the Board of Directors.

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year 2022, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 12 to page 27 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Monday, 15 May 2023, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration by 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 9 May 2023. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 10 May
2023 to Monday, 15 May 2023, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May
2023. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 1 June 2023 to Monday, 5 June 2023, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed
dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Monday, 15 May 2023, the dividends will be paid on
Friday, 30 June 2023 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Monday, 5 June 2023.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions
business and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

(i) The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry

As the Group relies on financial institutions, government
agencies (such as social security, public health and
transportation agencies) and other organisations that issue
financial cards as its customers or potential customers,
the financial performance of the Group depends on the
future growth of the consumer financial services industry
and trends in that industry towards greater outsourcing of
certain functions such as the production of financial payment
products and data processing. The consumer financial services
industry is characterised by rapid launches of new products
and services, continuous technological advancement, evolving
industry standards and changing customer needs, all of which
translate to shorter life cycles for new products and services.
Organisations that issue financial cards or other relevant
products, such as the Group’s customers, may face difficulty
in anticipating changes in consumer tastes, preferences and
requirements and designing financial products to meet such
changes, which could lead to a lower demand for financial
payment products and in turn decrease these organisations’
demand for the products and services, which may adversely
affect the financial results of the Group.
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(ii)

As a supplier to financial institutions and
government agencies, the Group is subject
to rigorous industry standards and/or
government regulations

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of
standards and criteria relating to the facilities and products
of payment solutions providers, which the Group must satisfy
in order to be eligible to supply products and services to
these customers. For example, as required by the Group’s
financial institution customers, the Group has obtained
certifications from all six of the leading worldwide payment
card organisations (VISA, MasterCard, American Express,
China UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club) with respect to the
Group’s card manufacturing and personalisation services.
To maintain such certifications, the Group is subject to
rigorous periodic audits by these payment card organisations
to review the Group’s compliance with their standards and
criteria. The Group makes significant investments in order
to meet these standards and criteria, which vary depending
on the organisation or body, including investments required
to satisfy changes adopted from time to time by these
organisations and bodies in their respective standards
and criteria. Further investments to meet these standards
and criteria may be costly, and if the Group is unable to
continue to meet these standards and criteria, the Group
may become ineligible to provide products and services that
have constituted in the past an important part of the Group's
revenue and profitability.

(iii) The Group faces significant competition in

100

each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group’s market position depends upon its ability to
anticipate and proactively deal with changes in economic and
market conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the
following factors: introduction of new or superior products
and services or more advanced technologies, adoption of
more flexible pricing strategies by the Group’s competitors
and changes in customers’ needs and preferences. The Group
cannot assure that its current or potential competitors will
not produce the same or similar products or products of a
better quality and/or provide similar or higher quality services
at the same or lower prices than the prices at which the
Group’s products and services are provided.
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(iv)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Group's competitors may also react more quickly to
new or emerging technologies or changes in customer
preferences. In addition, the Group may face greater than
expected downward pricing pressure as a result of possible
price competition by competitors seeking to stimulate
demand in order to maintain or increase market share. Such
competition could adversely affect the Group's results of
operations and business prospects. Any adverse changes in
the Group’s competitive environment could cause a reduction
in the sales quantity, its market share, or the sales price of
its products, which would lower the Group’s profitability.
As a supplier to the major financial institutions in China,
the Group’s performance and profitability may be adversely
affected if its customers, when faced with operational
difficulties and decreasing profit margins, seek to demand
more favourable trading terms from the Group in relation
to price and credit period. The Group’s performance and
profitability will also be adversely affected if any of its
customers faces cost control or cash flow problems due to
such operational difficulties.

Fluctuations in consumer spending

and financial services in the PRC may
significantly affect the Group’s business
and financial performance

During the past few years, the Group derived most of the
Group's revenue from operations in the PRC. The Group's
sales and growth are dependent on consumer spending
and consumer banking, which in turn depend on continued
improvement of macroeconomic conditions, in Asia generally
but in the PRC in particular. There are many factors affecting
the level of consumer spending and consumer banking,
including but not limited to, interest rates, currency exchange
rates, recession, inflation, deflation, political uncertainty,
taxation, stock market performance, unemployment levels
and general consumer confidence. In addition, the Group
believes that the Group’s historical growth rates were largely
dependent on the general growth of the PRC economy. The
Group can provide no assurance that the PRC economy will
continue to grow at historical rates, or that it will not grow
at all, and any slowdowns or declines in the PRC economy
or consumer spending or consumer banking may adversely
affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results of
operations and growth prospects.

(iv)

EHEREEZRERAT

EEERE @)

AEBEHBHFHE TR S 2H XA
ARMAEPEF RN EIEHERNR
& o WS R BFH T RERHOE
DT 5 40 B8 1 BN B RIS K E 2K
ERHEF - NEBE R L2 H LAY
EAMERTHRES - Ll 55 6
BAKENREXENEBHR S EK
THEE AEENBFRELEL
2t A ] A ) 2 5 R 8 BUR £R (B 2
HE MIBNENEE TR BME
BEAREENRMES - (EATETE
TRBBEOHER  NRAEENE
FPEBRE&ERFMABERTE W&
KASERERMEERETERSE
MEZGENR AIAKENZEENARTN
ENEITNEE - HAKEIAE
JP R 4 e TR 955 1 3 17 P 7S 422 1) 38 T B
ReRnEME AEBENEEMEN

BENtLEXTNTE -

B EH B & S A & BR S
KRB S A KB ER A
MBRAEREAZE

RBELSF  NEEORED WK
BEPENZE - NEBAHEME
REBHEXHMHEEERITES
mmESEEREDMN (CEEHE)
FERBERENFEER - BEX
HAMEBEERTEBRAZREDN
FE O BREATRRME EEX. LK
BERR AR BE - BOAMTREE
M B B RR - REABAE
BEBEEL W NEERA
AEEMELIEREERKIZE LK
FERBEEENERER NEBEEZX
REPELESREL IR RFEIL
R ZEFPELERATGEE M
TREESHEXHSEEERITE
RIS TR - R BE AR
MER  BHRR  BEXETER
RAIRELETNEE -

—g-—g&) 107

Financial

%)
[
~N >
o W
O
~N o
©
=

Management Discussion Chairman’s

Directors and Senior

Environmental,

.
o
-
£
(=}
Q
o)

o

Corporate Governance

Financial

Corporate

20226 K%

«
4
S
g
v
Q
a

4o
5
$n
i
b

Report

$ERRE

A



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEESWRE @)

(v)

102

Changes in economic, political and social
conditions as well as government policies
in the Chinese mainland may adversely
affect the Group

The majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from
its subsidiaries in the Chinese mainland. Therefore,
the economic, political and social conditions as well as
government policies in the Chinese mainland may affect the
Group’s business, financial conditions, results and prospects.

Firstly, as the Chinese economy has become increasingly
linked with the global economy, it is affected in various
respects by downturns and recessions of major economies as
well as natural disasters around the world which are beyond
the Group’s control.

Secondly, the Chinese economy differs from the economies
of most developed countries in many respects, including the
degree of government involvement, the level of development,
the growth rate, the inflation rate and the allocation of
resources. The Chinese government exercises significant
control over China’s economic growth through strategically
allocating resources, controlling the foreign exchange,
setting monetary policy and providing preferential treatment
to particular industries and enterprises. While the Chinese
economy has grown significantly in the past decades, such
growth may not continue and any slowdown may have a
negative effect on the Group’s business and the industry.
Any adverse change in the economic, political and social
conditions as well as government policies, laws, regulations
and policies in China could materially and adversely affect
China’s overall economic growth, and such impact could
adversely affect the Group’s business, which could adversely
affect the Group’s competitive position.

Thirdly, although the Chinese government has undergone
various economic reforms in the last few decades, laws,
regulations and policies related to such reforms are expected
to be refined, adjusted and modified from time to time based
on economic and social conditions, and interpretation of the
laws and regulations relating to such reforms may not be
entirely clear. Such refinement, adjustment or modification,
interpretation of the laws and regulations may impact the
Group’s business operations in ways that the Group cannot
predict, and may materially and adversely affect the Group’s
results of operations and financial condition.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022

(v) Bt By & - BOAR

A B R DR BUR B
% ) 7 65 % K 5 B LR
AR

L —

SR B K ER D AR B B A
YA o Bt - B AL -
Boa Mt & AR ORIA R BT R A R
AEBMER  BHMRR  ZEUR

IS e

Bt 0 BEE P B B 2 R RO B
EHRE% PEKLBEESTHINX
B X BB AR R TR AR AR
BEHMMBANEMETE MZFAE
REEEEZES -

HX - PENEEBEEZ S EA IR
REHEREBFTOLE  EhBREK
F2miEE #RKF EEX &
MRERERDEE © B BBATERE
REEHEERSE SMNEEH - HIES
BHRERAFETELRBREES
FRREFENREEREABNE
7 BETENKEERNBEE+FR
ERE BNEEREBERNGE
m— B A& Al e RN B A R AT
EBATMEZE - PENEE - BUA
Rt &R AR R BOER AR R
BRIA TS B BT BRSR i 3R AT A S ) &
B 0Ign e YR EBRBNLEE
EBREANNTE  ARSTEA
EEEUAKENEBRERTINZE
MY AEENHRFWAELE TN

o,
=

BXR - @BETEBFNIE+FHE
TZHEKLENTE  BEXFHEEED
AR EREBRRARBEERLE
AR (E R B~ AR K& M
HERREROBRERY T 2R
BRAZBEERMBEROEL HENR
Bk  ZREHA e URNEERELRE
AT AZEREENREZE - X
SHAREE R L XA MM BERNE
RERTFEE -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(vi) Natural disasters, health epidemics such

as COVID-19, social disruption and other
outbreaks could significantly disrupt the
Group’s operations

The Group may be vulnerable to social and natural
catastrophic events that are beyond the Group’s control,
such as natural disasters, health epidemics, and other
catastrophes, which may materially and adversely affect the
Group’s business. Natural disasters may give rise to water
supply disruption, electricity disruption, transport disruption,
server interruption and system failures, which could adversely
affect the Group’s operation. The Group's business could
also be adversely affected if the employees are affected by
health epidemics. In addition, the Group’s revenue could be
adversely affected to the extent that any health epidemic
harms the economy in general, for example, the outbreak of
COVID-19 has severely impacted China and the rest of the
world. In an effort to contain the spread of COVID-19, China
has taken precautionary measures that reduced economic
activities, such as measures of stay-at-home quarantine and
traffic control, resulting in a situation which employees are
unable to return to work and an interruption in the Group's
operation. The frequency and magnitude of effect brought
by these risks are beyond the Group’s control. In addition,
the outbreak may severely affect and restrict the level of
economic activities as the government may impose regulatory
or administrative measures quarantining affected areas or
other measures to control or contain the outbreak of the
infectious disease, which in turn may have a material and
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial position
and results. There is also no assurance that COVID-19
outbreak will not further escalate with new variant cases
entailing re-imposed restrictive measures which may in turn
have a material adverse effect on the Group’s operations.
Consequently, if any natural disasters, health epidemics or
other public safety concerns were to affect the Group, the
Group’s operations may experience material disruptions,
which may materially and adversely affect the Group’s
business, financial conditions and results.
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(vii)Data security risk may adversely affect the

104

Group

All countries and regions continue to heighten their
supervision over data security and personal privacy. The
Group attaches great importance on protecting and
safeguarding data of the customers and the Group, and
continues to pay attention to the changes and updates of
the laws and policies related to privacy and data protection
in various countries and regions, and is fully aware that any
loss or leakage of such data could have a significant negative
impact on customers, which may cause adverse effect to the
Group's business.

As a global leader in offering smart secure payment
total solutions, the Group attaches great importance
on data security and data protection of the customers.
Regarding security as the first lifeline, the Group strictly
complies with applicable laws and regulations, insists on
protecting the data privacy and security of the customers
and the Group, and strives to provide the highest level of
protection on customers’ data. In this regard, the Company
has formulated and kept optimizing control measures
to protect such data. Data security is ensured through
effective management systems certificated by industry
regulators, encryption technology, access restrictions and
controls, the establishment of appropriate and effective
management processes, and continuous improvement of the
business continuity and three-location disaster responding
mechanism. In addition, the Group arranges regular reviews
by independent information security management specialists
and designates chief information security officer to supervise
the Group's data protection practices. At the same time, the
Group provides training for all staff and relevant parties to
enhance their awareness of information security.
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(viii) The Group’s business may be adversely

(ix)

affected by the introduction of new
payment technologies

The Group faces competition from new payment
technologies, which could reduce the demand for financial
cards as a payment method. If there are any new payment
technologies which will reduce the demand for financial card
products or other new products the Group may introduce
from time to time, including new products arising from the
Group’s research and development activities, the Group
may experience material and adverse effects on its business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group’s adoption of contract-based
arrangements and/or structures in certain
lines of businesses brings about certain
risks

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Risks relating to
the Contractual Arrangement” under the section headed
“Information on Contractual Arrangement” in the Report of
Directors.

Information on the Contractual Arrangement

As disclosed in the announcement of the Group dated
8 February 2021, UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) (the
"WFOE") has entered into the VIE Agreements with Zhirong
Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (the “OPCO")
and/or Mr. Xian Jun (the “PRC Equity Owner”) on 8
February 2021. Through the following agreements (the “VIE
Agreements”), the Group was able to exercise 100% control
over the OPCO in substance notwithstanding the absence of
legal ownership of the company.
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Particulars of the OPCO and its registered
owners and the WFOE

The OPCO is a limited liability company established and
subsisting under the laws of the PRC. Pursuant to the
VIE Agreements entered into between the OPCO, its
registered shareholders, namely the PRC Equity Owner,
and the WFOE, the WFOE was allowed to exercise
control of and enjoy economic benefits generated from
the OPCO.

The PRC Equity Owner is a nephew of each of Mr. Lu
Run Ting and Mr. Lu Runyi. Mr. Lu Run Ting is the
Chairman, an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and Mr. Lu Runyi is an
executive Director of the Company, and therefore, the
PRC Equity Owner is a deemed connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The WFOE is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established and subsisting under the laws of the
PRC. The WFOE is principally engaged in technical
services, technical development, technical consultation,
technology exchange, technology transfer and
technology promotion. As at 31 December 2022, the
entire equity interest of the WFOE is owned by the
Company.

Description of OPCO’s business

The OPCO is principally engaged in (i) computer
software and hardware, (ii) research and development
in network technology, and (iii) information service
platform for online data processing and transactions
processing services as well as information service
businesses (the “Restricted Business”, and collectively,
the “Subject Business”). The OPCO has obtained the
Value-added Telecommunication Business Operation
Licence (“VAT Licence”) under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC to operate the Restricted
Business.
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Summary of the major terms of the underlying
contracts of the Contractual Arrangement (the
“VIE Agreements”)

A summary of the terms of the VIE Agreements is set
out below.

(1) The Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE; and

(i) the OPCO.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until all of the
PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest in the OPCO
is transferred to the WFOE and/or its designated
nominee in accordance with the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement. The WFOE may at any time
terminate the Exclusive Technological Consultation
and Services Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the OPCO and the PRC
Equity Owner. The OPCO has no right to terminate
the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement on its own initiative.

Major terms: The OPCO shall engage the WFOE
on an exclusive basis to provide technological
consultation and services, including but not limited
to consulting services on company management
and business strategy; website design, design,
installation, debugging and maintenance services
for computer network systems; system integration,
system maintenance, server maintenance,
database support and software services; and other
related services at the OPCQO’s request.
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Fee determination: The service fee shall be paid
on an annual basis and calculated by deducting
all costs and expenses approved by the WFOE
from the revenue generated by the OPCO for
the relevant financial year. Furthermore, the
WEFOE shall be entitled to adjust the service fee,
taking into account the scope of services as well
as the operating conditions and development
needs of the OPCO, without the OPCO’s consent.
The WEFOE shall fix the service fee taking into
account the complexity and difficulty of the
services provided by the WFOE, the time incurred
by the WFOE's employees for the provision of
the services, the actual services and commercial
value of the services provided by the WFOE, and
the prevailing market rates for the same type of
services.

Intellectual property rights: The WFOE shall enjoy
exclusively the rights, interests and intellectual
property arising from the performance of
the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement, including but not limited
to copyrights, trademarks, patents, technology
secrets and trade secrets, irrespective of whether
they are developed by the WFOE or the OPCO,
unless the relevant government authority requires
such rights to be held by the OPCO or if such
rights are the prerequisites for the OPCO to renew
its operating licence and permit.
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(2) The Exclusive Business Co-operation

Agreement
Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE;
(i)  the OPCO; and
(iii)  the PRC Equity Owner.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until the
OPCO is dissolved in accordance with the PRC
laws. The WFOE may extend the term of the
Exclusive Business Co-operation Agreement before
expiry. The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner shall
have no right to terminate the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement before expiry. The WFOE
may at any time terminate the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the OPCO and the PRC
Equity Owner.

Major terms: Unless prior written consent has
been obtained from the WFOE or its designated
nominee(s), the OPCO shall not carry on any
transaction or conduct any act that may materially
adversely affect the assets, business, personnel,
obligations, rights or operation of the OPCO,
including but not limited to: (i) carrying out or
conducting any activities or operating the OPCO
in a manner that is beyond the OPCO’s usual
and ordinary scope of business; (ii) selling to,
acquiring from or otherwise disposing to any
third party any assets or rights (including but not
limited to any intellectual property) worth more
than RMB100,000; and (iii) assigning any rights
and obligations of the OPCO under the Exclusive
Business Co-operation Agreement to any third

party.
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The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner shall accept
and strictly implement the suggestions and
instructions provided by the WFOE from time to
time on matters such as employment and dismissal
of employees, daily operation and management,
and the financial management system of the
OPCO. The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner
shall elect or appoint persons designated by the
WFOE to serve as directors (or executive directors)
and supervisors of the OPCO in accordance with
the procedures prescribed by laws, regulations
and the OPCO’s articles of association, and shall
procure the election and appointment of such
persons designated by the WFOE as the chairman
(if there is a board of directors), general manager,
chief financial officer and other members of
the senior management of the OPCO. The PRC
Equity Owner shall sign a power of attorney to
irrevocably authorise the WFOE to exercise all his
shareholder’s rights in the OPCO on his behalf (the
“Irrevocable Power of Attorney”). The WFOE
may in its sole discretion designate a nominee to
exercise such shareholders’ rights granted under
the Irrevocable Power of Attorney.
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The Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement
Date: 8 February 2021

Parties: (i)  the WFOE;

(i) the PRC Equity Owner; and

(iii) the OPCO.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until all of the
PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest in the OPCO
is transferred to the WFOE and/or its designated
nominee in accordance with the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement. Notwithstanding, the WFOE
may at any time terminate the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the PRC Equity Owner
and the OPCO. Neither the PRC Equity Owner nor
the OPCO shall have the right to terminate the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement on his/its own
initiative.

Major terms: The PRC Equity Owner unconditionally
and irrevocably granted the WFOE an exclusive
right to, to the extent permissible under the PRC
laws, purchase or nominate any third party to
purchase, on one or more occasions, all or part
of the PRC Equity Owner's equity interest in the
OPCO. The purchase price shall be the lower of: (i)
the actual amount contributed by the PRC Equity
Owner to acquire the registered capital of the
OPCO; or (ii) the lowest price permissible under
the PRC laws (the “Permissible Minimum Price”)
(Note 1).
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Unless with the prior written consent of the
WFOE, neither the PRC Equity Owner nor the
OPCO shall assign or transfer any of his/its rights
and obligations under the Exclusive Purchase Right
Agreement. The obligations under the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement shall be binding on the
PRC Equity Owner, the OPCO and any of his/its
successors, assignees and transferees. Upon prior
written notice given to the PRC Equity Owner,
the WFOE may, to the extent permissible under
the PRC laws, assign all or any of its rights and
obligations under the Exclusive Purchase Right
Agreement to any third party.

Note 1: As advised by Jincheng Tongda & Neal (the “PRC Legal
Advisers”), under the PRC laws, there is no legal requirement
on the value of the Permissible Minimum Price. The Permissible
Minimum Price is to be agreed between the parties, and for
illustration purpose, it can be as low as RMB1. Nevertheless,
if the Group is to acquire all the equity interest in the OPCO
(assuming there is no restriction on foreign investment) and if
the consideration/equity transfer income for the equity interest
of the OPCO received by the PRC Equity Owner is regarded as
too low and without any reasonable ground, pursuant to the
Measures for the Administration of Individual Income Tax on
Equity Transfer Income (for Trial Implementation)* (f% # 2 2
FRSEAFTISTLE B #1104 (F197))), the tax authority may assess
such equity transfer income and charge 20% tax thereof.
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Undertaking and covenants: The PRC Equity
Owner undertook (inter alia) that, prior to the
exercise of the exclusive purchase right by the
WFOE or its designated nominee to acquire all
of the equity interest in the OPCO, he shall not,
without prior written consent from the WFOE or
its designated nominee: (i) increase or reduce the
OPCO'’s registered capital or otherwise change
the registered capital structure of the OPCO;
(ii) procure the OPCO to enter into or carry on
any transactions or actions that will materially
adversely affect the assets, responsibilities,
operations, equity, and other legal rights of the
OPCO (except those which are in its usual and
ordinary course of business or those disclosed to
and with the prior written consent of the WFOE),
(iii) sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose
of any legal or beneficial interest in the OPCO’s
equity, or allow any other security interest to
be placed on it, or procure the shareholders’
meetings of the OPCO to approve these acts.

In addition, the PRC Equity Owner and the OPCO
jointly and severally undertook that, prior to
the exercise of the exclusive purchase right and
acquisition of all of the equity interest in the
OPCO by the WFOE or its designated nominee,
the OPCO shall not, without written consent from
the WFOE or its designated nominee commit
certain acts, including but not limited to (i)
entering into any transaction that will or may have
a material adverse effect on the OPCO’s assets,
responsibilities, operations, equity and other legal
rights (other than in its usual and ordinary course
of business, or prior disclosure has been made and
written consent has been given by the WFOE); (ii)
distributing dividends or equity entitlements in
any form to its shareholders; and (iii) dissolving
or liquidating (unless mandatorily required by the
PRC laws).
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(4) The Equity Pledge Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE;

(i) the PRC Equity Owner; and

(iii) the OPCO.

Duration: Effective upon the Equity Pledge
Agreement being duly executed and registered
by the relevant administrative authority and
shall remain binding until the WFOE’s written
confirmation of the discharge by the PRC Equity
Owner and the OPCO of all their obligations
under the Exclusive Technological Consultation
and Services Agreement, the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement, the Loan Agreement,
the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement and the
Irrevocable Power of Attorney (the “Contractual
Obligations”).

Major terms: The PRC Equity Owner agreed to
pledge all of his equity interest in the OPCO
and any interests arising therefrom during the
term of the Equity Pledge Agreement in favour
of the WFOE to secure the due performance of
the Contractual Obligations and as guarantee
for all the representations, undertakings and/
or warranties made to the WFOE by the PRC
Equity Owner or the OPCO under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Services
Agreement, the Exclusive Business Co-operation
Agreement, the Loan Agreement, the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement and the Irrevocable
Power of Attorney.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022

(4)

BREZEREE
HEI: 202142 HA8H
sT#497 ()  WFOE

(i) = B R%
wAE A
P54

(iii) OPCO °

FH AR EETHESRLE
NEE B BITHHE
BELrER THEZE
WFOEZ T 7 38 B % 12
A AFMOPCOR ™ B 17
H RN B R T 5% R A AR
BHhE BREKEIEW
HoERME BREER
T 195 5 A0 A AT JI 8 A0 7% 4
ZRE(ERAZEH]D TH
FTEEMILZAl HEA
BHIERN -

FERR: PEREES
AR E# HZEOPCOM FR
EREAREERES
HAERPEEENTM
A 7 E 1R 4 WFOE + DA
REREBNEEET -
W 1E B B AR % B A sk
OPCOMR BB R K T 74 +8
MR HeE BREBA
Bt EHE - BR
B8 B M 155 A0 T T S Y
B Z £ E RWFOEE I
W FT A BRI - EEE R 8K
REMER -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEERE @)

(5) The Spousal Consent Letter

Date:

Parties:

8 February 2021

Ms. Zhao (the spouse of the PRC Equity
Owner)

Major terms: Ms. Zhao unconditionally and
irrevocably agreed, confirmed and undertook that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

she does not possess any rights or
entitlements to the equity interest of the
OPCO;

all the equity interest held by the PRC Equity
Owner in the OPCO and all the benefits
derived therefrom shall not form part of the
matrimonial property between her and the
PRC Equity Owner;

the performance, amendments, termination
and execution by the PRC Equity Owner of
the Equity Pledge Agreement, the Exclusive
Business Co-operation Agreement, the
Irrevocable Power of Attorney and the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement (the
“Transaction Documents”) did not require
her authorisation or consent;

she shall sign all necessary documents and
take all necessary actions to ensure the due
performance of the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time); and

if she shall acquire any equity interest in the
OPCO for any reason, she shall be bound by
and comply with the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time), and upon
the WFOE's request, she shall sign a series
of documents essentially with the same form
and content as the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time).
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(6) The Loan Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE; and

(i) the PRC Equity Owner.

Duration: The term of the loan granted under the
Loan Agreement shall commence from the date of
the Loan Agreement for five years, which shall be
automatically renewed for another five years and
a further five years after expiration of each period
of automatic renewal.

Major terms: The WFOE shall provide to the PRC
Equity Owner a non-interest bearing loan in the
sum of RMB10,000,000, and the PRC Equity
Owner shall accept such loan in accordance with
the Loan Agreement. Such loans will be used
for the PRC Equity Owner’s contribution to the
paid-up capital of the OPCO. The loan will become
due and payable upon the WFOE's demand under
any of the following circumstances:

(i)  the PRC Equity Owner is dead, or has limited
or no civil capacity;

(i)  the PRC Equity Owner engages in any
criminal acts or is involved in any criminal
activities;

(iiiy  failure of the PRC Equity Owner to repay
any debts owed by him or taking up of any
material personal debts which may affect
his ability to repay the loans under the Loan
Agreement; or
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(iv) the WFOE gives written notice to the PRC
Equity Owner in accordance with the Loan
Agreement to exercise its right to purchase
the equity interest in the OPCO to the extent
permissible under the PRC laws.

Dispute resolution clauses

The VIE Agreements are governed by and will be
construed in accordance with the PRC laws. Any dispute
arising from the VIE Agreements between the parties
should first be resolved through negotiation. In case the
dispute cannot be resolved within 30 days, any party
may submit the said dispute to the Zhuhai Arbitration
Commission* (/8 {H & Z E €)in accordance with its
arbitration rules. The arbitrators may award remedies
over the equity interest or assets of the OPCO, grant
injunctive relief (e.g. mandatory transfer of assets) and/
or order the winding up of the OPCO. The results of
the arbitration shall be final and binding. When the
arbitral award is granted, any party can apply for its
enforcement in any courts of competent jurisdictions
such as courts in Hong Kong, the PRC and locations
where the principal assets of the WFOE or the OPCO
are located.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangement

The consolidated total revenue of the OPCO for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMBO0.3 million. The consolidated total assets and net
assets of the OPCO as at 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately RMB9.6 million and approximately
RMB1.3 million respectively.
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Background and reasons for use of the
Contractual Arrangement

Regulations on foreign-invested telecommunications

According to the Regulations on the Administration
of Foreign-invested Telecommunication Enterprises
(2016 Amended)* (K/NEIREBFREERHRTE (2016
F{&%E7))) (the "FITE Regulations”), (i) the ratio of
investment by a foreign investor in a company providing
value-added telecommunications services shall not
exceed 50%, and (ii) a foreign investor who invests in a
value-added telecommunications services company shall
have a good track record and operational experience in
providing value-added telecommunications business (the
"Qualification Requirement”) in the PRC.

According to the Administrative Measures of Foreign
Investment Admission (Negative List) (2020 Revision)*
(A EEAFREERE(BAEFEE) (2020
FhR))) (the “2020 Negative List"”), value-added
telecommunications businesses are classified as
industries where foreign investments are restricted, and
the proportion of foreign investment shall not exceed
50% (except for e-commerce, domestic multi-party
communication, storage and forward, and call centre
businesses).

Reasons for adopting the Contractual Arrangement

Pursuant to the FITE Regulations and the 2020 Negative
List, (i) the ratio of investment by a foreign investor in
a company providing value-added telecommunications
services shall not exceed 50%; and (ii) a foreign investor
who invests in a value-added telecommunications
services company shall have the Qualification
Requirement in the PRC.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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As advised by the PRC Legal Advisers, there lacks a
clear guidance or interpretation on the Qualification
Requirement. Furthermore, due to the foreign
ownership restrictions as outlined above and based
on the formal consultation with the officer of the
Guangdong Communications Administration by the
PRC Legal Advisers on 19 November 2020, since the
Group had no operational experience in value-added
telecommunications business in the PRC nor had
it previously acquired any equity interest in a PRC
enterprise engaged in telecommunications business,
the PRC Legal Advisers have taken the view that from a
regulatory perspective, unless it is through Contractual
Arrangement, the Group would not be able to engage
in the value-added telecommunications business in the
PRC directly or hold any equity interest of the OPCO.
In the event that the Group holds any equity interest
in the OPCO, the application to renew the VAT Licence
of the OPCO would not be approved. The PRC Legal
Advisers have confirmed that all possible actions or
steps taken to enable it to reach its legal conclusions
had been taken.

As advised by the PRC Legal Advisers, the Group
has reasonably assessed the requirements under
all applicable rules, committed financial and other
resources and implemented all the PRC Legal Advisers’
recommendations prior to establishing the Contractual
Arrangement.

In view of the above, the VIE Agreements were entered
into among the WFOE, the OPCO and the PRC Equity
Owner. Through the VIE Agreements, the WFOE will
have effective control over the finance and operation of
the OPCO and will enjoy the entire economic interests
and benefits generated by the OPCO despite the lack of
registered equity ownership.
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The Company has discussed with its auditors and
confirms that the financial results of the OPCO has
been and will be consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Group under the prevailing
accounting principles. On the basis of the aforesaid
confirmation and pursuant to Rule 1.01 of the Listing
Rules, the Company further confirms that the OPCO is
an indirect subsidiary of the Company as 100% of its
equity interest is attributable to the Company through
the WFOE.

Commercial Benefits of the Transactions

The Group aims to become the world’s leading supplier
of Fintech products and services and a leader in the
financial payment products. Accordingly, the Group
has been actively looking for opportunities to tap into
the Subject Business, including the Restricted Business.
As outlined above, due to the foreign ownership
restriction, the Group would not be able to engage
in the Restricted Business other than adopting the
Contractual Arrangement (namely, entering into the
VIE Agreements). After in-depth discussion of the
management of the Company, it was decided that the
PRC Equity Owner, who is a deemed connected person
of the Company and a current employee of the Group
and as such whose interest would be more aligned
with that of the Group and the potential conflict of
interest would be mitigated, is a suitable person to
establish the OPCO with the principal business of
offering information service platform for online data
processing and transactions processing services as well
as information service businesses which will then enter
into the Contractual Arrangement with the Group.
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Apart from the regulatory benefits, adopting the
Contractual Arrangement will bring the following
commercial benefits to the Group:

(i) It allows the Group to have effective control over
the finance and operation of the OPCO and to
enjoy the entire economic interests and benefits
granted by the OPCO. By introducing the Subject
Business, the OPCO will create a new business
driver to the Company and generate a long-term
return to the Shareholders.

(i) It enables the Group to obtain the VAT Licence
necessary for providing the value-added
telecommunication services in the PRC and
enhances the competitiveness and adaptability of
the Group in the market.

Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangement

The Group will bear economic risks which may
arise from financial difficulties in the operation of
the OPCO

As the primary beneficiary of the OPCO, the Group
will bear economic risks which may arise from financial
difficulties in the operation of business of the OPCO.
In such events, the WFOE will have to provide financial
support to the OPCO. Accordingly, the Group’s financial
results and financial position may be adversely affected
by the worsening financial performance of the OPCO
and the need to provide financial support to the OPCO.
As discussed above, none of the VIE Agreements
provides that the WFOE is obliged to share the losses
of the OPCO or provide financial support to the
OPCO. However, since the Group conducts the Subject
Business through the OPCO and the financial results
of the OPCO would be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group, any losses suffered by the
OPCO would be reflected in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the Group’s consolidated
financial position such as the consolidated earnings and
profits would be adversely affected.
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There is no assurance that the VIE Agreements
could comply with future changes in the regulatory
requirements in the PRC and the PRC Government
may determine that the VIE Agreements do not

comply with applicable regulations

Despite there is currently no indication that the VIE
Agreements will be interfered or objected by any PRC
regulatory authorities, the PRC Legal Advisers have
advised that there is a possibility that the relevant PRC
regulatory authorities may have different opinions on
the interpretation of the relevant regulations and would
not agree that the VIE Agreements comply with the
PRC laws, and the authorities may deny the validity,
effectiveness and enforceability of the VIE Agreements.

Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to
the interpretation and implementation of the
Foreign Investment Law and how it may impact
the viability of the current corporate structure,
corporate governance and business operations

The Foreign Investment Law stipulates certain forms of
foreign investment. However, the Foreign Investment
Law does not explicitly stipulate the contractual

arrangements as a form of foreign investment.
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As discussed above and advised by the PRC Legal
Advisers, since contractual arrangements are not
specified as investments under the Foreign Investment
Law, and if future laws, administrative regulations and
provisions of the State Council do not incorporate
contractual arrangements as a form of foreign
investment, the Contractual Arrangement as a whole
and each of the VIE Agreements will not be affected.
Notwithstanding the above, the Foreign Investment Law
stipulates that foreign investment includes “foreign
investors invest through any other methods under laws,
administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by
the State Council”. Therefore, there are possibilities
that future laws, administrative regulations or provisions
prescribed by the State Council may regard contractual
arrangements as a form of foreign investment, and
in such events it would be uncertain whether the
Contractual Arrangement will be recognised as foreign
investment, whether the Contractual Arrangement will
be deemed to be in violation of the foreign investment
access requirements. Therefore, there is no guarantee
that the Contractual Arrangement and the business of
the OPCO will not be materially and adversely affected
in the future.

The Contractual Arrangement may not be as
effective as direct ownership in providing control
over the OPCO

The Group relies on the Contractual Arrangement to
operate the business of the OPCO. The Contractual
Arrangement may not be as effective in providing the
WEFOE with control over the OPCO as direct ownership.
If the WFOE has direct ownership of the OPCO, it
will be able to exercise its rights as a shareholder to
effect changes in the board of directors of the OPCO,
which in turn could effect changes, subject to any
applicable fiduciary obligations, at the management
level. However, under the VIE Agreements, the Group
relies on the performance by the PRC Equity Owner of
his obligations under the VIE Agreements to exercise
control over the OPCO. Therefore, the VIE Agreements
with the PRC Equity Owner may not be as effective in
ensuring the WFOE’s control over the OPCO as direct
ownership would be.
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The PRC Equity Owner may potentially have a
conflict of interest with the Group

The Group’s control over the OPCO is based on the
Contractual Arrangement. Therefore, conflict of
interests of the PRC Equity Owner will adversely affect
the interests of the Company. Conflict of interests may
occur when the interest of the PRC Equity Owner no
longer align with that of the Group. In such events,
the PRC Equity Owner may breach or cause the OPCO
to breach the VIE Agreements. If the Group fails to
resolve this internally, it may have to resort to dispute
resolution, other legal means, or ultimately removing
and replacing the PRC Equity Owner, which might affect
the WFOE's business, prospects or results of operation
and the investors’ confidence in the Contractual
Arrangement.

Certain terms of the VIE Agreements may not be
enforceable under the PRC laws

The VIE Agreements provide that the arbitration tribunal
of the PRC may award remedies over the equity interest
or assets of the OPCO (e.g. in relation to its conduct
of business, transfer of assets and equity interest) or
winding up of the OPCO. The VIE Agreements also
provide that any party thereto may seek temporary
injunctive relief from the courts in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the location where the principal assets of the
Company or the OPCO are located.

However, the PRC Legal Advisers have taken the view
that pursuant to the PRC laws, the arbitration tribunal
may have no power to grant the aforementioned
remedies or injunctive relief or to order the winding
up of the OPCO. In addition, even though the VIE
Agreements provide that overseas courts (e.g. courts
in Hong Kong) shall have the power to grant certain
relief or remedies, such relief or remedies may not be
recognised or enforced under the PRC laws. As a result,
in the event that the OPCO or any of the PRC Equity
Owner breaches the terms of the VIE Agreements, the
Company may not be able to obtain sufficient remedies
in a timely manner, and its ability to exert effective
control over the OPCO may be materially and adversely
affected.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Limitations in acquiring ownership in the equity
interest of the OPCO

In case the WFOE exercises its option to acquire all
or part of the equity interest of the OPCO under the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, such acquisition
may only be conducted to the extent permissible
under the PRC laws and will be subject to necessary
approvals and relevant procedures under the PRC
laws. In addition, the aforementioned acquisitions may
be subject to a minimum price limitation (such as an
appraised value for the entire equity interest in the
OPCO) or other limitations as imposed by the applicable
PRC laws. Further, a substantial amount of taxes, other
necessary costs (if any), expenses and time may be
involved in acquiring and transferring the ownership of
the OPCO, which may have a material adverse impact
on the WFOE and/or the OPCO’s businesses, prospects
and results of operation.

The Company does not have any insurance which
covers the risks relating to the VIE Agreements and
the transactions contemplated thereunder

The insurance of the Group does not cover the risks
relating to the VIE Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder. If any risk arises from the VIE
Agreements in the future, such as those affecting the
enforceability of the VIE Agreements and the operation
of VIE Agreements, the results of the Group may be
adversely affected. To this end, the Group will monitor
the relevant legal and operational environment from
time to time to comply with the applicable laws and
regulations. The Company will continue evaluating
the feasibility, the cost and the benefit of insuring the
transactions contemplated under the VIE Agreements.

BEEERE @)

Uz BEOPCO I £ #E 75 2 Y PR I

iWWFOEfT{F E B W BB R
EEEWHE T2 A H0PCO
B ZRBEATEERTE
EETABRTETT WHBA
BrEARBERTHAMEI
HERBBERERF - M Eiti
B EETEATREZN R
KEEEERS (WWOPCOM & &
WA EE) sk E MR H - it
AN - U B K B8 OPCOHE B #E 3k
FRAEHRK EHMKEER
(nF) - BRAMEM - &0 8
HWFOE K./ sLOPCOHY) 2 75 -
AT S M ARG HiEREATF

=
FE o

AATWEREAVIER ZE R E 1B
THETXZEBRNARERR

ANEBMRER I A ME EVIER
EREETRECRSBBED
BB o ¥ B & EVIER 3% mE £
TR (40 5 ZVIER & &
AT RVIER 3 A E ) -
AR ERMEE A RESETF
FE.-Blt AEEBTRE
EEBEEREBERE  NE
FHEAERER ARAB#
BT EBVIERRE TRETR
SR AT ITHE « BN R RES ©

SHEHEEERERAT —Bo—FERK 125

Corporate

2022 Financial

Major Events

Chairman’s
Statement

Iscussion

Managemen

Directors and Senior

Directors
BERERE

Report of

Report

EEREE

Corporate Governance

Financial




REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEESWRE @)

The VIE Agreements may not be subject to scrutiny
of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may

be imposed

The Group could face adverse tax consequences if the
PRC tax authorities determine that the arrangements
under the VIE Agreements were not entered into
based on arm’s length negotiations, and as such the
tax authorities may adjust income and expenses of
the WFOE and/or the OPCO for the PRC tax purposes,
which could result in higher tax liabilities on the WFOE
and/or the OPCO. The operating and financial results of
the WFOE may be adversely affected if the tax liabilities
of the OPCO or those of the WFOE increase significantly
or if they are required to pay interest on late payments

and other penalties.

7. Internal control measures implemented by the

Group

With a view to enhancing effective control over and
safeguarding the assets of the OPCO, the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement provides that the PRC Equity
Owner shall not sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise
dispose of any of his interests in the OPCO or create
any encumbrances on them without the prior written
consent of the WFOE. Under the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement, the WFOE has the right to request
for the OPCO’s financial information to ascertain its
consolidated profit before tax from time to time.

In addition, the Company has also put in place the

following internal control measures:

(i)  the seals, chops, incorporation documents of the
OPCO are kept at the office of the WFOE to the

extent permissible under the PRC laws;

(i)  the WFOE is involved in making corporate
management and strategic planning of the OPCO;
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(iii) the WFOE shall nominate directors, supervisors,
general manager and other senior management
staffs of the OPCO; and

(iv) the WFOE is involved in assessing financial matters
of the OPCO.

Material change

There has not been any material change in the
Contractual Arrangement and/or the circumstances
under which they were adopted during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Termination of Contractual Arrangement

The Company will unwind the Contractual Arrangement
as soon as the PRC laws allow the Restricted Business
to be operated without the Contractual Arrangement,
and the Company or its nominee may acquire the
equity interest in the OPCO held by the PRC Equity
Owner and/or the assets of the OPCO are allocated to
the Subject Business to the extent permissible under
the PRC laws. In the event the WFOE exercises the
right under the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement to
acquire the equity interest in the OPCO held by the PRC
Equity Owner and/or the assets of the OPCO to unwind
the Contractual Arrangement, each of the PRC Equity
Owner and the OPCO has undertaken to return to the
WEFOE any consideration he/it shall receive.

However, as at 31 December 2022, there has not been
any termination of the Contractual Arrangement.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

128

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group
and the Group regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue
to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a
clear career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. The Group provides
pre-employment and on-the-job training and development
opportunities to its staff members. The training programs
cover areas such as managerial skills, R&D capacity, innovative
technologies, sales and production, customer services, quality
control, workplace ethics, information security, compliance
and legal and training of other areas relevant to the industry.
In addition, the Group seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from its employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside
from basic remuneration, for all employees in the Chinese
mainland, the Group provides employee with mandatory
social security funds, pensions, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance, medical and unemployment insurance,
and full coverage of housing provident fund contributions
in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations of
the Chinese mainland. For employees in Hong Kong and
other countries, the Group also makes contributions towards
relevant insurance schemes, pension schemes and provident
fund required by applicable local laws and regulations.
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(ii)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Meanwhile the Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (has expired on 3 December 2019), Share Option
Scheme and Share Award Scheme to recognize and motivate
the contribution of the employees and attract suitable
personnel for the long-term growth and further strategic
expansion of the Group. For the year ended 31 December
2022, no shares or share options have been granted or
agreed to be granted to any selected participants or eligible
employees (2021: Nil) under the Share Award Scheme and
the Share Option Scheme, respectively.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that
they share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics.
The Group carefully selects its suppliers and requires them
to satisfy certain assessment criteria including track record,
experience, financial strength, reputation, products qualities
and quality control effectiveness. The Group also requires its
suppliers to comply with the Group’s anti-bribery policy.

(iii) Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its
diversified clients’ portfolio consisting of the governmental
organizations, world-leading financial institutions,
transportations projects and multinational companies. The
Group maximizes client value by offering professional and
effective operation model and innovative and differentiated
products and services, to intensify the interaction and
viscosity between clients and the Group and enhances the
client experience.
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(iii)
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Chinese mainland and Hong Kong while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in the Chinese mainland and Hong Kong. During the
year 2022, the Group have complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the Chinese mainland, Hong Kong and other regions
where the Group’s subsidiaries locate.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year 2022 are set out on pages 192 and 193
of this Annual Report and in Note 43 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 311 of this Annual Report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In February 2017, the Group acquired the 50-year land use right of
a land parcel with new industry related use with RMB26,669,442
in Zhuhai. The total area is approximately 20,999.56 square meters
situated in the No. 88, Zhiyun Road, Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai,
Guangdong Province, where the operation of the Group is located,
for the future development of the Group.

In October 2018, with the support of Zhuhai municipal
government, the Group started the construction of “Zhuhai
Fintech Center” on this land parcel, with a total construction
area of approximately 56,000 square meters, which was capped
in December 2019 and was be put into use in the 4th quarter
2022 as the Group's R&D center office and as R&D offices for
attracting Fintech enterprises, and no more than 15% of the area
of the center will be used as commercial rental. Through its own
funds and bank loans, the total investment for the center has
reached approximately RMB262.5 million by the end of 2022,
and the Group expects the total investment for the center will
be approximately RMB320.0 million. The Group will leveraging its
own industry resources accumulated over the years in the field of
Fintech to bring together global professionals in the IoT, intelligent
security payment, data encryption, integrated circuits and other
industries, and will jointly make forward-looking technological
exploration and technological innovation in areas such as block
chain, A.l., big data, biometrics and other areas.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In 2016, the Group acquired the property located in 13th Floor,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre No. 56 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for HKD178 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB159.0 million) with a total area of 7857 feet.
More than half of this property is used as the headquarters office
of the Group, and the remainder is currently leased for office use
by an independent third-party enterprise for 3 years from 1 March
2022.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year 2022 are set out in Note 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 277 and 278 of this
Annual Report.

BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank loans amounted to
approximately RMB44.8 million (2021: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year 2022 are set out in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 299 and 300 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for the distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB74.1 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB99.5
million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE

The business review of the Group for the year 2022 is set out in
the Management Discussion and Analysis of this Annual Report,
which forms part of this Directors’ Report. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year 2022 using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the section headed “Financial
Highlights” on page 5 of this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST FIVE
YEARS

The results, assets and liabilities of the past five years of the Group
are set out in the Financial Summary on page 312 of this Annual
Report.
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INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(a) Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme was conditionally adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of recognising and
acknowledging the contributions of any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers, any Directors, any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the Group,
or such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group, and the

principle terms are as follows:

(i)  The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the

Stock Exchange;

(i)  The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the

date of offer to grant;

(i)  Options granted should be taken up on payment of
HKD1.0 by the grantee on or before the relevant
acceptance date. The exercise price is determined by
the Directors of the Company at their discretion and
will not be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing
price of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; (b) the
average closing price of the ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (c) the nominal value
of the Company’s share. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion, except that no option
may be exercised more than ten years after it has been

granted; and

(iv) There is no minimum period for which an option
granted must be held before it can be exercised except

otherwise imposed by the Directors.
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(b)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no options were granted
or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
and no options were exercised, cancelled and lapsed. As at 1
January 2022 and 31 December 2022, there was no outstanding
option not exercise under the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have been
granted, the total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, representing approximately 9.76% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
Annual Report. As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022,
the total number of shares of the Company available for grant
under the Share Option Scheme were both 80,000,000 shares.

Subject to early termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective to 4 December 2023 from the adoption date. As at 31
December 2022, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
is less than one year.

In any event, any grant of the share options under the Share
Option Scheme shall comply with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules taking effect from 1 January 2023.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from 11
December 2015. As at 31 December 2022, the remaining
life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 8 years.
The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to (i)
align the interests of any employee, adviser, consultant,
agent, contractor, client or supplier of any member of the
Group whom the Directors in their sole discretion consider
may contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate the contribution
of the Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of the
Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group, and the
principal terms are as follows:
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee
Limited (the “Trustee”) to administer and hold
the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open
market with funds provided by the Company by way of
contribution;

The maximum number of restricted shares in respect
of which awards may be granted shall not exceed 10%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company
at the Adoption Date (restricted shares awarded but
cancelled, lapsed and/or not yet vested are all excluded);

Unless specifically approved by the shareholders of the
Company, the aggregate number of new shares to be
granted as restricted shares in each financial year shall
not exceed 3% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at the Adoption Date;

The maximum number of restricted shares which may
be awarded to each Participant under the scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at the Adoption Date; and

There is no restrictions on vesting period, the purchase
price or the amount payable on application or
acceptance of the restricted shares awarded except
otherwise imposed by the Directors.

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares under
the Share Award Scheme to the Participants. The shares
awarded shall be vested in three years on each anniversary
of the first vesting date, which is 26 November 2017,
in equal portions. The estimated fair value of the shares
award granted at the grant date were approximately
HKD27,564,000 (equivalent to RMB24,239,000) based on the
market price of the relevant shares at the grant date.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, all these shares were either vested
or forfeited.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Trustee did
not acquire any ordinary shares of the Company (2021: Nil),
no shares have been granted or agreed to be granted to
any selected participants during the period (2021: Nil), and
the Group did not recognise any expense for the year ended
31 December 2022 in relation to the share awards (for year
ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, 8,146,000 shares of the Company
under the Share Award Scheme were held by the Trustee (As
at 31 December 2021: 8,146,000 shares).

Under the Share Award Scheme, the maximum number
of new shares available for issue shall be 24,990,900
shares of the Company in each financial year, representing
approximately 3.0% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this Annual Report.

As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the total
number of shares of the Company available for grant under
the Share Award Scheme were both 72,929,000 shares.

In any event, any grant of the share awards under the Share
Award Scheme shall comply with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules taking effect from 1 January 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2022 and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.

LU Run Ting (Chairman)
HOU Ping

LU Runyi

WU Sigiang

LING Wai Lim

LI Yijin
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin

Ms. YE Lu

Mr. LAl Tung Kwok (appointed on 17 May 2022)
Mr. YANG Geng (retired on 17 May 2022)

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 28 to 39 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year 2022 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are as follows:

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Hengqin)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Sigiang

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Investment Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Goldpac Innovation Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

SecureTech Holdings Limited

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. LING Wai Lim (appointed on 22 June 2022)

136  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022

BYFHTES

oK R A&

B gEat

IR S (B2022E5 417 EEF)
BELEA (82022558170 EE)

EENMA

EENBHFRBHNAFEREF28E5E39
BEIEERSREEREEMM-

MEARIES

PR02FEAREARNFEREHAILE AR
AlZMBARIZEEMT

EREERQA
= FEAE
EEREE

ERENERE (BS)BERLQT
= FEAE
EBRLE
BERREE
REBBEE
BEREL LT

EHERBERRAT
= FEAE
EEREE

EHREREERQT

Goldpac Innovation Limited

SecureTech Holdings Limited

w FRE

T A

BB AE (B2022F6 A22B BB EZ )



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Goldpac Fintech Private Limited

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Mr. LING Wai Lim (appointed on 27 November 2022)

Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. LING Wai Lim (Appointed on 6 July 2022)

Goldpac Fintech Philippines Limited Inc.
Mr. NG Chun Hung

Mr. Marcos Joao Fernandes

Mr. XU Muping

Mr. Marvin Pico

Ms. Jennifer Del Villar

Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

UMV International Holding Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Yixiang

Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co.
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Yixiang

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, which
shall be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.
Each of independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.
The appointment of each Director is subject to the provisions of
appointment and retirement of directors under the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. WU
Sigiang, Ms. LI Yijin and Ms. YE Lu shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All the retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-elections at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

None of the Directors has unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE
Lu and Mr. LAl Tung Kwok, the confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has duly reviewed the confirmation of independence
of each of these Directors. The Company considers that the
independent non-executive Directors had been independent from
the date of their appointment to 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (all within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFO")), which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”), were as follows:
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Interests in Shares

PEEH

Approximate
percentage of

Corporate
Information

interest in the zEo
Company (%)® 25
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held”  fi{5 &2 A # -
EEgs REmtE FREsgE” BMABEIH(%)® o
NEK
Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman) Founder of a discretionary trust 299,759,422 shares (L) 36.57% - Eg
who can influence how the trustee -
exercise his discretion”” 22y
EEELE(FE) AEXTANMITEERBED 299,759,422 (L) EET[
BB EER LAY ey
Beneficial owner?® 1,740,000 shares (L) 0.21% E .
AL 1,740,0000%(L) 2%
CTe
&%
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner® 12,000,000 shares (L) 1.46% é%?”i
& Th&E 2@ 12,000,000 (L)
=
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner® 48,321,000 shares (L) 5.90% 5
EBBEE FHAY 48,321,000 (L) 5
Mr. WU Sigiang Beneficial owner® 725,004 shares (L) 0.09% s
REBAL HaEAY 725,0048%(L) e
Mr. LING Wai Lim Beneficiary of a trust (other than 299,759,422 shares (L) 36.57%
a discretionary interest)®” ]
BRI fERZRA (REEERIN) 299,759,422/ (L) :
Beneficial owner®® 16,000 shares (L) 0.002% =
XA 16,000 (L)
Ms. LI Yijin Beneficial owner” 2,044,000 shares (L) 0.25% Eé
Tt 2 A 2,044,0008&(L) =
¥
e
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Notes:

140

The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company.

Mr. LU Run Ting's interests are consisted of: (i) 299,759,422 shares held by
GIHL. On 8 November 2022, through allotment of shares and conversion of
shares, the 100% control in GIHL is changed from Chairman LU to Golden
Wellness Investment Limited, a company 100% controlled by GLIL » which is
in turn 100% held by Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of
a family trust set up by Chairman LU. This family trust is a discretionary trust.
As the founder of this discretionary trust, Chairman LU can influence how the
trustee exercises his discretion. Accordingly, Chairman LU is still deemed to
be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO; and (ii)
1,740,000 shares held directly by Mr. LU Run Ting as beneficial owner.

Mr. HOU Ping’s interests are consisted of: (i) 300,000 shares issued by options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (this scheme has expired on 3
December 2019) and exercised on 25 August 2015; and (ii) 1,200,000 shares
awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme; (iii) 10,500,000
shares transferred from GIHL on 10 June 2020.

Mr. LU Runyi’s interests are consisted of: (i) 2,120,000 shares and 45,000,000
shares respectively transferred from GIHL on 20 March 2015 and 10 June
2020; (i) 400,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (this scheme has expired on 3 December 2019) and exercised
on 25 August 2015; and (iii) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under
the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. WU Sigiang’s interests are consisted of: (i) 130,000 shares as beneficial
owner; and (i) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share
Award Scheme, and because of the expenses caused by this scheme, 205,996
shares was deducted on 26 November 2019 which was the final vesting date.

Mr. LING Wai Lim’s interests are consisted of: (i) 299,759,422 shares (other
than a discretionary interest) as the beneficiary of the family trust set up by
Chairman LU; and (ii) 16,000 shares as beneficial owner.

Mr. LI Yijin holds 2,044,000 shares as beneficial owner.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of issued shares of the Company was
819,577,000 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022 none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or (c) pursuant to the Model
Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with any
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2022 or as at 31
December 2022.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2022 or as at 31 December 2022 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
of the Company or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended 31
December 2022, no Director had interests in any business apart
from the Company’s business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1)
and (2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), it is
confirmed that the permitted indemnity provision mentioned above
is/was in force for the benefit of the Directors/then Directors of
Company, and the directors/then directors of any of its subsidiaries
when the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance;
and has been in force throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2022, respectively. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association, subject to the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, every Director or other officer or auditor may be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability,
loss or expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or omitted
to be done or alleged to have been done or omitted to be done
by him as an officer or auditor of the Company and in which
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or
incurred in connection with any application in which relief is
granted to him by the court from liability in respect of any such act
or omission.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Incentive Schemes” above.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreement that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares, was entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year 2022.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year 2022 are set out in
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 267 to
272 of this Annual Report.
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NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the
Company of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings
provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition
(as defined in the Prospectus). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have
been complied with by the controlling shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee to the Board and are decided by the
Board, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted one share option scheme and one
share award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and
eligible employees. Details of these schemes are set out in the
paragraph headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 34 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 300 to 301 of this
Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year
2022.

PENSION SCHEMES

The qualifying employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
Chinese mainland are members of the state-managed pension
schemes operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the pension schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes. The Group participates
in Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF"”) schemes for its qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. Under the rules of MPF schemes, the
employer and its employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employee’s salaries, up to a maximum of HKD1,500 per employee
per month. For qualifying employees in other countries, the
local subsidiaries also pays a certain percentage of their payroll
to the legally required pension contributions in accordance with
local laws. The pension contributions paid above are defined
contribution plans, the Group does not have the right to confiscate
the contributions and therefore has no use of the contributions.

Save for the above contributions, the Group does not have any
other major payment obligation in respect of pension benefits.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) and entities had interests or short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Name

# &

Capacity/Nature of Interests

BEME

Number of securities held™

FTERRR QARG M EEH
Rz EBER AR

R2022F12A318 - MEBEBFESHAM - AT
AT (RAREEXESTHRABERIIN K
B REBE(EFLIPEEN) EXVIIE2
NEIDHAETURBESRE(EERTE
1&51) 33615 Bt N AR AIBEFHER
MR- RARRBRMHRBBEROTEEDN

CEET T

Approximate
shareholding
percentage®

FiERsua” BOBRES LY

Interest of Controlled Corporation®
T E R

Cititrust Private Trust
(Cayman) Limited
Spouse®

[

Ms. ZHANG Jian
wiEZ T

Interest of Controlled Corporation
R E R

Agende des participations de
I'Etat (“APE")

Notes:
(1) The letter “L” denotes a person’s long position in the shares of the Company.

(2) 299,759,422 shares are held by GIHL. On 8 November 2022, through
allotment of shares and conversion of shares, the 100% control in GIHL is
changed from Chairman LU to Golden Wellness Investment Limited, a company
100% controlled by GLIL, which is in turn 100% held by Cititrust Private
Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of a family trust set up by Chairman LU.
This family trust is a discretionary trust. As the founder of this discretionary
trust, Chairman LU can influence how the trustee exercises his discretion.
Accordingly, Chairman LU is still deemed to be interested in GIHL's interest in
the Company by virtue of the SFO.

(3) Ms. ZHANG Jian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU's interests in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

(4) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by
Gemplus International S.A. (“GISA"), which is wholly-owned by Gemalto
N.V. (“Gemalto"”). Based on the disclosure of interests forms filled by Thales,
Gemalto is owned by Thales as to 85.51% and Thales is owned by APE as to
35.68%. Therefore, APE is deemed to be interested in GISA's interest in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.

(5) As at 31 December 2022, the number of issued shares of the Company was
819,577,000 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, so far as the
Directors were aware, no other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) or entities had any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company,
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company purchased
8,870,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate price of approximately HKD7,899,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB6,867,000) in order to simplify
the company’s capital structure. The shares were acquired at an
average price of HKD1.54 per share, with prices ranging from
HKD1.28 to HKD1.65. All the shares purchased were cancelled in
November 2022.

EEERE @)

B FXXHE A E20229F12A318 0 BE
EeHA EEMAL (ARFEZTSR
BITHRABRIN REE  BEGEHF KB
EIEF) BXVIBE2RFE3D AT AEE
HIREC(EF R E KO E336MK A 8
RARBEENZEZMBA - RAR GG
NIRRT EBESIAR °

BE LEIBEELHES

REZE2022F12831B L2 EE - ATH
{EERGEE KAAREEEHAEL ST
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The details of the purchase of shares are as follows: BRMDEIEEIBET -
Aggregate
consideration
Highest price Lowest price paid
Number of per share per share (HKD)
shares (HKD) (HKD) CEil
Month purchased BREBESE®R SRREER EXfFHE
B & E RO EHE (B®) (B (B¥)
July 2022 20227 R 916,000 1.65 1.59  1,494,305.16
August 2022 202248 A 2,208,000 1.65 1.54  3,573,463.49
September 2022 202249 A 1,206,000 1.53 1.45 1,810,618.48
October 2022 2022 10H 784,000 1.30 1.28 1,021,005.89
Total &%t 5,114,000 7,899,393.02
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its Ba Fai#ES - A R EN B A 7 R Hf

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

The Directors were of the view that the purchases and subsequent
cancellation of the shares can result in an enhancement of the net
asset value per share and earnings per share and were therefore
beneficial to the company and the shareholders as a whole.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 9.0% (2021: 11.0%) and
approximately 30.3% (2021: approximately 34.9%), respectively,
of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 20.9% (2021: approximately
18.8%) and approximately 53.8% (2021: approximately 51.5%),
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the shares of the Company in issue) had interests in any of
such suppliers and customers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mutual Supply Agreement with Gemalto

The Group has been purchasing certain microprocessors composed
of an electronic component embedding a card operating system,
also known as IC chips (the “Gemalto IC Chips”), from Gemalto
(a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company). On 25 February 2016, the Company,
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited, Goldpac Limited
(the "Goldpac Entities”) entered into a mutual supply agreement
for a term from 1 January 2016 until 31 December 2018 (the
“Mutual Supply Agreement”) with Gemalto, pursuant to which
(i) the Goldpac Entities shall supply to Gemalto with, among
others, products such as banking card modules, cardbody and
personalisation machines, equipment, spare parts and relevant
consumables (the “Supply of Goldpac Products”); and (ii)
Gemalto shall supply to the Goldpac Entities with Gemalto IC
Chips (the “Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips”).
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Mutual Supply Agreement was not renewed upon its expiration
on 31 December 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
both the actual transaction amount in respect of the Supply of
Goldpac Products and the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips amounted
to RMBO. The Supply of Goldpac Products and the Purchase of
Gemalto IC Chips are expected to continue to be conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms, and each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) for such transactions calculated in accordance
with Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules is expected to continue to be
below 0.1% on an annual basis, such transactions, if any, will fall
within the de minimis threshold as stipulated under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules and will be exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

The Contractual Arrangement

According to the section headed “Information on the Contractual
Arrangement” disclosed above, certain transactions contemplated
under the VIE Agreements constitute connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2022.

For the transactions contemplated under the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement, as the Group has discretion to exercise the right
to purchase all or part of the PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest
in the OPCO under the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement,
the acquisition of the right is classified based on the amount of
premium payable by the Group in accordance to Rule 14A.79(2)
of the Listing Rules. As no premium is payable by the Group under
the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, all of the applicable
percentage ratios (other than profits ratio) with reference to the
Exclusive Purchase Option Agreement are less than 0.1%, the
connected transaction contemplated thereunder is fully exempt
under Rule 14A.76(1) (a) of the Listing Rules.

For the transactions contemplated under the Loan Agreement,
as all the applicable percentage ratios (other than profits ratio)
exceed 0.1% but all are less than 5%, the connected transaction
contemplated thereunder is subject to the reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Moreover, the transactions contemplated under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Service Agreement constitute a
continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has
granted, a waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules
from (i) setting a fixed term for each of the VIE Agreements for
a period of not exceeding three years pursuant to Rule 14A.52
of the Listing Rules; and (ii) setting a maximum aggregate annual
cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules for the services
fees payable by the OPCO to the WFOE under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Services Agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors noted that the
transaction amount of the continuing connected transaction was
nil for the year ended 31 December 2022, and accordingly:

(i)  no services have been provided by the Group to the OPCO
under the Exclusive Technological Consultation and Service
Agreement during the year ended 31 December 2022 and no
profit was generated by the OPCO for the year;

(i) no dividends or other distributions were made by the OPCO
to its equity owner, which were not otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to the Group; and

(iii)  no new contract was entered into, renewed nor reproduced
between the Group and the OPCO during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2022 in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued a letter to
the Directors confirming that they have reviewed the Contractual
Arrangement and confirmed that no transaction amount had
been incurred under the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Service Agreement during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that there have been any transactions which (i) have not received
the approval of the Directors; (ii) have not been entered into in
accordance with the relevant VIE Agreements; or (iii) any dividends
or distributions which have been made by the OPCO to the
PRC Equity Owner which have not been otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to the Group. A copy of this letter has
been provided to the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Please also refer to the details set out in the section headed
“Information on Contractual Arrangement” above and the
announcement of the Company dated 8 February 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report, none of the related party transactions
as disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
are subject to annual review, reporting, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement sunder Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has fully complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that was publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
permitted under the Listing Rules since listing of the shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until the date
of this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material events occurred subsequent to 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 19 June 2020. The Board appointed
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new auditor of the Company with
effect from 19 June 2020 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting on 15 May
2023.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in auditor
of the Company in the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out
in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent
as the Model Code for securities transactions of employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company (the "Employees Written Guidelines”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

A\ Al s
TEREABRE

TRERBRER

RAAREBEEERIRERNRENLEER
K o

EESRER NG EEREER LT
) A 7 o IR 4t — (R L

RN RACEEENEREEE -

ARARCERAEMARAM ST mprE
XERTR(TREERTA) Fr<TRIE
X ([=pRlR3)) -

HB2F2FES EFMNRR/ARADK
BT AEERTRIMAE 2 28T AR -

%8 )

WERGERE
ARAERAEEFAERRBEFET
ARTBERH 2 BRFFH -

ERFMEESEMEETERE IBEES
DHERREZE2022F12A31BEZEER
BB TSR -

HYRARERAAHNERHRERNA
MERS ARRCHEMEREERESF
By TE@mES ((BEEE®EES]) %
REEEIE S 2 AT EFEET AR FEAE -
NRAERERERETETARE@ESI
BB ©

EHERERRERAT —B-—FFHK 57

25
=]
= ©
o
aE
o O
(U

Financial

2022
Major Events

Chairman’s
Statement

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Report of

[
v}
c
©
c
=
[
>
o

()
[

=
©
o
o
o

(%)

Financial

Environmental,
Social and

and Analysis

Directors

Management

Governance Report

PEEH

2022 KEF

I S

X

[V
RN

=

T REREEE

ARE

t & &

BE £

R

Y
i

EET




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer and Member of the
Nomination Committee)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. WU Sigiang (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. LING Wai Lim (Senior Vice President)

Ms. LI Yijin (Chief Audit Executive and Company Secretary)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Mr. LAl Tung Kwok (Member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28
to 39 of this Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to 39 of
this Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses
on the Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times
had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of
the Directors is appointed for a term of three years and is subject
to retirement in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three of a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election.

The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that all
Directors appointed by the Directors, either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional director, shall retire at the next following
annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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All Directors have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to corporate culture, policy matters, strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management, environmental and social
responsibilities, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on his or her first appointment to the
Board to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, each of Mr. LU Run
Ting (Chairman), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. LU Runyi, Mr. WU Sigiang,
Mr. LING Wai Lim, Ms. LI Yijin, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE
Lu and Mr. LAI Tung Kwok has read books/journals and attended
relevant training to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and
regulatory update have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the Chairman and members of each board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this Annual
Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to
the Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
and Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review
the annual financial results and the annual report in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2021, the interim results and the
interim report in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2022
and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions,
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties, the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report. The Audit Committee comprises
three members, namely, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of
Audit Committee), Ms. YE Lu and Mr. LAl Tung Kwok.
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The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Remuneration of the Senior Management

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration of the
senior management (other than the Directors) is listed as below by
band:

ERZBENMENTEETESNERT -
BN A AT T MASH -

= A& E HE E /Y N

REE2022F12A31HIEZ2FE - e
BE (BREEIN OFIIZETIRIDT

Number of person

Band of remuneration ¥ B 48 51 A
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR#500,0017TE AR #1,000,0007T 1
Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive £FHZEZ BEDNTELEEENHFMES
and Employees are set out in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial &R ARERT F267E £2728 4548 B 5 5R
Statements on the pages 267 to 272 of this Annual Report. =M .

Remuneration Committee

According to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
relating to Share Scheme, the Company has updated the Terms
of Reference of the Remuneration Committee, and published on
16 December 2022. The primary functions of the Remuneration
Committee include reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration adjustment principle of all employees
as a whole, the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration; approve the new
grant of share award or option, and any changes to terms of the
granted share award or option.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior management,
performance and contributions of the Directors and the senior
management and the change in market conditions.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review
and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
adjustment principle of all employees as a whole, the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company, and the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and other related matters. At
the same time, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
share award scheme and share option scheme which are still in
effect. For the year ended 31 December 2022, no options were
granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme and no shares were granted or agreed to be granted to
any selected participants pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
(2021: Nil). As at the date of this Annual Report, there was no
outstanding option not exercised under the Share Option Scheme.
Currently the Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely, Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of Remuneration Committee),
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin and Mr. LU Run Ting.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take the Board Diversity Policy and Director Nomination
Policy into consideration, to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary. In the case of a candidate for independent
non-executive Director, satisfaction of independent requirements
of the Listing Rules and Policy on Independence of Directors of the
Company is needed. All of these can enhance the effectiveness of
the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.
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In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
Nomination Committee should consider the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to character and integrity, qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy), any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board, independent aspects under the Policy on
Independence of Directors for independent Non-executive Director
and whether the candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules, any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence
and gender diversity, and willingness and ability to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/
or Board committees of the Company.

The Nomination Committee evaluates such candidate (include any
person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company) based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee should rank them by order
of preference based on the needs of the Company and reference
check of each candidate (where applicable), and recommend to the
Board (as applicable).

For the re-election of Director at General Meeting, the Nomination
Committee should review the overall contribution and service to
the Company of the retiring director and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, review and determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the criteria as set out above,
and make recommendation to shareholders. The Nomination
Committee will conduct regular review on the structure, size and
composition of the Board and this Policy and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs.

At the same time, in assessing the board composition, the
Nomination Committee would take into account various aspects
set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and
regional experience. The Nomination Committee would review the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing
for election and to consider and recommend to the Board on
the appointment of independent non-executive Director at the
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained. The Nomination Committee comprises five members
currently, namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE Lu
and Mr. LAl Tung Kwok.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. It aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives that are relevant to
the Company’s business growth.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of
the Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced
diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee is committed to diversity
at all levels and will consider a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, skills, knowledge, industry experience and
professional experience.
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At present, the Board comprises nine members with extensive
experience in the fields of management, banking, law, finance,
sales, operation and government affairs, which provide favourable
support and protection to ensure the good functioning of the
Board. Among them, there are three independent non-executive
Directors, representing one third of the Board. At the same time,
two members of the Board are women, representing a 7:2 ratio of
men to women. As a result of review, the Nomination Committee
considers that the Board Diversity Policy is effective and will
continue to ensure that there is at least one woman on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. At the same time, the
Company will examine such objectives from time to time to review
their appropriateness and effectiveness, and ensure the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

STAFF DIVERSITY

The Company is preparing a staff diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the staff.

The Company has always been committed to promote diversity in
the teams, and is able to achieve through a number of measures.
The Company strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations,
and the code of conduct to prevent discrimination or harassment
has been set out in staff manual. The Company also offers
diversity training to new and old staff and applies the principle
of equal opportunity to all policies related to human resources,
remuneration and benefits, to ensure employment opportunities
for people of all kinds. Any discrimination or harassment against
employees owing to their marital status, pregnancy, disability,
family status, race or gender are prohibited. During the year, our
female employees accounted for approximately 43% of the total
workforce; the senior management consists of one female member
and one male member.

Going forward, the Company will further diversify the staff team
in various aspects, to enhance the Company’s culture in inclusion.
Recently, the Company is establishing the related policies on
eliminating discrimination to help the Company exercise more
comprehensive consideration and judgment in appointment and
promotion. At the same time, the Company is also formulating
measurable goals and will strive to keep the proportion level of
female employees at 40% or above, and the proportion level of
female members in senior management no less than 20%.
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The Company will review the staff diversity policy, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness. At the same time, the Company
will examine such objectives from time to time to review their
appropriateness and effectiveness, and ensure the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing
the suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a
proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity.

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.
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Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings, details are as follows:

(a)

162

Appointment of new director

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the factors as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should rank them by order of preference based
on the needs of the Company and reference check of
each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the
factors as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.
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(b) Re-election of director at general meeting

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the factors as set out
above.

(iii) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at the
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

POLICY ON INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board,
and the sustainable and healthy development, the Company has
adopted Policy on Independence of Directors which assesses the
independence of the Board, particularly independent non-executive
Directors, and deals clearly with the further appointment of the
Independent Non-executive Directors served more than nine years
on the Board.
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The General Principles of Policy on Independence of Directors
for evaluating the independence of independent non-executive
Directors are that independent non-executive Directors should
not have any substantive or material interest with the Group,
the management of the Group or the Controlling Shareholder
of the Group. In assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, Policy on Independence of Directors sets
out factors that the Board should take into account, including but
not limited to the following:

o Stock Ownership Relationship.

o Employment and Compensation Relationship.

o Business Relationship.

o Professional Service Relationship.

o Cross-directorships and Other Links.

o Financial Dependence Relationship.

o Other: notwithstanding the absence of the abovementioned

circumstances, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee will assess the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with
the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Policy on Independence of Directors and the
results were satisfactory.

The Board will review Policy on Independence of Directors, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the CG Code and is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties set out therein.
The Board has reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code for the year ended 31 December 2022 and other legal and
regulatory requirements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends, it aims to provide the shareholders with stable and
sustainable returns. According to the Dividend Policy, the Company
intends to distribute no less than 20% of its annual net profits
as dividends to its shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board will depend on the financial results, cash flow
situation, business conditions and strategies, future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and expenditure plans, interests of
shareholders, any restrictions on payment of dividends and any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant, to propose and/
or declare dividends during a financial year and any final dividend
for a financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of
the biography of the company secretary of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of
this Annual Report. Ms. LI confirmed that she took no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in the year ended 31
December 2022 as required by the Listing Rules.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EENZEERKEMNHFER

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

%

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board &SI EEZLERNTREE2022412A31
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company HIFZHFERBITHNEES ZTE@@23H
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the REEASHHEREMNTERAT
table below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERY, SRR
Annual

Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EspL E¥g REZES ¥MEES BEREEE RRBEFXE
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. LU Run Ting 4/4 I7Al IVl N/A I7Al
EEELE
Mr. HOU Ping 4/4 11 N/A N/A 11
7= FrAE
Mr. LU Runyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A I7Al
EEREE
Mr. WU Sigiang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
;%/%\gﬁ%i
Mr. LING Wai Lim 4/4 N/A N/A N/A I7Al
ERREE
Ms. LI Yijin 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171
=HELTL
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUKHTES
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin 4/4 11 11 2/2 11
BERREE
Ms. YE Lu 4/4 I7Al IVl 2/2 1Al
E gut
Mr. YANG Geng (Note 1) 3/3 17 N/A 11 17
B BEREWET)
Mr. LAl Tung Kwok (Note 2) 171 N/A N/A 11 N/A
RRB ST E (H572)
Note 1: Mr. YANG Geng retired as an Independent Non-executive Director on 17 May Hiaz1 : BELEAE 202258178 EEB I IERNTTH

2022.

TESE-

Note 2: Ms. LAl Tung Kwok was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director Hit2 - BRIRE S £ 2022F 5 A17 B ES T AV~ 3E

on 17 May 2022, so he just attended one Board meeting and one audit
committee meeting during the year 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of executive Directors during the year 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 176 to 187 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB1,377,000 and
RMB402,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set
out below:

ERERKRE (@)

BTEENESZEE N2022FEF T
MBI TEET AR TRBENTESH
fﬂﬁ;;m"

ESHUBERROBE

EFEHEREMNBREEAR QR EE2022F12
A31BLZ2FEHBERENBE

BEEUNANEALMF AT B NCIESH
%W%%ﬂ*WEXE&WEW&ERW
ERTHERR -

B B S AR BT B B TS R E
MR E RN RN FR 2B L ZBEDRE S
176 B £187H °

BT AVEN =

S FARRBINEZEATE B E E2022F
128318 1L 2 FEMWZ BRI & IEZEUR
HzE s Bl A ARE1,377,000c AR
#402,0007T °

S F ARG INEZEAN R ok iE g s
BB BB E E2022612A318 12 4F
[ H AR M I BRTE 2 Bl & &9 5 47 40
T

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category REEE Bt ERER

RMB

NG

Audit Services ZE R 1,377,000
Non-audit Services IEZEB R

— Interim review — R IR R 402,000

1,779,000

SHEEEERERAT —Bo—FFHK 16/

[
2§
o=
= ©
o
o E
50
(U

Financial

2022
Major Events

2022F KRF&L

©n
©
€
©
<
(@]

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Report of

(]
5]
C
©
c
£
@
>
5]
(V)
)
g
@
5]
=
5]
19}

Financial

Environmental,
Social and

9]
IS
9]
g
©
v

and
EREFNRED

Management

Directors

Report

EERARSE

Governance Report

IRIE - £

DA

I+ REAR
JE S

=
=

ERERERE

AlRE

T
=

t &)

& 3R 4
I

EEE




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERME |

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for continually
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
system and reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance role in the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance, risk management and internal
controls and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit
functions.

Risk Management Structure

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined level of responsibility and reporting procedures. The Board
oversees the overall management of Group’s risks, with assistant
from the Audit Committee on reviewing and monitoring key risks.
Management is responsible for designing and implementing the
risk management and internal control system. Management is
also committed to fostering a risk aware and control conscious
environment. Operating units are responsible for the identification
and management of risks in their operations and a comprehensive
approach is adopted for enterprise-wide risk. Responsibility for risk
management resides at all levels within the Group, from the Board
through the organisation to each manager and employee.

The Group’s risk management framework is guided by the Three
Lines of Defense model as shown below:

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Bz

GROUP
MANAGEMENT

SEEERE

1ST LINE OF DEFENSE
E—EHR

2ND LINE OF DEFENSE
FEER AR
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Risk Management Framework

EREB®RE 1)

2 B B Y A

=
S Eu
The Group has in place a risk management framework to & EEY TR EIBIE G W R - 5 SEgd
effectively identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key business,  {&  Ji & A0 &% 42 IK%% B B -
financial, operational, compliance and environment, social and & KIRHE - LS REARK - 2 EA e
governance risks. The framework enables the Group to adopt a & EIR M — (@M Z 458 7 5= B g5k
proactive and systematic approach to identifying and managing &IEEK - LA NI GEB RS MR A s
risks across the organisation to evaluate risk severity and likelihood M & - @R ZPEETE T EBHNER 20
of occurrence. The framework also sets out the procedures of risk &2 HF2 E)EJEET ZEPIERREE TE NE?
management and clarifies the roles and responsibilities of various HaBEEFE S T R Sy
departments in relation to risk management. =8
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The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the ZAEBEHREBREEEZSFETEZOER ;:g%

core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, ™ o & BP9 3548 i i 5 N2 5T i 7] B $f = Ak

the respective operating units of the Company review and access
the status of potential risks which may impact on their ability
to achieve their business objectives and/or those of the Group,
determine and implement treatment plans where risk mitigations
are actionable. This review process includes assessment as to
whether the existing internal controls continue to remain relevant,
adequately address potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance to relevant accounting standards
and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may
impact the Group’s performance are appropriately identified
and managed. The system and internal controls can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, as they are designed to be managed, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

A description of the Group’s main risk factors is shown on pages
99 to 127 of this Annual Report. The Group continuously works
to improve its risk management framework in order to keep pace
with the changing business environment.

Internal Control

Internal Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the
Group's risk management and internal control system. Internal
Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee to
ensure identified internal control weaknesses are communicated
and rectified effectively.

Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-oriented audit approach.
The annual audit plan covers major activities and processes of
the Group’s compliance, financial, procurement, operations and
environment, social and governance. On a regular basis, Internal
Audit Department reports to the Audit Committee the results
of their activities during the preceding period pertaining to the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, and follows up the
progress of rectification for control weaknesses.

The Group has established and oversees a whistleblower policy and
a set of comprehensive procedures whereby employees, customers,
suppliers and other concerned parties can report any actual or
suspected occurrence of improper conduct involving the Company,
and for such matters to be investigated and dealt with efficiently
in an appropriate and transparent manner.

The Company formulated the insider information policy and
regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the insider information. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.
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The Board reviews annually the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. During the year, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources
of environmental, social and governance performance and report,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The key areas of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are effectively implemented, thus the Board and the Audit
Committee considered the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are effective and sufficient.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also assessed
the adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. The external
auditor’'s recommendations also provide enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made
the requisition (as the case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and
568 respectively of the Companies Ordinance. The general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting must be stated
in the request. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for convening a
general meeting.
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Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders; or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting,
may request to circulate a resolution to be moved at an Annual
General Meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor

Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Center

No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: +852 2834 6759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders’ communications policy
("Shareholders’ Communication Policy”), and commits
to maintain on-going and effective communication with its
shareholders. The Board attaches a high degree of importance to
continuous communication with shareholders, and firmly believes
that effective learning of shareholders’ views and needs will help
the Company to develop and improve its future development
strategy.

In additional to the direct dialogue with shareholders at
the Company’s annual general meeting, the Company also
communicates actively with the investment community in the
forms of meetings, conferences, roadshows, and one-to-one
communication. During the pandemic, the Company has adjusted
the mode of convening the annual general meeting flexibly,
ensuring effective communication with shareholders while
complying with the Companies Ordinance and other applicable
disease prevention regulations as well as the requirements of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

In order that shareholders can have a better understanding of the
agenda items to be discussed at the annual general meeting and to
encourage their active participation so that exchange of views and
communication can be further enhanced, the Company has always
provided detailed information on the annual general meeting
in a circular to shareholders which will include introduction to
the proposed resolutions to be approved at the annual general
meeting, information on the retiring Directors who are eligible
for re-election, as well as information on voting, live webcast (if
applicable) and other issues relating to the annual general meeting
voting.

All the Board members were present at the Company’s 2021
annual general meeting held on 17 May 2022 at Room 1301,
13th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre No. 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Representatives of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, being the auditor of the Company, and
Mayer Brown, being the legal advisor of the Company, were also
present at the Company’s 2021 annual general meeting to respond
to enquiries raised by shareholders.
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Apart from the Shareholders’ Communications Policy, the
Company’s investor relations also follows investor relations
management system, and communicates with existing and
potential investors of the Company’s securities, analysts and
securities market professionals in meetings, conferences and
road-shows to enhance their knowledge and understanding of the
Company’s development and strategies, aiming to provide clear
and timely information that is reasonably required for them to
make a fair investment decision. These discussions generally involve
public information, including disclosed financial information and
historical data, markets and product strategies, business strengths
and weaknesses, growth opportunities and threats. Any topic
will be discussed so long as it is not considered to be material
non-public information.

The Shareholders’ Communications Policy will be reviewed by
the Board annually to ensure effectiveness. During the year, the
Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders” Communications Policy by receiving an annual work
report from the Company’s Investor Relations, and reviewed it
with the Internal Control Department, confirming that the Policy
continues to be effective. For the year under review, the Board was
of the view that such policy remained sufficient and effective in
that:

(i) affected by the COVID-19 epidemic, the Company adopted
flexible communication modes. During the year, the
Company conducted briefings via teleconferences and
network broadcast with analysts and the press to apprise
them of the Company’s strategy implementation, operating
results, business development and outlook as well as to
answer their questions;

(ii) the company conducted one-to-one communication with
major institutional shareholders and potential shareholders
via email, teleconferences, and communication software and
platforms;

(iii)  the company published latest information of the Group
on its official website and financial investment platforms,
including financial results and reports, announcements and
circulars.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Company can collect investors’ opinions,
understand the market expectations and assist in the Company’s
strategic formulation. The consistent innovative practices
and market recognition from the capital market promote the
improvement of investor relations practices. In future, the
Company would improve the multiple communication mechanism,
connect with global investors and keep a good transparency in
information disclosure.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year 2022, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B R &

i
pwec

To the Shareholders of Goldpac Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Goldpac Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 188 to 311, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OPINION (continued)
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

. Write-down of inventories to net realisable values

o Impairment assessment of trade receivables
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % E R E (#)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FERETTEE W

Write-down of inventories to net realisable values

BEFEERRFE

Refer to notes 2.15, 4(a) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BRREEMBERERMFE2.15 ~ 4(a)F120 °

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
Group's inventories amounted to RMB362,621,000 (2021:
RMB286,921,000), after considering of a write-down
of inventories to net realisable value of RMB68,266,000
(2021: RMB46,260,000).

2022F12A318 - HBRBEFEZAIZR FEN S
% AR #68,266,0007T (20219F : AR ﬁ@46,260,000
) BEEENTFSEEREEERAKRK362,621,0007T
(20214 : AR¥286,921,0007T) °
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Our procedures in relation to the write-down of
inventories to net realisable values included:

BB FEEAZRFECREFEE

— We obtained an understanding of
management’s internal controls and process
of the write-down of inventories to net
realisable values and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

— HMTHMTEEEHRLEEEZAEEFEN
WEREHIANEAR - WiBEE BT AT HEE It
MEMEFRBREZNRZEHMEMRLE T8

M B2NZRERBIEREIMF HE
AR B A R B 1T R A o

— We understood, evaluated and tested key
controls over the write-down of inventories to
net realisable values.

— EMTH FEMARATERRLEFEZRRN#
IRFE R RESR G

— We understood the basis of the write-down
of inventories to net realisable values and
evaluated the appropriateness of the basis
adopted.

— HEMEBTREFEERFAERFEMER I
A TR ERERNSEN



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B ZEHRE (&)

B ESTEE W)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable values
(Continued)
BEFEZASEFE (E)

Management estimated net realisable values based on
ageing of inventories, current market price and estimated
future market demand. Such estimation required the use
of significant judgment and key assumptions which take
into consideration of historical sales records, utilisation
records, ageing and expectations for future sales orders.
Such judgment was subject to uncertainties as a result of
future changes in market trends and customer demands
ERERBEFEREK EMmBERNMEFTARAKTS
KGRI E IR FE - L%ﬁJHEEQEEMMwﬂ%
RER SLHABMBRERTELHELHE EHK
BoBRERMAREETENTER -ARTSBENER
FREVRRE L - BEHEFETEEL -

Our procedures in relation to the write-down of
inventories to net realisable values included: (Continued)

BMEREFEEAERFELEFEE  (B)

—  We tested the accuracy of the inventories
ageing report on a sample basis by tracing to
the purchase invoices and delivery documents;

— BMERBEERNIERFETHERS U
AT ERRE W& H) ERENE -

— We tested key assumptions used in the
assessment process, including expectations for
future sales orders by tracing to the related
source documents, such as the historical sales
records and usage records.

— HMEFAEBAETEANERRR (BEYER
KHEFTENTEY) BEMEELHE RER
0 B IR ST ETT ORI -

— On a sample basis, we examined the
subsequent requisition documents of raw
materials to test the subsequent utilisation of
raw materials.

— BMWmETEMESSERBERE ISR
HeVH R ERBR

— On a sample basis, we examined the
subsequent selling invoices to check if any
significant differences between the estimated
selling prices and subsequent actual selling
prices.

— FHMMETHRHEEET  UNEHMEFANHEE
BREZENERHEBERZAREREERX
ZR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % E R E (#)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FERETTEE W

Write-down of inventories to net realisable values
(Continued)
B FEZERFE (&)

We focused on this area because of the significance
of the inventories balance in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and significant judgments were
involved in estimating the net realisable values of
inventories

HREEEGEVBRRTFERBELREN L ARG
BREA E’J—I ARFES R EARHE - BT UAEHRL -
7180  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022

Our procedures in relation to the write-down of
inventories to net realisable values included: (Continued)

BMYEREFEEAERFELRFEE  (B)

— We assessed the reasonableness and the
accuracy of the estimated costs to completion,
other costs necessary to make the sale and the
related taxes by comparing with the historical
costs to completion, other costs necessary to
make the sale and the related taxes for the
similar inventories.

— BMEBRTKESLKAS  ETHEMTHNE
A AR A R OUF SR BT B - &Y
ETRATHRAN  ETHEMTNEMLER
RAER B S B IEFMERME

—  We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of the write-down of inventories to
net realisable values.

— BMARATREEE
AEREM o

S ERERFEAENHE

Based on our work performed, we considered the
judgments and estimates made by management in
relation to their write-down of inventories to net
realisable values to be supportable.
BRI THE BMRAREEBRATUIS

B HRRFEEE Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂlﬂjﬁ’]#%ﬁﬂ{ﬁﬁr



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

P& W & R 18 FF A

Refer to notes 2.13(d), 2.16, 3.1(b), 4(b) and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FER2REGAMERRMFE2.13(d) ~ 2.16 ~ 3.1(b) * 4(b)#0
21 °

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had gross trade
receivables of RMB345,271,000 (2021: RMB347,374,000)
against which expected credit loss (“ECL") provision of
RMB4,949,000 (2021: RMB5,035,000) were made. ECL
provision for impairment losses on trade receivables was
made using simplified approach.

M2022F 128310 AEEHNEREREERARK
345,271,0007T (20214 = A R #347,374,0007T) * &4
ERNTEBEEEERRAKRK4L949,0007T (20214 : A
R #5,035,0007T) © [EWE FILIREG S REL T IRIBEERE o

B ZEHRE (&)

B ESTEE W)

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

B EREFRENE 22T EE -

We obtained an understanding of
management’s internal control and assessment
process of the provision for impairment of
trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors, such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.
BAPTHTEEBHEREROBREFEOA
BT EBIE - WBIBE RGO THETE
MAMEMEAEREZORE I MEREE - =
Bt BENSXERBEFEHERNCNGE 9
B WA E A R EITRE

We understood, evaluated and tested the key
controls that the Group has implemented over
trade receivables portfolio grouping and ECL
determination.

BT FENRETESEHERKERAE
BNAMEBRERBRETHBRIES -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % E R E (#)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BERETEE W

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Continued)
FE W & FORE R 14 (&)

The approach was assessed based on the provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar
credit risk characteristics, with consideration of their
corresponding estimated default rates and loss rates,
together with the forward-looking information.
FTIRAERENBEER  BAKAGHEUGHRRY
BHEBEBASHE WEBREMENMGTTELERMIE
KE - PARATE NS SR AR

Management used estimations and judgments to estimate
default rates and loss rates by making reference to
the credit rating given by external ranking agency and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.
ERERE2ZIMTARBLEENERATIRNEHELR
BERBEREZNAEEES ARG MA G RETED
EMBERE
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included: (Continued)

BPEEKREFRENEZEFEHE  (B)

— We evaluated the reasonableness of the
judgment that management made in grouping
various debtors by assessing credit risk
characteristics.

— HfBBAAEERARER FHTEREY
FEREBADHARETHABRNSEN -

—  We evaluated the reliability of the key data
input to calculate estimated default rate,
including related credit rating and current
status of each portfolio, trade receivables
lifetime recovery information and other relevant
data.

—  FHMFETARBEBERANAENE  AtER
TR X BIEAEE R RN S EE YK
FTAEHE AR BRERNFERALKE
BUA K H Ao 48 B B -

— We understood and evaluated the
reasonableness of the factors used in making
forward-looking estimation, including changes
of future economics, GDP growth rate forecast
and market environment.

— BN THYTETARETIEEGTNEE
WalElt SUERBRARKLELSE - GDP
BRERFEBMMISZIREN S o

— On a sample basis, we tested the accuracy
of the ageing analysis of trade receivables by
tracing to the relevant supporting documents,
including the sales invoice.

— BMNBAEBHERHEERRTEANZRAXMY
ORI T FE W B KBRS ATV EREIE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B ZEHRE (&)

FARETEEw

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Continued)
FE W & FORUE R 14 ()

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
the trade receivables and the assessment of the ECL
provision involved significant accounting estimations and
judgments.
HREKEFEHEEEESEENABERHAGEES
BRENGRIRERAGMGE - BB TIAEE
BAE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included: (Continued)

BPYHRRERREN G ZREFRE  (8)

— We obtained ECL determination documents
of each portfolio of trade receivables and
examined their mathematical accuracy.

— HMNGEEKERSESHTEREEBIETE
Xt BERHAEOERLE -

— On a sample basis, we also tested the
subsequent settlement of trade receivables
after 31 December 2022 by tracing to the
related supporting documents including the
bank receipts.

—  BAWMERE T RITEGKE EAMERE MK
Efiéﬁ@mniuﬂmamﬁw S R HI R
W WHIER

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the judgment and estimates adopted by
management in determining the expected credit
losses of the trade receivables were supported by the
obtained evidence.

REBMATHRERF  RMRREEEEERIER
MEBMEEEESIRAN B MEGAIAKRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % E R E (#)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

184 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B Z R (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is YAO WenPing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SAdE T
==

Ht 2w WA &

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z=2022F12A831H L2 FE

2021
Notes RMB’'000
k=3 ARET T

Revenue /PN 5 1,530,251 1,376,524
Cost of sales HE R A 8 (1,127,115) (972,382)
Gross profit EF 403,136 404,142
Other income H b A 6 49,169 46,297
Other gains/(losses) — net HEfezs  (EE) — %5 7 47,889 (8,432)
Research and development expenses A 2% i A< 8 (112,955) (120,502)
Selling and distribution expenses HEKRDHER 8 (172,822) (126,500)
Administrative expenses THRX 8 (41,623) (40,499)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade & Ut & BB B 18 # [

receivables 169 1,806
Impairment loss on amount due JE UL B & N Rl R TE 2

from an associate VBB B 25 (394) (590)
Finance costs — net WBRA — % 9 (8,499) (783)
Profit before income tax B Fir 18 Bt B % R 164,070 154,939
Income tax expense Fri5 i & A 12 (3,091) (16,988)
Profit for the year FEFE 160,979 137,951
Other comprehensive income/(expense) & £ fth 2 mH

for the year WA (%)
Item that may be subsequently A REIE B H I E 1R

reclassified to profit or loss: ZIHE -

— exchange differences arising on — BREBINEBESE

translation of foreign operations H [ = A 5,709 (2,283)

Total comprehensive income FE2EWAARE

for the year 166,688 135,668
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

GhEEEREMEZEWA X @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #(ZE2022F12A3181E2FE

2021 e
Notes RMB’000 B EX
ot ARBT T Sed
Profit/(loss) for the year R A5 A (B54R) - St
attributable to: £55
Owners of the Company NATEB A 147,427 138,184
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR A 13,552 (233) o
NEK
160,979 137,951 <o
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEEE2EmWA S (EE) é ?‘
attributable to: 4aFE st
Owners of the Company RABEE A 153,136 135,901 oo
Non-controlling interests FEP A RE 25 13,552 (233) s
166,688 135,668
£
Earnings per share (sHi g 13 5
— Basic (RMB cents) — EXN(ARES) 18.1 16.8 -
— Diluted (RMB cents) — B8 (ARES) 18.1 6.8 5 m
R
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other — Lilt4R& 855 & H fth % H Y A 5K FE B2 1% [ Eas
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the M —FFEI:E - géf_
accompanying notes. s i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R AR R &

At 31 December 2022 12022412 A31H

2021
Notes RMB’000
ok AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 15 312,722 413,365
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 16 32,896 37,825
Investment property KEY 17 192,436 50,997
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 37 25,946 7,694
Other receivables H b fE Yk 24 84,500 —
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 26 219,841 211,916
Fixed bank deposits R1TE HF R 26 126,500 102,975
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 994,841 824,772
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 20 362,621 286,921
Trade receivables FEU & = 21 340,322 342,339
Contract assets SEHEE 23 10,637 14,054
Other receivables and prepayments L JE U0 TE AR 24 102,587 43,006
Financial assets at fair value BRALBETABZR
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ZEMEE(AR
BEFAER]) 22 — 180,205
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 26 7,112 7,294
Fixed bank deposits R1TE BT 26 368,143 594,630
Cash and cash equivalents HEe RIS ZEEY 26 627,594 316,744
Total current assets MENEEEE 1,819,016 1,785,193
Total assets EEHR 2,813,857 2,609,965
EQUITY ERRFEE
Share capital & 7 33 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves & 864,563 815,049
Equity attributable to owners NAFHER ANE(LE=
of the Company 2,056,925 2,007,411
Non-controlling interests FE5E IS E 25 13,638 1,194
Total equity RSB 2,070,563 2,008,605
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
trE B IS AR R R (&)

At 31 December 2022 202212 A31H

2021
Notes RMB’000
J/okza AREFIT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 2,991 7,221
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIEE & 31 33,397 27,453
Total non-current liabilities EmEaERRE 36,388 34,674
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables ENERRENEE 27 336,693 422,506
Contract liabilities EMEE 29 177,298 28,053
Other payables H A FE - 5K 30 114,559 87,710
Bank borrowings RITER 28 44,818 —
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 5,883 7,107
Income tax payables A TS HR 27,655 21,310
Total current liabilities mEBEARE 706,906 566,686
Total liabilities BELE 743,294 601,360
Total equity and liabilities EZHEEHEE 2,813,857 2,609,965
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 188 to 311 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

EFE52 0 N2023F3F21BEERTBBESE
188E E31MEL AU BIRERAEAM - WA

March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: LTEEeREREE g
5 0l
LU RUN TING HOU PING é?ﬁ
ERE &F O
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
EFRFERNTEE HITEEREENTE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MERZBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ZE2022F12A31HIEZFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

L LN T
Shares
held under ~ Exchange Non-
Share sharesaward translation Other  Statutory Retained controlling
capital scheme reserves reserves reserves earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Rk
2B:ra

B BERG  ENBE  ApEE  iERE  AORAR £ FERER fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET: ARETR ARET:R
(Note i) (Note i)
(Wti) i)

At 1 January 2021 R01F1R18 1,192,362 (13,516) (1.03) 108,440 172,655 537,191 1,996,109 1,427 1,997,536
Profit(loss) for the year EEHA/ (B8 = - - - — 138,184 138,184 (233) 131,91
Other comprehensive expense EREMEARY

for the year - - (2,283) - - - (2,283) — (2.283)

Total comprehensive (loss)income ~ £E 2 (55%) /

for the year WABE - = (2,283) = = 138,184 135,901 (233) 135,668
Repurchase of shares RhEE = = = = = (12,661) (12,661) - (12,661)
Dividends recognised as PERE (Hit14)

distribution (Note 14) - — - — - (111,938) (111.938) - (111.938)

- - - - - (124,599) (124,599) - (124,599)
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12A318 1,192,362 (13,516) (3,306) 108,440 172,655 550,776 2,007,411 1,194 2,008,605
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

SREZEE R E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #(ZE2022F12A31HIEZ2FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LOEE LN L 3
Shares
held under ~ Exchange Non-
Share shares award translation Other  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital scheme reserves reserves reserves earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Rk
RBa

BE  BERG  ER@E  AbEE
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBIODO  RWB'0D

ARBTT  ARETR ARETL ARETR

EERE  RAENE ait  FERER ait
RMBOOO  RMB0OD  RMBOOO  RMB'OOD  RMB'000
ARBIT  ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR

(Note i) (Note i
(Witi) (i)
At 1 January 2022 #2022%1818 1,192,362 (13,516) (3,306) 108,440 172,655 550,776 2,007,411 1,194 2,008,605
Profit for the year EEFHE - - - - - 147,421 147,427 13,552 160,979
Other comprehensive expense EREB2ERR
for the year - - 5,709 - - - 5,709 - 5,709
Total comprehensive income ERREMAES
for the year - - 5,709 - - 147,421 153,136 13,552 166,688
Repurchase of shares (Note 33) R EE (233) - - - - - (6,867) (6,867) - (6,867)
Dividends recognised as distribution 7k & (473t 14)
(Note 14) - - - - - (97,008) (97,008) — (97,008)
Transaction with non-controlling ~ E3HERER T
interest (Note 42) 25 (W) — - - 253 - - 253 (1,108) (855)
- - - 253 - (103,875)  (103,622) (1,108)  (104,730)
At 31 December 2022 20225127318 1,192,362 (13,516) 2,403 108,693 172,655 594,328 2,056,925 13638 2,070,563
Notes: Vs
(i) Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory reserves (i) HibREREERHEE AR T SE AN
and retained earnings into capital of subsidiaries, contribution from a BRAREAR BREHLE  HERAESEMRE
shareholder and share of other reserves of associates and amounts arising BAR IR MERETRIETGE R L
from transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of EFHIEN S EER AR o
control.
There was capitalisation of statutory reserves into capital of a subsidiary of the E/‘2011¢ EEFBHERE R RAR AN B
Company, Goldpac Limited, in 2011. NAEBEERAANER ©
There was a transaction with non-controlling interest of a subsidiary of the 120224 - 2 [} B A FlSecureTech Holdings
Company, SecureTech Holdings Limited, in 2022. Limited ) FEIEIRIRFEATR S ©
(ii) Under the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), (i) BEFEARLNE ((HE]) WBBEER &
certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in the PRC are required FTRABKZZARARZHB ARG TIREETE
to make appropriation to the statutory reserves at 10% of their profit after tax B 7% ¥R 2k B BR B 1R F FB B910% a1 1205 E
based on their statutory financial statements until their statutory reserves reach B HAEFEHEERERAES50% © 5205 E
50% of their share capital individually. The statutory reserves may only be FHEREeESDE@EIMMEERE S TR AR B®
used, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses ZEMB AR R EEEEMEER - [RE
or to increase the capital of those subsidiaries. Except for those subsidiaries AEENHB AT HRA—XFAFEENU
with losses during the year, an eligible subsidiary of the Company had made BIEEIRREHNEAEHE  EFE— SR
enough appropriation to the statutory reserves during previous years and no
further appropriation required.
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  _Filt4R& fEas 8 )3k fE /& fFE— BIsE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mMERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{ZE2022F12A31HIEZFE

2021
Notes RMB’000
k=3 ARET T
Cash flows from RETHEEZ
operating activities ReRE
Cash generated from operations KEEFAEIRE 32 44,172 9,897
Income tax paid BB (9,054) (14,647)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KETEEEL (A2
operating activities BEFE 35,118 (4,750)
Cash flows from RETBHEEZ
investing activities ReRE
Redemption of financial assets BREA R BES AR
at FVTPL ZETREE 181,467 536,859
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits ERRITERFER 1,028,419 1,401,998
Withdrawals of pledged bank deposits #2EE IR 1T1F X - 133,965
Increase in amount due from an JE LS B 2 /N R FRIE HE A0
associate (394) (590)
Placement of fixed bank deposits FHRBEITEHER (829,845) (1,309,221)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL ~ BE B iR A 4 BEGT AB%=
ZETREE - (455,000)
Placement of pledged bank deposits 1 2 HE R 1TF K = (182,958)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE WEER
equipment (66,961) (81,686)
Interest received =Y F B 24,326 31,378
Net cash inflow from investing RETHELERSFHE
activities 337,012 74,745
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RERERER @

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #(ZE2022F12A31HIEZ2FE

2021

Notes RMB000 g
ot ARBT T S
Cash flows from METBHEEZ o
financing activities HEeERE £
Draw down of bank borrowings IREVIRITIE X 140,664 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (96,000) - =
Interest paid for bank borrowings S ERITERFE (2,166) _ Q% <
Principal elements of lease payments (EEHEBEZ AL I D (6,028) (5,371) "8y
Payments for shares bought back B& 15 [o] B (6,867) (12,661) -
Repayment of interest portion of BEHEEEZMNET D 22
leases liabilities (593) (782) £ %lf
Dividends paid to the Company’s % B X 1 ch
shareholders (97,008) (111,938) B
Transactions with non-controlling BEIE IR IR R AR 5 ° =
interests (855) - g 2R
Net cash outflow from financing BETEFFABR S FHE 2 S
activities (68,853) (130,752) 5 i
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBESEEYHEM g
and cash equivalents ORd) B8 303,277 (60,757) o gl
Cash and cash equivalents at the FOReRBESEFEY o B
beginning of the financial year 316,744 376,578 § i
Effects of exchange rate changes on  [EXE8H R4 RIS 5 -
cash and cash equivalents ﬁ{fﬁ@ﬁ’],@ =L 7,573 923 "
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY %%L
at the end of the year 627,594 316,744 gé 2
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRReEEYEER -
and cash equivalents 2 -
Bank balances and cash RITERLREE 438,003 252,490 géﬁ
Fixed bank deposits which matured 316 A A2 BRI EY R 1T E HR g5
within three months ey 189,591 64,254 B
627,594 316,744
o g%
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in L il4R & 3R & it & &% i S21% MY Bif 5 — 01 B3 ééj%
conjunction with the accompanying notes. i o §
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

196

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are to engage in embedded software and secure payment
products for smart secure payment and provision of data
processing services, digital equipment, system platform,
Artificial Intelligence (A.l.) self-service kiosks and other total
solutions for customers in a wide business range including
financial, government, healthcare, transportation and retails
by leveraging innovative financial technology (“Fintech”).

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office is Room
1301, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Center,
No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Cititrust
Private Trust (Cayman) Limited, the trustee of a family
trust established by Mr. Lu Run Ting (the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company). The ultimate controlling
party of the Company is Mr. Lu Run Ting.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2 EEEFHEX

Corporate

2.1 (RBEER

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (“Companies Ordinance”). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and requirements
of the Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

AEBZEAVBERRTIIZR
NaBEGMAERMLE
BB RE LR REB(RAF
By (K2 AERHID)) F6228 &
KEVE RS - WO - &R
EHMBBRREHEBTEHAER
ZBERAREZ ETARR (L
WA RCABEDD) ERey
HEERE -

BRRLERBEHHRARAE
BEFfEzemI A WK
R AaMBER
T RE L A B BL

RENEETEVBHREERD
MBHRAFTEERETHRS
AtEE - ENTEEEREER
RAEENEtREBREFRT
£ E A - % K= E R H X
BEEMENESE P RY
HAVBREFELERERM
ARF S - M EATRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B SRR MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2

198

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time for accounting periods
beginning on 1 January 2022:

o COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions —
Amendments to HKFRS 16

o Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use — Amendments to HKAS 16

o Reference to the Conceptual Framework —
Amendments to HKFRS 3

o Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract —
Amendments to HKAS 37

o Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020, and

o Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations
(AG5)

The application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs and HKASs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance for the current and prior years and on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.3 EEM{EE RHA2023F
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HARBERE  RKEBP

2.3 New standards and interpretations
that have been issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year

Highlights

Financial

beginning on or after 1 January 2023 #1712 B 4R y{
and have not been early adopted by %1
the Group =g
Effective for é?
accounting 58 =
periods beginning She

on or after
FEHMEMK =

B2 BER

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 January 2023

Management Discussion

3=k M BEHREERE1TRZER] 2023F1H1H
Classification of Liabilities as Current ~ Amendments to HKAS 1 1 January 2023
or Non-current BRI ERFE1RZER] 20231818 5 w
MBS IEREB B END IR ég*ﬁ
Disclosure of Accounting Policies Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 1 January 2023 Esx
BIFBERIE Practice Statement 2 2023F181H b
BESHEANEIRRBEHBRE R g2
AIERBRA22EET -
Definition of Accounting Estimates Amendments to HKAS 8 1 January 2023 "
EERERE BERGHERESH 2 1EF] 2023F1A1H _ 5=
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Amendments to HKAS 12 1 January 2023 2o e
Liabilities arising from a Single EAEGIEAFE125% 2 EFT 2023%1A1H o 2
Transaction S8g+
HE -RHEANEEMBEHEBEN ST
RIETR I8 -
Classification by the Borrower of HK Int 5 (2020) 1 January 2023
a Term Loan that Contains a BBIRIE QS $E55% (2020%F) 20231 A1H 5oe
Repayment on Demand Clause g%f
B RA BB 1R E KE KGR EH =
ERH D
Sale or Contribution of Assets Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10 To be determined g
between an Investor and its BB EAF28R R BEBU B RmELE CENa g u
Associate or Joint Venture BIZE105% 2 & 5T b 5
BREEZABEAARS L AT ZEM 2w
BEHEITE 2 <

These standards, amendments or interpretations are not
expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable

future transactions.
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2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of
financial position respectively.
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2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

Financial

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share

(b) BEE L TF

B NRIEAEBEEET
FERNTEMmES %M%E
SRR S 2 B -

%Wil%ﬁzo%ISO%
MEERE - HHERFZ
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Management Discussion

of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the KEHHWEREBZBFPT fin
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share {EEH D 5B R ANE B fE H th

of movements in other comprehensive income 2 E WA R RER E’JE%EZTX

of the investee in other comprehensive income. ﬁﬁﬁ‘jﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁl&)\

Dividends received or receivable from associates
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.
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Environmental,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the $%@E@ﬁﬂ,ﬁ;—t@72?ﬁ S
Group and its associates are eliminated to the MAER WD IREFBE X go’;
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. EEEARE T LAY -

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the ;Rgiﬁ;gﬂéjj‘%ugﬁﬁ g
transaction provides evidence of an impairment MIEX SR B IEHERT S
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of EENEELIRBME- - #& %gl
equity-accounted investees have been changed HEAERIEENEHED ig‘m
where necessary to ensure consistency with the BEDEHKNE LR § y
policies adopted by the Group. ENEBERKRE —2 - S

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.12.
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2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

()

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of Goldpac
Group Limited.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.
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2.5 ¥ S/t

2.5 Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.

AEBRBBESEASHA
XBatt AR THedCeE
ERGTAgEMEE -BE

Financial

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a —XHBAREENHEEE §§N

subsidiary comprises the: S

e fair values of the assets transferred; s MMEBEEENLAAEME: S
o
&a

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and BESBENALREBE:
& I
T o
° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the . MiEB A TR EER égl
subsidiary. BAERO DS EE - S e
gs®
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent EEBKSHFPRESA A R 5 ®
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with BEULRAENBERLRSE .
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values BEE BELUFRESENESE A Lo
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any BWALBETSE RNEBUZX S

non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.5 Business combination (continued)

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.6

2.7

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
Company’s Chairman that make strategic decisions.
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2.8 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a net basis within “other gains/(losses)
— net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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2.8 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Financial

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of
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effect of the rates prevailing on the

ARENABOH

Management Discussion

%= =
= %

o income and expenses for each statement . BFEETRAE
of profit or loss and statement of TH YA 2= A | s 25 A0 B
comprehensive income are translated at ERBEFHERRE c =
average exchange rates (unless this is not a (BrJELLE R I T~ 2%1
reasonable approximation of the cumulative EXSHHEZRNE égx
5

transaction dates, in which case income and

FEUBERT - W38

expenses are translated at the dates of the BEZ 5 HERER
transactions); and wmeE) Rk

o all resulting exchange differences are

s FERUELMNER

Environmental,
Social and

recognised in other comprehensive income. ZREAEHMEERA
REER ©

On consolidation, exchange differences arising SR BN EENME 5 ol
from the translation of any net investment in A E FREIARIEE &It éﬁf
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other BREEHNERMEM €55
financial instruments designated as hedges SRIAETITEELEN
of such investments, are recognised in other EHEBEEME2EmRA ; .
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation FER & HEFINER § %
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net NEEBIREFBELIDHE § Eij
investment are repaid, the associated exchange A& W HERE N = g“j‘
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 to 30 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
Plant and machinery 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.12).

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022

2 FTESITEBE@

29 %  BERZRE

MEME BEERE BKRE
BIR BELKARTES
R-BEERABRBEEZER
BEEBHENRAX -

BRERARBERAE/AE
BEREZREEABHREL
EMaE o MR B HRAREER
REER TEREREEENK
HEEXERS - HEBEE
(@) BREREBEE
TE AR D - K IEER
HEmMEE ERMEER
REBAEELEZHSEHEA
RIBEP S -

78 SR DA T f A AT T (2 AR
B3 A B ROR S B E
R EEE

gF 20 - 304F
REL - EEREE 3-5F
TE 5 — 104
R 55 K 2% 104

BRI BERTEAE S
SRS RRETIRT - ¥
EREEEE -

FEEMEREEESNEME
A E e EREEENE
WORZE R Ml £ 58 (MisE2.12) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTHE@

Corporate
Information
BERER

2.9 Property, plant and equipment 29 ¥ - BMERRE @

(Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction
in progress is transferred to the appropriate class of
property, plant and equipment when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until
it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

2.10 Investment properties 210 REW % B
Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold NEYHE FTEE LT EE gd';‘
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields FOEALAESREMES IR
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not SNENIEESMEFE B LA
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially EHEAEERER BEWEH ;%*

measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently,
they are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost, over their estimated useful lives.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised
but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are
shown at historical cost. Trademarks acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Trademarks are with finite
useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over periods of 5 to 9 years (2021: 5 to 9
years).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

()

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Research and development costs
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the research and development costs are
recognised in profit or loss and there was no
internally-generated intangible asset recognised.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value; and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

()

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Investment income from financial assets at FVTPL
is included in the “other gains/(losses) — net”. See
Note 7 below.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses) — net”
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEESFHHR@®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) %%?
2.13 Investments and other financial assets 2BREREMERMEE @) .
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or
the termination of a contract.

2.15 Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and
finished goods

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis
of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted
average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.16 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection or trade receivables is expected
in one year or less, they are classified as current assets.
Otherwise, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 21 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.18 Share capital and shares held for

employee share scheme
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a
share buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company
as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and
the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Group Employee Share Trust are
disclosed as shares held under share award scheme and
deducted from equity.

2.19 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 60 to 180 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (Net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor
to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity
swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,
which is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.21 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2.22 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.23 Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick
leave that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension obligations and other social

welfare benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to
various defined contribution plans organised by
the relevant governmental authorities. The Group'’s
liability in respect of these plans is limited to the
contributions payable in each period. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions. Assets of
the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separated from those of the
Group.

The Group has no legal or constructive to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services in the current
and prior years. The Group’s contributions to
the defined contribution plans are expensed
as incurred and not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the plans
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share award
reserve/share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share award
reserve/share options reserve.

Under the share award scheme, BOCI-Prudential
Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) administers and holds
the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open
market with funds provided by the Company.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
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2.24 B3 = A% |

2.24 Share-based payments (continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share capital. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Tax laws or regulations may oblige an entity to
withhold an amount for an employee’s tax obligation
associated with a share-based payment and transfer
that amount, normally in cash, to the tax authority
on the employee’s behalf. To fulfil this obligation, the
terms of the share-based payment arrangement may
permit or require the Group to withhold the number
of equity instruments equal to the monetary value of
the employee’s tax obligation from the total number
of equity instruments that otherwise would have been
issued to the employee upon exercise (or vesting) of
the share-based payment (i.e. the share-based payment
arrangement has a “net settlement feature”).

The Group accounts for the withholding of shares
to fund the payment to the tax authority in respect
of the employee’s tax obligation associated with the
share-based payment as repurchase of vested equity
instruments, therefore, the payment made shall be
accounted for as a deduction from equity for the
shares withheld, except to the extent that the payment
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.25 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.26 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods and services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.26 W A\ B (@)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset

with an alternative use to the Group and the —HEAtEREFERNEE

Group has an enforceable right to payment for BAREEHETKMNEL S

performance completed to date. TAENINRIBAEAH 2
1T -

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
and service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods and services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
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2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Performance obligation for contracts
with customers

(i)

(i)

Sales of embedded software and
secure payment products

The Group sells embedded software and
secure payment products to financial
institutions, government agencies, retail
businesses, healthcare businesses, public
transportation operators and others. Revenue
on sales of embedded software and secure
payment products is recognised at the point
of time when control of the goods has
transferred to the customers, being when the
goods have been shipped to the designed
location and accepted by customers.

Sales of data processing services

The data processing services, including
encode cardholder information and/
or develop and load custom software
applications to embedded software and
secure payment products, which are
considered to be a distinct service as it is
regularly supplied by the Group to customers
on a stand-alone basis. The transaction price
of data processing service per each activity
makes reference to the quotation that the
Group offered to the customers and revenue
is recognised over time as the performance
obligation is satisfied through creating
or enhancing an asset that the customer
controls.
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(a) Performance obligation for contracts

with customers (Continued)
(iii) Sales of digital equipment

The Group also provides self-service kiosks
and on-site card issuance system solution
to its customers. Revenue on sales of
self-service kiosks and on-site card issuance
system is recognised at the point of time
when control of the goods has transferred
to the customers, being when the goods
have been shipped to the designed location
and installation of the digital equipment is
completed with customers’ acceptance.
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ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Contracts with multiple performance

obligations (including allocation of
transaction price) (Continued)

If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.

The normal credit period is 30-150 days upon
delivery. Retentions held by customers are
normally payable between 6 months to 1 year
by the customers from the date of issuance of
invoice. Such retentions include retentions for
embedded software and secure payment products
required by customers to insure performance of
Integrated Circuit (“1C") chips during the warranty
period. The card issuance system solutions also
have retentions ranging from 5% to 10%, which
are payable after the expiration of the warranty
period. These warranties associated with the
goods cannot be purchased separately and they
serve as an assurance that the goods sold comply
with agreed— upon specifications. Accordingly, the
Group accounts for warranties in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

The contracts for embedded software and secure
payment products, digital equipment and data
processing services are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.27 Earnings per share

(i)

(ii)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.28 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured
at FVTPL. Dividends are recognised as other income
in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid
out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of an
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FTESITEBE@

2.29 Leases 229 HE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTHE@

Corporate

2.29 Leases (Continued) 229 F & @)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

e ASEAEWTEHITEE
EERERNTREE X

Financial

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if . WRIFFHENSI RS E §§
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that AEEEHREPRAITEZ
option. BEE s5u
52

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since

take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

EAEEAERESTERENR
EERE HEMKBELHA
BEMFESD -

HEMNREBERBAERS M X4
B-AEENEERSHNEAE
FEZEERRTE  EUERT
JE IR R 7EH A B 48 2 A SRR K
BIAEAERUKLERE T &
CEEAEEEEBERONE
B - SR LR A AR U R
HEABEMBGAI TR E

ERIBEMIIER T - A& B &
BMAZOWBINE=ZTRER
REE WETHABURRBE
BEHERIINE=ZTRmEENE

ENFEEERBELEREAAM
ERE BEEREHINEXY
HENRBELETARE HE
BEERTUEGLREERE

=

SHEEEERERAR —T-—FFH 233

o
A
a
=
v}
Ea
[a)
7}
[}
o
©

Directors and Senior

Financial
Statements

Environmental,
Social and

©

Report

P=f 4=

%
Bzt

third party financing was received. (b LAMERIE EERFX - S
If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available HMEAMBACRERANBE LT 5 il
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or SEE) BRI ERNENER gq;g
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the FMZE BEYNBSREZAE 2oy
lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a starting MUl A AEBRETREZHX

point to determine the incremental borrowing rate. VEATETEIE B RFI=R ;- o
The Group is exposed to potential future increases in AREBERKA LS MEERENRTE Séi
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, SFFEEENISEENZK g“j«
which are not included in the lease liability until they MmN R &30 A s

40
&
8
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B SRR MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

234

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.29 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less without a
purchase option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
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2.29 Leases (Continued) 229 F & @)

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendment provides an
optional practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not
to assess whether a rent concession related to COVID19
is a lease modification. Lessees adopting this election
may account for qualifying rent concessions in the same
way as they would if they were not lease modifications.
The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are
met: a. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; b. any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments due on or before
30 June 2021; and c. there is no substantive change to
other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16
— COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021, which extended the practical expedient to lease
payments that were due on or before 30 June 2022.
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qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions. RETA F4 IKE/BCOVID-1948 Sl
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.30 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.

2.31 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

2.32 Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income. See
Note 6 below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

#r e B A R 3k B R (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risk: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash
flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by
the directors of the Company. The Directors provide principles
for an overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC
with most of the transactions originally
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US dollars (“USD")
and Hong Kong dollars (HKD). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities,
which are denominated in these currencies.

During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group has not entered into any
derivative instruments to hedge its foreign
exchange exposures (2021: Nil).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period,

expressed in RMB, was as follows:

B EREEE @m

3.1 i EKREZE @

(a)

™ 15 & B (&)

(i) SPEEfE (&)

AE B S HRE
R B 51 BB LB (A A
RERR)WT :
2021
usD HKD
== ok
RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBETIT ARETT

Trade receivables FEWE = 2,940 — 3,062 =
Other receivables H b fE Y 3k 3,470 3,954 2,954 61
Fixed bank deposits #2717 F HifE 5%

and Cash and cash  F1¥E & Kk3H

equivalents SEEY 367,114 224,478 377,936 72,317
Trade payables JE & (15,440) - (1,496) =
Other payables L FE AT R = (2,704) (1,471) (2,442)
Bank borrowings RITHER - (44,818) - -
Net monetary assets FE¥KEE 358,084 180,910 380,985 69,936
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% B AR B EINE T E

against the relevant foreign currencies, with
all other variable held constant, the post-tax
profit would have been (lower)/higher as

follows:

B T2 A B
R )./
EZn

- Strengthened by 5% - JH{E5%

- Weakened by 5% - B7{E5%

(Lower)/higher on
post-tax profit

(13,428)
13,428

(6,784)
6,784

/B B5% T B A BT A
BT BBEF
e G M

2021
usD HKD

e ok
RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTRT
(14,287) (2,623)
14,287 2,623

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from fixed rate pledged bank deposits and
fixed bank deposits (see Note 26 for details),
which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes
on interest bearing financial assets, mainly
interest bearing bank balances. The Group
cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates quoted by
the People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s RMB denominated bank balances.
The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest bearing bank balances at
the end of the reporting period and assumed
that the amount of assets outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. 50 basis points were
used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Continued)

If interest rates on bank balances had been
50 basis points higher(lower) and all other
variables were held constant, the potential
effect on profit for the year is as follows:

B EREEE @m

3.1 BIEEREZE @
(a) mEE M @

(i) RERERLAE
18 7 71 Bz (48)

i SR 7T 17 ARFI & EFF
(R F&) 50fE £ % -
WEHARBEHMEED
2 HERMNBEE

Increase/(decrease) in FEFH
profit for the year #m,/ Chd)
e 50 basis points higher o EFSOMEEZ,
e 50 basis points lower o TFE50MEE 2

YEEMT
2021

RMB’'000

AREFT

2,706 1,695

(2,706) (1,695)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest risk as at the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

MR REE m

Corporate

1 B#ERREZE @
(b) EERK

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit approvals.
Other monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under Expected Credit
Loss (“ECL"”) model upon application of HKFRS 9
on trade receivables and contract assets based on
credit rating. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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geographical locations is mainly in the Chinese FEERBEIEEHARNFEH B
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents

The Group also has concentration of credit risk
on pledged bank deposits and fixed bank deposits
which are deposited with banks with high credit
rating. Other than the above, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit
risk. The credit risks on pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
has assessed the expected credit loss rate under
12 month expected credit loss (“ECL”) method
based on the Group’s assessment in the risk of
default of the respective counterparties.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has assessed
that the expected loss rates for other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents were insignificant. Thus,
no loss allowance for other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BI¥EREREm

(Continued)

Corporate
Information
BEREHR

3.1 I EREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Amount due from an associate EWEZ 55 E o 2R
The directors of the Company make periodic RNABEERBEREL & 28
individual assessment on the expected credit B NERER URE o
loss of amount due from an associate based on SEMEMEE (&R - §§ﬂ
historical settlement records, past experience, MR RTIEENEE) - E%[[
and also quantitative and qualitative information i E UG B N B A B TR o
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking HEEEETESHNE Y 5
information. The directors of the Company believe o RATEESRAE - § S
that there is a significant increase in credit risk BB ERANR  Z& 58 é

of this amount since initial recognition and the HNEERRBERL I A é
Group provided impairment based on lifetime ECL. EFIRRKREEHEEER % ‘r
For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, sHRREEE - # 22022 3

the Group assessed the ECL for amount due from

F12H31H #2021 12H

an associate, RMB394,000 (2021: RMB590,000) 3B EF AEEF .0
loss allowance was recognised. {iy JE Uk B =& /N 5] 3% 18 T8 HA E %1
EEBRESE BRTA o
R #394,0007T (20214 : gk
A R #590,0007T) ¥ & 18 -
B - i
ES ol
v ok
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B SRR MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

244

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3 BIXEERERE@m

3.1 Bii5 R b2 A & (&)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER M @
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment K& B A s B R AR5
comprises the following categories: i EEATER
Trade receivables Other financial
Category  Description and contract assets assets
5l i g BRERRENEE HEmEE
Performing  The counterparty has a low risk of  Lifetime ECL 12 month ECL
default and does not have any - not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
E% HHEYNEARREEEAHRER REBBEEERR 1REAEREEBR
- REARE
Watch list ~ Debtor frequently repays after due  Lifetime ECL 12 month ECL
dates but usually settle after due — not credit-impaired
date
Bx BBAZ AR ERBE BT RS REBBEEERR 1REAEHREEBR
mE - AMEARE
Doubtful There has been a significant Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
increase in credit risk since initial - not credit-impaired
recognition through information
developed internally or external
resources
] k¢ NEEENFIMPERNERET KREBEHREEEBE 1REAEHREEBR
EERRBVNHKERLLERRE - RMEARE
o
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B8 BEEBRRAZECERRE REBBEEERE REEBEEER
- BIERRE - 2EARE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written
the debtor is in severe financial off
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
% 35 FRBRABRBALRBEENH T BRI BRI

PR % B 7S 5 [ R SR 2 Uy ol
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE m

Corporate
Information
1 ¥ & R

3.1 I EREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on

BRAEBEXZREBEBKA

estimate default rates and loss rates by making REBHEHANBZZINE §EL
reference to the credit rating given by external TR EAEOEATR 25
ranking agency over the expected lives of the RAGFFE L ERMBREIL ;
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking EAETBZHRASIED E?
information, including but not limited to changes BRI BB KR EEE (8 E%f[
of future economics, GDP growth rate forecast FERRRERERREER o
and market environment, that available without . GDPEE K X TE R MH 5
undue cost or effort. BIRB R L) M EF RS
5|t - S
s
For trade receivables and contract assets, the REB B HKMNE BB ER z?%i‘g
Group has applied the simplified approach in HEBFSR B EFTE g
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ERERRAELHEEMNR -
ECL. Trade receivables and contract assets are BHEHEEEENEER O
assessed based on the provision matrix through HB-RBRERMEREE E%l
grouping of various debtors that have similar ERBEREEERE  BER é?i‘
credit risk characteristics, with consideration of BEEBBLE AR R FE 5§
their corresponding estimated default rates and WEBEBADE IZE e
loss rates, together with the forward-looking BEMEENGTEHERAN "
information. BEE LRAEEES . 5%
SREF Y - §EoE
v ok
5 ol
T
P
§e
$9u
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B ETE R AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

3 BIXEERERE@m

3.1 Bii5 R b2 A & (&)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group's financial assets, contract assets, which

are subject to ECL assessment:

(b) FERK @

TRAIAGEEEHME
E ANEEENEHE
EBBFENEERR

Internal
Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
ABER 1NEARHMEESR
hit F& FRGEREEER REEEAR
2021
RMB'000
ARBTTT
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBHEEATECEREE
Trade receivables 21 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 261,952 199,870
- contracts with customers - not credit-impaired
BRER- BEFAK 13 BARBERESNEIREE
EER - KAEARE
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 80,057 94,880
- not credit-impaired
2pad BREBEREESNEIREE
EER - AEARE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 1,692 51,187
- not credit-impaired
A& BARBEREESNEIREE
EER - AERARE
Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 1,570 1,437
E#R REBMEEBR - EGRARE
Other receivables 24 Performing  12-month ECL 131,456 32,591
iR 13 REARSREEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBRAREREmw 2 5%
(Continued) ggﬁ
Sz
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B EKREE @ - 2
2 oiE
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREB @ S
Internal - gf
Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Qa4
ABER  NEARMEEFA 25
Hit FR FREGEMEEER REEEAR o
2021 E ;ﬁ
RMB'000 Ezy
ARBTT
Financial assets at amortised cost g ;;
(Continued) £
RBHEEAGTECEREE (8) gE2m
Amount due from an associate 25  Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 14,295 13,901 -
FE Y Btk ' 12 Rl FRIR B REBBEEBRE-CERARME c
Pledged bank deposits, fixed bank 26 Performing  12-month ECL 1,349,190 1,233,559 B g%;ﬂ
deposits and cash and cash é 5=
equivalents 2 m
BEARTENR RITTHER % REARSREEER
MRS RBLEEY £2
Other items ELE?:
18R 3
Contract assets 23 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 10,637 14,054 -
- not credit-impaired .
BHEE 3 BARBEEESNEIERE ja

o
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEREREm@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 i EKREZE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER B (&
As part of the Group's credit risk management, EAEREB{ZERKRE R
the Group applies internal credit rating for its H—3n AEBHHE
customers in relations to its operation. The ZHEENTPEITANHE
following table provides information about the FAFEf - TRARBKERK
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which EREHEBEEESR (K
is assessed based on provision matrix within ZAmE) B~ ERE
lifetime ECL (Not credit-impaired). A Debtor with HREETHNEERE -
credit-impaired with gross carrying amount of 720229 12A318 ¥
RMB1,570,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: EEEEaE A ARK
RMB1,437,000) was assessed individually. 1,570,000 (20214 : A
R #1,437,0007T) ME &
RARBENEEAETT S
B o
Gross carrying amount FREEEEEE

At 31 December 2022
72022%12A31H

Internal credit rating A= AR

Performing s 0.85% 261,952 0.85% 10,637
Watch list Cipzs 1.30% 80,057 - -
Doubtful G4 6.29% 1,692 - -

343,701 10,637
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEEBREE®
(Continued) %é?
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 i EKREZE @ -

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) fEE = @) -
Gross carrying amount (Continued) FREEEAEE () B
Average Trade Average Contract =8
At 31 December 2021 loss rate receivables loss rate assets .
=12 = =g > c CHl
720215124311 THEEE BRER TFHEBRX EREE Eiw
RMB’000 RMB’000 B
ARBTT N
Internal credit rating W= AR § i?
29
Performing - 0.65% 199,870 0.65% 14,054 géjﬁ
Watch list BE 1.09% 94,880 - - el
Doubtful a5 2.45% 51,187 = -
=
345,937 14,054 5
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, ZEINKNZHEEZHEIT i
the trade receivables within performing, watch list WEMNMEBEEANTERE g
and doubtful at the end of the reporting period EERIRESERBE 5
which have been past due over 90 days are not RKAREEZRENTREH
considered as in default with the consideration X %0 BA B 1BO0H - B IE B
that most of the customers are banking institutes BT MA SRER A 2
and the expected subsequent and historical FEE AT R EL o £

repayment from trade debtors.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, KD B EERAEWEE
the amount due from an associate was within NAREBREEER - N
the category of loss. There is evidence indicating BEEEBLREEADER S
that the debtor is credit-impaired. Impairment loss B o A U ¥ FE Uk B gé;
on amount due from an associate amounted to AIREIRAEEEAR
RMB394,000 (2021: RMB590,000) is provided. #394,0007T (20214 © A

R #590,0007T) °

Corporate Governance
Report

Financial
Statements

40
b
8
=

SHEEEERERAR —T-—FF8% 249



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3

250

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the contract assets was within the category
of performing. Since the assessed probability
of default of contract assets is minimal, no
impairment loss (202 1: nil) is provided.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group performed impairment assessment and
did not provide allowance for credit losses for
financial assets other than trade receivables,
contract assets and amount due from an associate
as the calculated provision is insignificant after
considering the probability of default, loss rate
and adjustment with forward-looking information.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE m

Corporate
Information
tEEH

3.1 I EREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The following table shows the movement in TRETRREILET ERK

lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade EREHMIBNKRGERE RsY
receivables under the simplified approach. EEENEF - =g

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL 55
(Non-credit (credit- 0
impaired) impaired) Total o
REHEH RERH 5
FEE#R FEE#R S
(RERRE) (EERARHE) &t 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 Z
ARETT AR®Tr ARETn 2 !
5 !
As at 1 January 2021 RW2021E181A8 5,422 1,471 6,893 5
Changes due to financial instruments ~ f1A1BHRAZEBIE §em
recognised as at 1 January: S| #E L 2 %1
~ Impairment losses reversed —REEERD (5,386) = (5,386) g §;‘
New financial assets originated HEsRAEE 3,580 - 3,580 g2 ‘
Currency translation difference [E 5% (18) (34) (52) -
i
As at 31 December 2021 2021125318 3,598 1,437 5035 So5%
Changes due to financial instruments ~ F1A1EERZEBIA ES g
recognised as at 1 January: c R e 3 gf
— Impairment losses reversed —REEERE (3,479) = (3,479) S oEm
New financial assets originated MEemAE 3,310 = 3,310 -
Currency translation difference ER kS (50) 133 83 .
$im
As at 31 December 2022 #2022%12A831A 3,379 1,570 4,949 g5 .
X
g S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS TR R AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE @m

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1 i EKREZE @

(c) Liquidity risk () REERBE

252

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents.
Our Group’s liquidity risk is further mitigated
through the availability of financing through
its own cash resources to meet its financial
commitments. In the opinion of our directors, our
Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

RENTRIUERARERE
REEFEANRE RA
CEEY - AKBE AR
HEGRGERETRE
BT H M # A - (&M
E-—FREERER
- AEBEEZRSAE
ErAEBERNRB LR

TRAJNAEEFETES
MEENRBREOHR -
FZRDERAEEAEL
XN RFAEHMNERE
BOARMRBES R -
Hip T E S B E2 5
BEMmEMMIER B - %
REBEMNEMNEALRER

At 31 December 2022 R2022£12831H

Trade and bill payables ERERREMNER 336,693 - - - 336,693 336,693

Other payables AfERR 62,984 - - - 62,984 62,984

Bank borrowings RT3 741 45,158 - - 45,899 44,818

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,466 4,738 2,976 93 9,273 8,874
401,884 49,896 2976 9% 454,849 453,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7 3R 3R B 5 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEREREREm

(Continued)

Corporate
Information
e

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B E ke E E @)

T 2
goE
58
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () B E bR (&) sIE
Repayable & ?E
on demand Total SR
or less than 3 months 1 year 2years  undiscounted Carrying 55
3 months t0 1 year t0 2 years to5years  cash flows amount o
i
FHR=1AA =fiA —£ mE AR = gf

NEE i-F EmF 0% ReRME  KEERE
RMBOO0  RMBO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'O0  RMB'00O
ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 31 December 2021 #20215128318

Trade and bill payables ERERREMNER 422,506 - - - 422,506 422,506
Other payables AfERR 22,69 - - - 22,694 22,694
Lease liabilites fHEaR 2,055 4,651 5614 2,789 15,109 14328

Management Discussion
and Analysis
BEERRAN

447,255 4,651 5614 2,189 460,309 459,528

Directors and Senior
Management
BEEREREEE

4o

SRR

]

Environmental,
Social and

B.xe

Governance Report
HER

R

Report of
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EET
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BEERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B SRR MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3

254

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group'’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to
3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HERKRER@m 95q
(Continued) % ?%
3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 A REEME @ .
(a) Fair value of the Group's financial () ZEAAEBEKE MG 8
assets that are measured at fair value ENFEETREE o®
on a recurring basis (Continued) WA REE @ gET
Reconciliation of Level 3 Measurement FIERTEH R i
= é Ho
The following table presents the reconciliation of TREMNEcMEENES3 E £¥
Level 3 Measurement of the financial assets: B4 5T 2 ¥ - SEH
Valuation Relationship .
Fair value technique(s) and key ~ Significant unobservable inputs to §
Financial asset Fair value hierarchy input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value ST
HERER EXRTBR FTBREAHES gg e
tHEE AEE MEEER  IEHARE BARE MEEZBR grH
5 ¢

Structured deposits As at 31 December 2022:  Level 3 Discounted cash flow  As at 31 December The higher the estimated _
RMB Nil ~ future cash flows 2022: not applicable ~ return, the higher the c ﬁﬁj
(as at 31 December 2021 are estimated based (estimated return fair value and vice g gl
RMB180,205,000) on estimated retumn, ~ ranged from 1.05%  versa. i %3{?
and discounted ata 0 3.55% at 31 25

rate that reflects the ~ December 2021) 5

credit risk of various
counterparties. .
ERUER R20205128318 : F3ER WEREER - ARE  MORENAVA:E BAUEHR LAE B fl
AR & SRBEEIRE  (MO0ENRANA  EEE R 25y
(201512318 : TR B EhEEEs s
ABR%180,205,0007) REERFHER  1.05%E355%) .
BRAFIERER - “
Unlisted equity (Sichuan As at 31 December 2022:  Level 3 Asset-based valuation  Discount ratio The higher the discount
Zhongruan Technology Ltd. ~ RMB Nil method - fair ratio, the lower the fair 5 pill
("SCZR") (as at 31 December 2021: value is estimated value and vice versa. 5 §IJH
RMB Nil) by multiplying the g3 -
carrying amount of
the recoverable net g
assets of investee g
which s in the state sch
of bankruptey and 8 ;m
liquidation, with a s «
certain discount ratio S
¥ L iRE (M) ERRE 20226128318 : £IER BEMRBE--DiE ARX HARERE DAERE
RAAmIRE]) ARE E ERRRE B R BE - RZHR e 52
(2021128318 HEREREHTR 55
AE% &) B EENEAER =

FU-ERAEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

3

256

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3 BIXEERERE@m

3.2 A REEMET @

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial

(a) RAARNBEKLE T

assets that are measured at fair value ENEAEETREE
on a recurring basis (Continued) N REE @
RMB’000
AREEF T
At 1 January 2021 R2021%F1 818 256,733
Net gain on financial assets TREEFKR 5,331
Purchase of financial assets BESMEE 455,000
Redemption of financial assets BEoemEE (536,859)
At 31 December 2021 7K2021%12A31H 180,205
Net gain on financial assets B EEEF R 1,262
Redemption of financial assets BRI e/ EE (181,467)
At 31 December 2022 72022612 A31H =

Except for the reclassifying of the equity
investment of SCZR from interest in an associate
to FVTPL (see Note 22) during the year ended 31
December 2021, there were no transfers into or
out of Level 3 during the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

The total gains for the year included a realised
gain of RMB1,262,000 and no unrealised gain
relating to financial assets that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period
(2021: a realised gain of RMB5,126,000 and an
unrealised gain RMB205,000). Such fair value
gains are included in “other gains/(losses) — net”.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3

o)

B 7% 3 3= MY & E ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses the market value as
stated on the quotation report issued by financial
institutions.

In estimating the fair value of unlisted equity
(“SCZR"), the Group uses the investee’s financial
statements as the basis for calculating the fair
value of unlisted equity (“SCZR") under the
asset-based valuation method.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
assets are disclosed above.

Fair value of financial instruments at
amortised cost

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B SRR MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 4 RB@e (55t Y8

258

(a)

(b)

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable values

Management estimated net realisable values based
on ageing of inventories, current market price and
estimated future market demand.

Such estimation required the use of significant judgment
and key assumptions which take into consideration
historical sales records, utilisation records, ageing and
expectations for future sales orders. Such judgment was
subject to uncertainties as a result of future changes in
market trends and customer demands.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are
assessed based on the provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar credit
risk characteristics, with consideration of their
corresponding estimated default rates and loss rates,
together with the forward-looking information. The
Group uses estimations and judgments to estimate
default rates and loss rates by making reference to
the credit rating given by external ranking agency and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B T EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a) Description of segments and principal

activities

Segment information has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports which are reviewed by the
Chairman of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, in order to allocate resources to the
operating and reportable segments and to assess their
performance.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Embedded software and secure payment products

BARKH ML 2N Em -

Platform and service -

F e kR =

Each operating and reportable segment derives its
revenue from the sales of products and provision of
data processing services. They are managed separately
because each product requires different production and
marketing strategies.

Segment results represent the gross profits earned by
each segment.

5 WARDHER

++\ N

(a) D EPHMEFE

DEHERARBAIEERS
REWMEYL  WAKE IE&TLE
ERBARRKERRE-ARQ

ETEERN LA?'F'JE(‘FV“%&T
RED B EMFEERILE

RIBEFE M HRE LA ES -
AEEEERAHREDBAT ¢

Design, development, manufacture and sale
of embedded software and secure payment
products for smart secure payment

REt - B AENHEEERER
MBRARKHEME 2 XN Em

EXfIEE

Provision of data processing, digital
equipment, system platforms and other
total solutions for customers in a wide
business range including financial,
government, healthcare, transportation and
retails by leveraging innovative Fintech

0|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARSHER @
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)
(a) Description of segments and principal (a) D ELPIHMEE X ESZH)
activities (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTAREEZTRE DI
results by reportable segment: WAREE 2D :
Revenue Results
A E3 |
2021 2021
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Sales to external parties of  [AISMNFRE Z &
- embedded software and — AR
secure payment products T NEMR 1,009,115 752,828 221,250 186,089
- platform and service — L ERR% 521,136 623,696 181,886 218,053
1,530,251 1,376,524 403,136 404,142
Other income H AU A 49,169 46,297
Other gains/(losses) — net Hip A (E18)
— R % 47,889 (8,432)
Research and development 25 pk A&
costs (112,955) (120,502)
Selling and distribution costs $5& &9 HE FH (172,822) (126,500)
Administrative expenses THREX (41,623) (40,499)
Reversal of impairment loss  [EUL & Z (B 518
on trade receivables B o 169 1,806
Impairment loss on amount  [EULHE & A E1ZIE 2
due from an associate REEE (394) (590)
Finance costs — net BRI AN — %4 (8,499) (783)
Profit before income tax & BT 15 %54 Al Vi A 164,070 154,939

260

The management of the Group makes decisions
according to the gross profit of each segment. No
information of segment assets and liabilities is available
for the assessment of performance of different business
activities. Therefore, no information about segment

assets and liabilities is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7 3R 3R B 5 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDHER @
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Corporate
Information
e

(b) Revenue (b) WA

T 2
The segment information for the year ended 31 B E2022F12831H k20214 &2
December 2022 and 2021 by business segment are as NRANBILZFESE£EDS
follows: ZOEERAT

2022
Major Events
202F KFR

Chairman’s
Statement
EREHE

Management Discussion
and Analysis
BEERRAN

9 8

Types of goods or services E¥ = REESR 2 %E
Embedded software and AR g ?EE
secure payment products TE S NEMR 1,009,115 - 1,009,115 §§+F
Data processing g EE - 203,385 203,385 o

Digital equipment eI - 317,751 317,751 "

5 8®

Total At 1,009,115 521,136 1,530,251 .

5SS G

Revenue from sale of embedded software and secure BMARNTEMEZ 2 NEZD = é@

payment products and sale of digital equipment are EEW AN T HREOIEE -
recognised at a point in time, and revenue from data WAFEXEREELER M oy
processing services are recognised over time. BRI R e WA B — EX B gg«;
AR o §§t§

=

BEERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS TR R AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WMARDEER @
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

(b) Revenue (Continued) (b) YA )

Geographical markets it E W5

The Chinese mainland R A 3 775,798 503,553 1,279,351
Overseas and the special BINR BB RIITHE

administrative regions (TE#])FRFIHE R

of Hong Kong (“Hong 1THR (TR ])

Kong"”) and Macao

("Macao”) 233,317 17,583 250,900
Total A&t 1,009,115 521,136 1,530,251

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BZE2021F12A318 L2 FE
Embedded
software
and secure Platform
payment and
products service Total
A E
Mz 2%
Em =8 B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Types of goods or services S ¥ RIEELE
Embedded software and BRARXE N

secure payment products ZEXNE M 752,828 = 752,828
Data processing HERE = 239,988 239,988
Digital equipment e e - 383,708 383,708
Total BEr 752,828 623,696 1,376,524

262  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7 3R 3R B 5 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARTDHER @ 2 5%
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued) g%%
S ES
(b) Revenue (continued) (b) WA () 5 2
S Sim
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2
HE2021F12R31B L2 5E -
Embedded 2w
software S
and secure Platform - §§
payment and -
products service Total e
AR B
MZ 2% b
Em Ta kR =h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 s
AREBTT ARET T ARETT S
Geographical markets it E WS é;‘ji‘ﬁ
The Chinese mainland B A 675,872 579,763 1,255,635 %5%
Overseas and Hong Kong B ON 2 T s AR Y 5 o
and Macao 76,956 43,933 120,889
S m
G & B
Total A&t 752,828 623,696 1,376,524 g ggm
g 55
(c) Other information (c) HibEH 238
Information about the Group’s non-current assets REEREeR T ARELERE i
except for financial instruments and deferred tax assets BENINCEIBIRRBEER 5_B8®
by location of assets is presented as below: BEFRETHEI S Z2HWNOT : 55 E“”
5SS G
2021 £7§,
RMB'000 w
ART T .
Hong Kong E 141,105 134,869 ggg
The Chinese mainland rh B X 3 396,949 367,318 ‘
538,054 502,187

ERB/AMWE

s e sasp A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDEHER @
INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) Other information (continued) (c) EtER @)
Information about major customer EBEFEEZEFWNER
For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was B 22022F128318 1k 2 &F
no customer with revenue in aggregate (2021: E BmARBEMNEZESFE
one customer with revenue of RMB151,888,000 in mAMEERREDEELEE
aggregate) from the segments of both embedded —BFHR ARG I AEER
software and secure payment products and platform W AEI10%IA £ (20214 = &
and service which accounted for more than 10% of the —EZEBFHW AL AE AR
Group's total revenue. 151,888,0007T) °
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HlkA
2021
RMB’'000
AREFIT
Government grants B 8 B 4,186 6,272
Interest income from bank deposits 81717 3% F & W A 27,681 23,900
Value-added tax refund EERRET 14,195 14,088
Rental income from investment TEMERNES WA
property 2,034 1,463
Others Hib 1,073 574
49,169 46,297
7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET 7 Httzs o (F8) - 28
2021
RMB’000
AREFIT
Net exchange gains/(losses) BE W, (E518) FE 46,301 (13,709)
Investment income from financial BAREBEFAEBRZZER
assets at FVTPL (Note 3.2) BEREWA (KiE3.2) 1,262 5,126
Unrealised gain from financial assets 2R A4 (BET AlEE 2 4 &
at FVTPL (Note 3.2) BEZAERNE (#1:73.2) - 205
Gain on lease modification & 49 W 2= 741 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant & & B TE & EEE
and equipment (447) (4)
Others H At 32 (50)
47,889 (8,432)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE NE H 252
2 E
2021 gg
RMB’'000
AR®T T g
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 20 933,325 826,971
Write-down of inventories to R FER A &1 g‘;{u‘
net realisable values FE 22,006 (9,510) 5% K
Employee benefits expenses EIFBER 10 250,861 216,325 s
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% - 5 & % -
equipment e 15 33,232 30,802 .
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ([FEREEEITE 16 6,244 7,284 %%T[
Depreciation of investment property 1% & 1) %37 & 17 3,879 2,056 SEH
Amortisation of intangible assets  #& i & & # 4 18 - 2,096 -
Reversal of warranty provision B RS B RO - (3,062) i =
Legal and professional fees EENMEEER 3,571 2,983 g;
Auditor’s remuneration % BRAD B £
— audit services - ZERS 1.377 1,311 sem
- non-audit services - ERERTE 402 415 £
Business entertainment expenses X¥BREFEA 6,803 7,348 -
Freight and duties BEERAT 13,552 18,526 5 m
Professional service fees HERBE 69,656 32,490 e
Testing fees 18 & 9,561 13,858 Eox
Travelling and transportation ZIRE §§%L
expenses 13,032 20,364 S @
Other expenses Hin & 87,014 89,626
4
Total cost of sales, research and $HE R AN - BT B AR AN gggu
development costs, selling CIHE R D HX s h
and distribution expenses and A RITEHAS A =85+
administrative expenses 1,454,515 1,259,883 . 3;
5 ol
g5
{0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B ETE R AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

9 FINANCE COSTS - NET

9 MIBRAE—FE

2021
RMB’000
ART T
Unwinding interest income from HEBREBESHEEELY
deposits paid to suppliers B YA 2,498 -
Finance income g3 ON 2,498 -
Interest expense discounted from HEFPRESITHEEEL Y
deposits paid to suppliers B &R (8,084) -
Borrowing costs BRER (2,320) =
Interest expense on lease liabilities FA & & &H 2 & A (593) (782)
Others H At = (1)
Finance costs expensed BEERX (10,997) (783)
Net finance costs B8R FE (8,499) (783)
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 10 EISEEH
2021
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Directors’ emoluments (Note 71) EFMe (AF11) 16,218 15,724
Retirement benefits scheme RRE R FT BB (A7)
contributions (Note) 14,417 12,795
Staff costs 18 B AR 220,226 187,806
Total employee benefit expenses ETIFBERA 250,861 216,325
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(Continued)

Note: The Group participates in MPF for its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s salaries, up to a
maximum of HKD1,500 per employee per month. The assets of MPF are
held separately from those of the Group companies in an independently
administered fund.

The qualifying employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Chinese
mainland are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation. No forfeited
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by the
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B T EL N AC )

REZE2022F 128318 1L 2 F &

10 EIFBERw

Hat - AEBREBHNEKREI2MESRE
TR AKS% A& B #¥1,5007T
BER BRESHEERAEEHH -
HZAABYERE -

AEERFEANEHBERRNEKES
2 m T ERFEENBEREERKE
MEtdl - ZEMBRARARETIERR
B — 5E o Bl A R IR AR R R B HESR - A&
SR RIB A G 8 I — B ERRIEZ
FTEIM R E R

BEmE AREYEHEMEE - BHE

BEHORKz HX (ARERZSEHKE
BEAMRNGEZESEL) AIHEE

FRABRR B K2 5K

11 E BEEHTEEHAN
BEeEFME TS

2021

RMB’'000

AREFIT

Directors’ fees e 565 547
Other emoluments to executive Hih FHITESHENE

directors

— basic salaries and allowances - BEAREG & EER 10,224 9,901

— bonus -5 5,348 5,196
— retirement benefits scheme - RREFFT &R

contributions 81 80

16,218 15,724

Unless indicated otherwise, bonus of the directors was
discretionary and determined with reference to the Group’s
performance, individual performances and comparable market
statistics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RS TR R AR B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11 EE - BEEITEERX
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID ESHMETMS @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Mr. Hou Ping is also the chief executive (the “Chief EEEEBRAANBEEEITE © 1o
Executive”) of the Company and his emoluments disclosed e ETREE  effmEETE
below include those for services rendered by him as the Chief FBHITEMREREOME -
Executive.

Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments for the year, WBiEEB 2 F BB & A TR G| P
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and B EENERFHNTEAFEZME
Companies Ordinance is as follows: R

For the year ended 31 December 2022: BZE2022F12831HLEZFE :

(A) Executive directors (A BTEE
Mr. Lu Run Ting EHELE 3,576 - 2,290 - 5,866
Mr. Lu Runyi EEREE 1,247 - 556 15 1,818
Mr. Hou Ping e 2,548 - 1,832 15 4,395
Mr. Wu Sigiang REBREE 642 - 300 21 963
Mr. Ling Wai Lim ERREE 765 - 264 15 1,044
Ms. Li Yijin (Note) 25T L 1,446 - 106 15 1,567

(B) Independent non-executive (B) By EHTEE

directors

Ms. Ye Lu ERat - 169 - - 169
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BXREE - 226 - - 26
Mr. Lai Tung Kwok (Note) RIRE &4 (W) - 106 = = 106
Mr. Yang Geng (Note) BERE(HZ) - 64 = = 64

10,224 565 5348 81 16,218

268  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7 3R 3R B 5 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11 EE - BEEFEITEER{X
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID ESHMETMS @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Corporate
Information
GHRER

GE
2

For the year ended 31 December 2021: HE2021F12A318 L2 FE ¢ f:?
Retirement 5
Basic benefits N ET
salaries and Directors’ scheme Ss4
allowances fees Bonus  contributions Total =S
358 RN
)=l ik e SHEER Ch =

Chairman’s
Statement
F R 4

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARET:R

(A) Executive directors (A BTEE é p =
Mr. Lu Run Ting ERELL 3,468 - 2,221 - 5,689 o<
Mr. Lu Runyi BB 1,208 - 539 15 1,762 IoE
Mr. Hou Ping &EEE 2,471 - 1,777 15 4,263 goH
Mr. Wu Sigiang REREE 610 - 300 20 930 -~
Mr. Ling Wai Lim ERRLE 742 - 154 15 911 _,
Ms. Li Yijin ZHELT 1,402 - 205 15 1,622 S ou

o £

(B) Independent non-executive (B) By EHTEE § giL
directors g S
Ms. Ye Lu ERut - 164 - - 164 -

Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin FXRESE - 219 - - 219 4
Mr. Yang Geng BELE - 164 - - 164 3 g}f
9,901 547 5,196 80 1574 S3EY

ek

R &

o
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11 EE - BEEITEERX
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID ESHMETMS @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for FiigITEE NS BEEEARN A
their services in connection with the management of the RAREBEBZREE -

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown LB TES M ETERHE
above were for their services as directors of the Company. EBRNANRIEEZREE -
Note: Btz -
- Mr. Yang Geng retired as an independent non-executive Director with = BEXAEB2022F5817H 2R EB L
effect from 17 May 2022.. JEHITESE -
- Mr. Lai Tung Kwok was appointed as an independent non-executive - R S A R2022F5H17TE ESZ T A
Director with effect from 17 May 2022. BYIERITES -
The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 HE202261283MB8 L2 FE RN
December 2022 included four (2021: four) directors of the S E AT BFEEA (20214 - 1
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above. () ESZ EHBe=FBER LXK
The remuneration of the remaining one (2021: one) highest EENEERTEI KFEHRTH
paid individuals who is neither a director nor Chief Executive —f7 (2021F : —f) &= HF M A =
of the Company during the year was as follows: ST :
2021
RMB’'000
ART T
Employee 8T
— basic salaries and allowances - HARF & WE 1,711 1,659
- bonus i 86 83
— retirement benefits scheme — R FIET B A5k
contributions 1 15
1,798 1,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R 3R AR B RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose fell within the following
bands is as follows:

11 E BEEHTEEHAN

EEFMHETHME w

BREFUINEEHFMALHOABRET
RBENR -

Number of employees
BTN

2021

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,0017TE

A K #2,000,0007T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There
was no arrangement under which a director or the Chief
Executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year.

Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
and termination benefits during the year (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by any third
parties for making available directors’ services during the year
(2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors of the Company, or controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

11

12

272

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
each of the year or at any time during the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax
expense, and shows what amounts are recognised directly in
equity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable
and non-deductible items. It also explains significant
estimates made in relation to the Group’s tax position.

11

12

EEX BEHTEHEHRAN
EoyME T @

EERNRS  RBEJEHF
A

R R SR F NERERE - AR A
BAIVEASEEBEHAARRE
ERETEEAMEREREREEN
BERRG  RHRAEH -

FrEHE R

KEHEST T AKENAERE
A XWIRTERRESERN SR
AR ER RS E AR W%
EWEAXL  BERETREANKEON
B ARRE R EARfhET

2021
RMB’000
ARET T
Current income tax BN ER 1S #4186

The Chinese mainland corporate FR B At 1 TS AR
income tax 3,972 1,950
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH 11,427 7,638
15,399 9,588
Deferred income tax RIEFIE (12,308) 7,400
Income tax expense Fristi & A 3,091 16,988

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

#r e B A R 3k B R (|)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HKD2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HKD2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, starting from the year ended
31 December 2019, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 8.25% on the first HKD2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HKD2,000,000 for Goldpac Datacard Solutions
Company Limited.

The Chinese mainland corporate income tax is calculated at
the applicable rates in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Chinese mainland.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the Chinese mainland are
subject to Chinese mainland corporate income tax at 25%,
except that Goldpac Limited which is approved for 3 years as
an enterprise satisfied as a High-New Technology Enterprise
and is entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% in 2017,
2018 and 2019. Goldpac Limited has obtained the renewal in
2020 and continued to be entitled to the preferential tax rate
of 15% in 2020, 2021 and 2022.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and
the State Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No.
1, only the profits earned prior to 1 January 2008, when
distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered with
the exemption from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the Corporate Income Tax Law and
Article 91 of its Implementation Rules, dividend distributed
out of the profit generated thereafter, shall be subject to
corporate income tax at 10% or reduced tax rate if tax treaty
or arrangement applies. Under the relevant tax arrangement,
withholding tax rate on dividend distribution to the qualifying
Hong Kong resident companies is 5%. Deferred tax liability
on the undistributed profits earned by Goldpac Limited since
1 January 2008 have been accrued at the tax rate of 5%.

12 FiBHE R @

BB EEN2018FE3/821BBEBT
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ARG T  HRFEERNEEE
B = 5 #2,000,0007T 3 A 8 F 15 B
R /8.25% - B B 75 #2,000,0007T
A E D M FIERE B16.5% © &
EREANSHMAFNNEE TR
BB 45— LA16.5% B 15 H & - 18
e - A £22019F12A318 It 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

274

Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to profit before

tax as follows:

12

EHREA @

[ A9 T FI BRI B AT 0 B R
mF -

2021
RMB’'000
ARET T
Profit before tax B %5 B i Al 164,070 154,939
Tax at PRC tax rate of 25% 1£25%F BB R ET E /Y
(2021: 25%) T8 (20214 : 25%) 41,018 38,735
Tax effect of amounts not taxable  HEHH S BRI F IS E
for tax purpose (13,934) (222)
Tax effect of tax losses not AR BEENTRIET 2
recognised 2,955 2,646
Previously unrecognised tax losses LA R4 & oK & 52 51 15 /&5 18
now recouped to reduce current NERH R S HA R S & A
tax expenses (580) -
Tax effect of tax concession HMIEEENHETE (23,330) (26,999)
Tax effect of different tax rate of EHMB B AERLLN
subsidiaries operating in other tax  [{EB A A8 N RE i K H
jurisdiction Mg (5,838) (2,310)
Withholding EIT on undistributed R B A ) A B FE 04 3
profits in the PRC FriS 5t 2,743 5,694
Others Hib 57 (556)
Income tax expense for the year FEMNMERER 3,091 16,988

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 SREF
g
The basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of BN R R A AR E A ZF SE4
the Company is calculated by dividing: RIBBATAEETHE - B
B the profit attributable to owners of the Company o NN BEE AFEALF)E é? :
o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares o MRUARESAEE 22 BITHMN 2
outstanding during the financial year E S 15 3 38 IR RS X 53 K
- w2 01
< E4
Profit for the year attributable RRBEE AEAEFEFE Sk
to owners of the Company (AR¥Fr) Sat
(RMB’000) 147,427 138,184 B
Weighted average number of STEEREARZFATEAD 7 o=
ordinary shares for the purpose DORE S 15 3 38 A% A% X B8
of basic earnings per share (FHER) (H15t) 2=
(thousand) (Note) 814,817 823,410 £
g il
Basic earnings per share EXBRENAEES)
(RMB cents) 18.1 16.8 5
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the Met FTEMEBRERAREFRN MEFH f
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have LRRIREE - 2B AR 7R D & %
been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company B EIEE THB L ETLERARRAAT g
by an independent trustee under the shares award scheme of the HAERRS -
Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, diluted H E2022F 128318 &20215F128 ;
earnings per share were same as the basic earnings per share B1HIEZHE - BREERNEGR 5
as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding EAZFER  AAEFETEALBRE &
during the year. BB ERM B BT mAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

14

276

DIVIDENDS 14
2021
RMB’000
ARET T
2022 Interim — nil 202G FEHE - &
(2021 Interim — HK2.5 cents) QONFFEHRHR-FRER
per ordinary share &7 #52 .541L) = 17,143
2021 Final — HK10.0 cents 2021 FF B RBA-BRE B
(2020 Final — HK10.0 cents) 7B H10.01ll (2020 S £
per ordinary share RH - AR E AR
PEH10.01L) 69,292 67,711
2021 Special — HK4.0 cents 2021 FEFEEHERIE E-=FRE
(2020 Special — HK4.0 cents) 5B A 4.0l (20204
per ordinary share FERRRE - BREHER
TS HE4.011) 27,716 27,084
97,008 111,938
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final MEEKRE  EELEEFE 2022
dividend of HK12.0 cents (2021: HK10.0 cents) and a special F12A31B L2 FEERE KRR B
dividend of HK4.0 cents (2021: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary FEE@BIREE12.00L (2021F &%
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 have #10.00L) - A REFRIR BB R E &
been proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject A& A 4.0l (20214 B & ¥E4.00L) -
to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the BEESEINBRTHNREREAS
forthcoming annual general meeting. The dividend declared EARRBIRE 2 #E A - R20224F12
after 31 December 2022 has not been recognised as a liability ABIEBEAE RN EAREER AR

as at 31 December 2022.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B T EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

15 1% BEERE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
B £B
EF K& RE BEREE HRIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTn ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Cost B

At 1 January 2021 M2021E1 818 159,042 74,969 5,208 328,135 151,324 718,678
Additions N = 3,793 1,328 5,074 71,491 81,686
Disposals BE = (43) = (13) = (56)
Transfers g% = - - 3,754 (3,754) -
Exchange realignment [ 5 A% (2,894) (33) (268) - - (3,195)
At 31 December 2021 #2021£12A318 156,148 78,686 6268 336950 219,061 797,113
Additions NE - 2,774 133 5334 58,720 66,961
Disposals RE - (1,411) (94) (21,855) - (23,360)
Transfers &% 121,810 - - 8,407  (130,217) -

Transfer to Investment BREREALRE
Property (Note 17) (Brit17) - - - - (140,692  (140,692)
Exchange realignment s 9,109 9% 181 - = 9,386
At 31 December 2022 720224127318 287,067 80,145 6,488 328,836 6,872 709,408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

278

(Continued)

15 ¥ BERRE@

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
BA KB
BT &S RE  BEREE ERIRE CEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR AREBTRT ARETR
Depreciation e

At 1 January 2021 w2011 818 47,113 61,760 3,949 240,644 - 353,466
Provided for the year FREE 5,805 4,281 426 20,290 - 30,802
Eliminated on disposals RERHHE = (43) = 9) = (52)
Exchange realignment [ AR (419) (24) (25) = = (468)
At 31 December 2021 120215124318 52,499 65,974 4,350 260,925 - 383,748
Provided for the year EREE 7,431 4,464 498 20,839 - 33232
Eliminated on disposals B B - (1,049) (84) (21,780) = (22,913)
Exchange realignment L 1,619 899 101 - - 2,619
At 31 December 2022 120225124318 61,549 70,288 4,865 259,984 - 396,686

Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2022 120225124318 225,518 9,857 1,623 68,852 6,872 312,722
At 31 December 2021 #2021£12A4318 103,649 12,712 1,918 76,025 219,061 413,365

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

16 LEASES 16 HE 252
2 ek
This note provides information for leases where the Group is A TIRENHEE S R ANE R AX Sﬁjj
a lessee. A
= £
(i) Amounts recognised in the (i) ZREMBRARDER é;
consolidated statement of financial & 28
position

v i
s
S fi
Sk
i
S
T~
o
=3

2022

The consolidated statement of financial position shows fre MR & R S E

the following amounts relating to leases: RS EENAT ¢ -
= é i
Leasehold Leased % ‘:E;“
Right-of-use assets lands  properties Total o
EREEE HELH HEW* &t 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARBTT ARMTT ARETT s
At 1 January 2021 R2021%F1A1H 25,239 16,681 41,920 %
Additions NE - 3,189 3,189 =
Depreciation b= (564) (6,720) (7,284) 5
At 31 December 2021 72021128318 24,675 13,150 37,825 E
At 1 January 2022 7202291 A1H 24,675 13,150 37,825 £
Additions NE - 2,384 2,384
Depreciation ik (564) (5,680) (6.244) o
Lease modification HE#E = (1,069) (1,069) Eoif
At 31 December 2022 7202212A31H 24,111 8,785 32,896 gv g p
(G
2021
RMB’000 5o
ARBETFT 2gé
= © g
Lease liabilities HEEE o
Current 5 HA 5,883 7,107 5
Non-current JEIRHA 2,991 7,221 égl
2 S
®
8,874 14,328 g

EHEREEZRERAT

—g-=f5g8g 2/9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

16 LEASES (continued) 16 HE @
(i) Amounts recognised in the (i) MEBERIBANS
consolidated statement of profit or -t2)
loss
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the SEERRTPHEHEEREN S
following amounts relating to leases: BT
2021
RMB’'000
ARET T
Depreciation charge of EREEEREER
right-of-use assets
Leasehold lands HELH 564 564
Leased properties HEME 5,680 6,720
6,244 7,284
Expense relating to short-term leases £ %5 HA 8 & 8 B8 49 f 2
(included in cost of goods sold and (5t A $4& B AR FN1T X
administrative expenses) HY) 195 151
The total cash outflow for leases during the year MREE2022F128318 L2 &F
ended 31 December 2022 was RMB6,621,000 (2021: E HERSRHEABEAAR
RMB6,153,000) excluding short-term leases. #6,621,0007T (2021F : A KB

#6,153,0007T) * HHF T IE
EHIFEE -

280  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B T EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

16 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how

these are accounted for

The Group leases various leasehold lands and properties
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 50 years for leasehold lands and 2 years
to 5 years for properties.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Variable lease payments

A lease of equipment is either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease that is based on the
volume of printing and minimum annual lease payment
that is fixed over the lease term. The amount of fixed
and variable lease payment paid/payable to relevant

16 HE @)

(i) A REMOEEFH AR
MAETETEE

AEEBAEKERESEMAE
TR E - BETHAEON
& E HIR AS504 - ¥ HR
R2FESF o

HEGRARBILHEN 82
B 1E R B 16 SR (5 AF o BR
MABBHEEEMNERER
S - TAE B I RA] -
HEEETSERBRER -

(iv) T2 BENS

KB HEREAEEHEER
HRBEERER S0 &4
EREHEEHRAEENKESF
HEX BEAFE: B2k
e =48 B A A B9 Bl E M Al

lessor for the years ended: HHEERNESHEA
2021
RMB’000
ARET T
Fixed payments & F 3 720 1,440
Variable payments Al R 344 173
Total payments BRI REE 1,064 1,613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S BF 7S 3R 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 17 REY=
2021
Note RMB’000
Bt AR®BT T
Non-current assets — at cost ERBEE - BEAAK
Opening balance as at 1 January 1 A1 H B4 &R 60,789 62,576
Transfer from property, HETEEER
plant and equipment 15 140,692 -
Exchange realignment PE W 8 5 5,626 (1,787)
Closing balance as at 31 December 12 A31H #i Kk 4564 207,107 60,789
Depreciation e
Opening balance as at 1 January 1 A1 H 894 & 9,792 7,994
Provided for the year F R 3,879 2,056
Exchange realignment PE W 8 5 1,000 (258)
Closing balance as at 31 December 12 A31H #i Kk 4564 14,671 9,792
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December MW12H31H 192,436 50,997
(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (i) REVECEBRRZRE
for investment properties Er N O -
2021
RMB’'000
ARET T
Rental income from operating KEHEE WA
leases 2,034 1,463

Direct operating expenses from EAHEEW AW ER

property that generated rental EHE&ZER

income (2,206) (2,056)
Direct operating expenses from FTELEEAEW AN ERN

property that did not generate ~ BE#E&=ZEHH

rental income (1,673) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 17 REVZE @m0
=t
& Ex
(ii) Leasing arrangement (i) HEZH e
The investment properties are leased to tenants under REMERBRLKEHERER E
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. Lease HPEP HEBALN &8 A s
income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor HEANEEHEEAMMEE -
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the WAREHERANZEREER B
lease term. AUA o i
ERS
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 M2022€128318 * NEHAL ] o
December 2022 were RMB54,231,000 for investment REEBNKREDENLDAEBE =8
property located in Hong Kong (2021: RMB51,198,000) A AR BS54 231,000t (2021
and RMB189,404,000 for investment property located F: AR#51,198,0007T) ° & c S
in Zhuhai (2021: n/a), separately. The fair value has been ERNRHRBHNEREYENRL EEE
arrived at based on a series of valuation carried out by HEBEAAK189,404,000T o2y
Asset Appraisal Limited for investment property located in (20214 : T MA) - AR BEE
Hong Kong and Zhuhai Chengxinda Real Estate Evaluation EREBEB T HEKERHES 5
Co., Ltd for investment property located in Zhuhai, both EEEBEEAR A MG H S
independent valuers, and consideration of management by FEITHEMEREETHA 2
reference to market value comparison. BARNEREEBXREHEET 5
IS - 5
The valuation has been arrived by reference to direct HEIEREELEE A E T 2
comparison method as available in the market and S FRENEE TEBEERB
where appropriate, on the basis of referencing to the MTEREHZBNMK SR EHE S m
sales transactions of similar commercial properties in MERNHERS - %gfﬁ
Hong Kong and Zhuhai. E 3%
O XX
In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest EIEUENRALEBER 3 g2
and best use of the property is their current use. ZOENRSMZEFRERE s "
ERIRER - B
Details of the Group’s investment property and HEAZEH K NEFKSE = ;%t
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end MENFBEBRNLAABEERE g5 il
of the reporting period are as follows: AT sga®
2021 5
Fair value
Carrying at level 3 w ol
amount Hierarchy g2
Z3ER é‘g;
BHEEE AnEE ‘
RMB'000 RMB'000 g
ARETT ARETT 5
investment property located RBEBNRENE égr\ﬂl
in Hong Kong 53,503 54,231 50,997 51,198 g 4
investment property located IRERB IR E Y% S
in Zhuhai 138,933 189,404 - -
The above investment properties are depreciated for 20- bt 1B Y # R B 4R A 72 20-30 55
30 years on a straight-line basis. FHRAFE - =3

SHEEEERERAR —T-—FF8H 283



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B ETE R AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

284

18 BELEE

Trademarks Goodwill Total
[k RS T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT ARETIT
At 1 January 2021 ®2021€181A8
Cost (3N 18,318 1,375 19,693
Accumulated amortisation 2 E MR E
and impairment (16,222) - (16,222)
Net book amount RHEFE 2,096 1,375 3,471
Year ended 31 December 220215128318 1
2021 ZEE
Opening net book amount HYREFE 2,096 1,375 3,471
Impairment charge B A 52 - (1,375) (1,375)
Amortisation charge iR Y (2,096) = (2,096)
Closing net book amount HIRAREHE - - -
At 31 December 2021 M2021%F12A318
Cost (3N 18,318 1,375 19,693
Accumulated amortisation 2 E MR E
and impairment (18,318) (1,375) (19,693)
Net book amount REFE - - _
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

18 BEEE @

Corporate
Information
GHRER

GE
2

Highlights
B 5

Financial

Year ended 31 December HZ2022%12A318 1t o

2022 ZEE §oK
Opening net book amount HYRESE = - - : §§
Impairment charge WE RS - - - -
Amortisation charge BiHMAY - - - c S
Closing net book amount HRBRES B = - - Gt
At 31 December 2022 ®2022%12831H £
Cost B A 18,318 1,375 19,693 Sk
Accumulated amortisation and &+ 55 & e

impairment (18,318) (1,375) (19,693) %gﬁ

=

Net book amount RHEFE - - -

The trademarks are with finite useful lives and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over periods of 5 to 9 years. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the trademarks were fully
amortised.

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

EMIZEEARERER - BESEIOF
NABE &R EEEH - Bl 22021F12A4
BMAEZFE  BRE 2 -

19 REFERT 2B

AR L2 BERT -
AR
A W 2 1 S 0 B

Unlisted investments in associates,
at cost

Share of post-acquisition results
and reserves

Impairment loss on interests in an
associate

Nl NIk

ERIEY E i

2021

RMB’000

ARETTT

2,200 2,200
1,300 1,300
(3,500) (3,500)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

286

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Name of entity

EEEZR

REZE2022F12831B 1L 2 F &

EEWMT -

Proportion of issued ordinary
share and capital indirectly held
by the Group

Country of incorporation
and operation

Kaixin Holdings Limited
JErRER AT

Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc.
("Goldpac ACS")

Sichuan Zhongruan Technology
Ltd. ("SCZR")
M) R ERERRAA
(Tm)iheEl)

19 REEE N T 2= @)

RARERRAE B L QR 2 F4

Principal activity

FEEH

MASEFEERENERT

RYMNELER EERRER 2L

The British Virgin Islands 45% 45%
EEABRES

Philippines 45% 45%
FRE

The Chinese Mainland 19.68% 19.68%
B Ay (Note i) (Note i)

(Ktzi) (Hrati)

Investment holding
) NG

Data processing

BEEE

Smart city platform
BERTTA

Note i: In February 2021, two external professional firms were appointed by

the court to act as the liquidation administrators of SCZR pursuant
to the court order ((2020)/1/0104%4%; & £ £). The operation and
management of SCZR during the period of bankruptcy and liquidation
is undertaken by the bankruptcy administrator. In November 2021, the
court declared the bankruptcy of SCZR. In June 2022, the bankruptcy
administrator announced the distribution plan of SCZR's remaining
assets but the liquidation process was still in progress at 31 December
2022. Therefore, according to HKAS28R (“Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures”), the Group has reclassified the equity investment
of SCZR from interest in an associate to FVTPL as the Group has lost
significant influence over SCZR. The Group has reviewed and estimated
the fair value of SCZR on a regular basis under the requirement of
HKFRS9. Please refer to Note 3.2 for more details about the fair value
of the equity investment as at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19 REBEE QT 2 #EHE @ 25z
S DK
S Ew
Aggregate information of associates that BRIEEKEZ DTN ESZL S2¢
are not individually material =L = L8y
2 oiE
2021 E¥R
RMB’000 B
AR T T N ET
The Group's share of losses of REBE(RHES AR ZEIRE 25
associates - - .
Aggregate carrying amount of AEBRBE QR ESZEREER g
the Group's interests in these BEASE
associates = - s .
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss AEEEEILBERELMBE AR ZEH E
of associates because the Group's share of losses of the B EEAEEZAIHFELEZEA g
associates in previous years has exceeded its investment RAEESBEHBERENA - RE g
costs. The amounts of the unrecognised share of losses of the REMBENRZEEESRE (KFH -
associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: MEFFE)WMT : _—
Sgﬁ
2021 EBis
RMB'000 £
ARBFT 70
Unrecognised share of losses of the ANFREREEEHE RAIZ e
associates for the year E518 (144) (1,185) 2ol
£ Y
5SS G
Accumulated unrecognised share of R&FFRIEREGEE AR 2 A5
losses of the associates E5 18 (5,260) (5,116) Of
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20

21

288

INVENTORIES

2021
RMB’'000
ARET T
Raw materials R %4 260,157 207,034
Work in progress X i 2,449 5,369
Finished goods X i 168,281 120,778
430,887 333,181

Less: write-down of inventories to W OB TEEE #IHFEE
net realisable values (68,266) (46,260)
362,621 286,921

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to RMB933,325,000 (2021:
RMB826,971,000). These were included in cost of sales.
Write-down of inventories to net realisable values amounted
to RMB22,006,000 (2021: RMB(9,510,000)). These were
recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 December
2022 and included in cost of sales in the statement of profit
of loss and other comprehensive income (Note 8).

REZE2022F12A318ILZEE » 77
EREMEKAERAER Wit AH
E kA & ARE933,325,0007T (2021
£ AR #¥826,971,000T) - REZE
2022F12A31B L2 F & BT
EEERFERRAEA  TitA
RABEEREMEEBRARAEEK
N A ANR22,006,0007T (20214 :
AER#(9,510,0007T)) (Ki3E8) o

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 EWER
2021
RMB’000
ARETFIT
Trade receivables e g = 345,271 347,374
Less: Loss allowance (Note) R ER IR B E (BT AE) (4,949) (5,035)
340,322 342,339

Note: Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk can be found in note 3.1(b).

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables. The assessment resulted in a decrease of the loss
allowance on 31 December 2022 by RMB86,000 for trade receivables.
Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the allowance.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21

22

e B R R AR B RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers
from date of issuance. The following is an ageing analysis

FE W& FX ()

REFNEREEEREROIAAEER-

HEENNRIEREELRIEE - BE
— A FAEBHRE308 £2150H K
HEPYIN -ZEWBRZEAHEI G

of trade receivables net of provision for impairment loss quygz (KB FEEEZEE) Rk

presented based on the invoice date: DT
2021
RMB'000
ART T

Ageing BR R

0 — 90 days 0-90H 237,750 260,511
91 — 180 days 91-180H 47,892 34,250
181 — 365 days 181-365H 28,408 33,458
Over 1 year Bim—F 26,272 14,120
340,322 342,339

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22

(i) Classification of financial assets at
FVTPL:

BARBEFARRZE
MEE

() BAREBEESFARERZ

The Group classifies the structured deposits at FVTPL: AEBHUTHEEETERDE
RIBARBEEAEBSE

2021
RMB’'000
ARET T

Current assets — Structured MEEE - £BEFR
deposits - 180,205
The Group classifies the unlisted equity SCZR as FVTPL, AREBERM)I|FREH AR EH

please refer to Note 3.2 for more details about the fair
value of the equity investment as at 31 December 2022.

EHEREEZRERAT

RESERANBHEFTEAHR
FEAEHIEN RERE
2022128318 A A BE
HRMFE32 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B ETE R AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(ii) Risk exposure and fair value
measurements

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk
is provided in Note 3.1. For information about the
methods and assumptions used in determining fair value
refer to note 3.2.

BAREBEFAEZZS
A& E @)

(i) AEMORQAREESR

=

=

B BA 7 5 [ [ B O B 1% LR BY
ER - H2AME31 - BRHH®
ERAABENTERBERENR
MIES  F2RME32-

23 CONTRACT ASSETS 23 EHEE

2021
RMB’'000
ARET T

Embedded software and BMAXRGENEZ 2T ER
secure payment products 1,352 1,986
Digital equipment H T HE 9,285 12,068
10,637 14,054

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
receive remaining payments from customers and not billed
because rights are conditioned on the satisfaction of quality
over the products delivered at the reporting date. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional. The condition is fulfilled upon
the completion of retention period which is normally between
6 months to 1 year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

4 Lt FE WA 78 A FK

PREPAYMENTS
2021
RMB’000
AREFIT
Current mE
— Deposits paid to suppliers -G EHERNES 32,086 15,752
— Rental and utility deposits - e MKERS 1,720 1,592
— Tender deposits - RIERFES 8,590 9,606
— Prepayment to suppliers - IR EERTEN R 55,631 10,415
— Tax refund receivables — FEYCE R X 2,541 2,602
— Employee welfare - EBT@mA 1,777 1,720
— Others - Hfh 242 1,319
Non-current IERB
— Deposits paid to suppliers - TG HEERNRS 84,500 -
187,087 43,006

Corporate
Information
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2022

Vo
T @
£ EH
= 3 fe
=2
STy
Sh

Management Discussion

PEER

2
@
S

&
T

=

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
provided borrowings with a total of RMB394,000 (2021:
RMB590,000) to Goldpac ACS for maintaining its daily
operation.

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the directors of the
Company believe that there is significant increase in credit
risk of the amount due from an associate since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on lifetime ECL. Accordingly, an expected credit loss of
RMB394,000 (2021: RMB590,000) was recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment loss on amount due from an associate.

Details of impairment assessment of amount due from an
associate are set out in Note 3.1(b).

EHEREEZRERAT

25 EUWEE N EFRIE

HE2022912A8318HILFE - KEH
MGoldpac ACSIRHtERIHLFT AR
394,0007T (20214 = A R #¥590,000
o) MBERERRKE -

RERAERR RS HEREREER -

M2022412 8318 2021512 A31
B ARRIEERAE B VIRERIAR
JEUREE & N R FRIBMZ E R FEE 1Y
m MAEBEERKGTEHREEESE
FHRBEREE - At - BHEEEE
A R #394,0007T (20214 : AR M
590,0007T) A 18 &5 7 7 3R A& FE B
BNRRIBRERIE -

FE W Bt 2 R B SRIBURE R A B R
B 3E3.1(b) B 77 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

26

292

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

EEARTER  RTE
HERNBRERAEEE
7l

2021

RMB’000

AREF T

Cash at banks and in hand RTERMIEBS 438,003 252,490
Short-term bank deposits with an =& A sk AR E Hi Y

original maturity of three months ySR=RERN
or less 189,591 64,254
Cash and cash equivalent e RReEED 627,594 316,744

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.

The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills payables and
carry fixed interest rate ranging from 0.30% to 3.99% (2021:
0.30% to 3.99%) per annum. As at 31 December 2022,
RMB226,953,000 (2021: RMB219,210,000) represents bank
deposits pledged to banks for the Group’s bank facilities.

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the floating
rate of 0% to 0.30% (2021: 0% to 0.30%) per annum.

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group are denominated in
RMB and carry interest at the fixed rate of 2.65% to 4.68%
(2021: 0.89% to 4.13%) per annum. Fixed bank deposits
of RMB126,500,000 will be matured over one year as at 31
December 2022(2021: RMB102,975,000).

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are set out
in Note 3.1(b).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27 ENERRKRENEE

Corporate
Information
GHRER

2021
RMB'000
ART T \Ef@i
Trade payables FE 7 5 2% 259,465 321,963 \
Bills payables — secured BEMENZE 77,228 100,543 3%
Not
336,693 422506 -
Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 BN ERERER BB EEREZG é ?
to 180 days of recognition. The bills payables are secured by HZ180B A F A o FERTZ 4 A 53t
pledged bank deposits. EERRITERIER/ER - -
The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables are HAREIRRE ENERLEMNERE %
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their MWEEEEHEAHE AL BENRS - &
short-term nature. é
The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables LT ABEERERENETRENEZE s
based on invoice date and bill issuance date respectively at REREZMOHEZEER A HENERER D
the end of the year. o EHQ
2021 = 50
RMB'000 BEg
AR®ET T 5
o
Ageing AR R 5 ?’z
0 - 90 days 0-90H 272,295 344,496 S
91 — 180 days 91-180H 52,520 76,338 5% §jﬁ
181 - 365 days 181-365H 8,799 904 578
Over 1 year iR —F 3,079 768 “
336,693 422,506 S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

28 BANK BORROWINGS 28 SRITHEM
2021
RMB’000
ART T

Current liabilities REAE

Bank borrowings — unsecured AT R — IR 44,818 -

(@) All the bank borrowings are at floating rates. (@) FBRITEREAEZHFE -

(b)  All the bank borrowings are credit loan and the carrying by FIERTEXAREAER
amounts of the bank borrowings are denominated in RITERNERMERBUABEET -
HKD.

() All the bank borrowings are repayable within one year. (0 MERTERHEE—FKRNE

ii o
29 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29 EHNEE
2021
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Embedded software and HRA R B
secure payment products TEXNER 177,298 28,053

The Group receives 10% to 100% of the contract value BHEERIIAAE  AEBKRE

as deposit from customers when they sign the contracts FAEXHNEEMI0%EI00%IEAERF

with customers. Contract liabilities represent the receipts in RES é%@ﬁ{ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ%%ﬂ =y
advance from customers which is recognised as revenue at EYiEsHERNE Sy EEERE

a point in time when the control of the goods is transferred BB FER UL A - E Z=2022F12H31

to the customers. During the year ended 31 December 2022, HIEZHE BAEFOEHEER

revenue recognised in the current year relating to contract A H UL A A R #525,552,0007T (2021

liabilities at the beginning of the year is RMB25,552,000 £ ANR#¥43,734,0007T) °

(2021: RMB43,734,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

30 OTHER PAYABLES 30 HtENR

2021 S24
RMB'000

ART T ggi

Payroll and welfare payables R IEREF 45,913 37,145 \
Delivery and postage payables BB REE 5,015 4,833 a%
Other tax payables H fth fE T R I8 5,662 27,871 8 &K
Accrued expenses BIREA 54,576 13,827 " 2R
Others Hh 3,393 4,034 -
S

114,559 87,710 o

Sak

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 EEBE 5
Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary EEFIESRIEA GBI HEOR EE éﬁii
differences under the liability method using the tax rates BEAREHEHNCEAREED LB g;ﬁm
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting period EHHTIREEN o grH
date. :
The following amounts, determined after appropriate UTSECELEBEENGE T BR gﬁil
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of SRERBRMT - ggm
financial positions: -
2021 s
RMB'000 B
ART T - §7
feda
Net deferred income tax assets BRI IELETIEE =55 §§ Sa
recognised 25,946 7,694 S
Net deferred income tax liabilities B R IELE R IE & & )F 5 o

recognised (33,397) (27,453)

w i

(7.451) (19,759) 288
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M @

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

296

31 EEHIE @)

The movements in the deferred income tax assets are as T ARELERIBEEEMNE
follows:
Temporary
differences
arising from
loss allowance Accrued
and write-down expenses,
of inventories salaries
to net realisable payable and
values others Total
MEBREER
HEFEEE HiREA
MERREEE PE{S 5
MNEREER Hit |t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBT T AREBT T
At 1 January 2021 R20214E1 A1H 9,400 - 9,400
Charged to profit or loss FAREBZEF N
during the year (Note 12) (Brat12) (1,706) = (1,706)
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A831H 7,694 - 7,694
Credited to profit or loss F AR 2R A I A0
during the year (Note 12) (Ktaz12) 3,276 14,976 18,252
At 31 December 2022 72022512H31H 10,970 14,976 25,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 31 EERE w0 o5
The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities are as NTAELEHIBEAENE 524
follows:

The PRC's E

withholding

tax on Unrealised 0
undistributed interest NSk
earnings income Total N o
FOBABM RERM ==
R A TR HI B HMEWA = .
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 %

)
s
9]
D
©
&H

ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Chairman’s

At 1 January 2021 R2021€1 818 (21,759) - (21,759) .
Charged to profit or loss FRRBZP R g

during the year (Note 12) (Baz12) (5,694) = (5,694) 2
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H (27,453) - (27,453) z
Charged to profit or loss FARBEF R

during the year (Note 12) (Kiat12) (2,743) (3,201) (5,944) e m
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H (30,196) (3,201) (33,397) L
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax loss to W2022%F12831H - AEEA AR -
be carried forward against future taxable income amounting HMAKRAEF Z R FERNBRIESERE A m
to RMB16,313,000 (2021: RMB7,362,000). No deferred tax E #16,313,0007T (20214 : A B = gﬁ
asset has been recognised in relation to the unused tax losses 7,362,0007T) ° F AR 3K % A B9 A A] g?f“
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Losses FERIM - BEmt ok R 2 S 53
may be carried forward indefinitely. TEEFRIAEE - ZEBEMEKINER Eg”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash generated from operations

32 REAREEHR
KRETEHMBESE

2021
RMB’000
ARETT
Cash flows from operating RETHELECZHERE
activities
Profit before income tax B P 1S T A& A 164,070 154,939
Adjustments for: BTHEEHE
Gain on fair value changes of BAREBEFABRZEH
financial assets at FVTPL BEAABEEDKR - (205)
Investment income from financial BAREBEFABREZ
assets at FVTPL EREERERA (1,262) (5,126)
Interest income from bank RITIE A B WA
deposits (27,681) (23,900)
Interest expense for bank RITERFERZ
borrowings 2,320 -
Unwinding interest income from HEBRESWAELEZ
deposits paid to suppliers FEWA (2,498) -
Interest expense discounted from HEBRESHAELEZ
deposits paid to suppliers MELH 8,084 =
Depreciation of property, ¥ BEREETE
plant and equipment 33,232 30,802
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EHAREENE 6,244 7,284
Depreciation of investment REMENE
property 3,879 2,056
Amortisation of intangible assets I - 2,096
Impairment of intangible assets B EERME - 1,375
Loss on disposal of property, BREWE  BERZESR
plant and equipment 447 4
Impairment loss on amount FEWE & AR 2 FEEE
due from an associate 394 590
Modification of lease liabilities HE# (741) -
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESBMERXE 593 782
187,081 170,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 32 BHEREER @
Cash generated from operations (continued) RETERABRE @
2021
RMB'000
AREFTT
Operating profit before working BESEEHANK LS
capital changes in:
— Inventories -FE (75,561) (96,583)
— Contract assets —AHEE 3,417 (542)
— Trade receivables — U E R 3,660 (71,726)
— Other receivables and —Hi R R BN K
prepayments (147,999) (21,730)
— Contract liabilities —-AHEaE 149,245 (22,811)
— Trade and bills payables - ENERRENRE (86,898) 57,256
— Other payables — H T 3K 11,227 (2,806)
- Government grants — B R - (1,858)
Cash generated from operations RETHABEES 44,172 9,897
33 SHARE CAPITAL 33 B
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
TEREE kX
‘000 HKD'000
T+ BT T
Issued and fully paid: BEETHAR :
At 31 December 2021 2021 12H31H 828,005 1,499,498
Shares bought back on-market & E1ETh 3% £ B 8 I 5 38
and cancelled (8,428) =
At 31 December 2022 20229 12H31H 819,577 1,499,498
RMB’000
AREF T
Shown in the consolidated financial %R 44 B iR % —
statements as of 31 December R2021F12H8318H &
2021 and 2022 20229 12H31H 1,192,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

33

34

300

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

From July to October 2022 the Company purchased
5,114,000 ordinary shares on-market in order to simplify the
company’s capital structure, and cancelled those 5,114,000
ordinary shares in November 2022. Additionally, 3,314,000
ordinary shares purchased in 2021 were cancelled in January
2022. The buy-back and cancellation were approved by
shareholders at last year’s annual general meeting, and the
payment was made out of the company’s distributable profits
with no reduction of capital.

The shares were acquired at an average price of HKD1.54
per share, with prices ranging from HKD1.28 to HKD1.65.
The total amount of HKD7,899,000 (RMB6,867,000) paid to
acquire the shares has been deducted from retained earnings
within shareholders’ equity.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share award scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from
11 December 2015. The objectives of the Share Award
Scheme are to (i) align the interests of any employee,
adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of
any member of the Group whom the directors in its sole
discretion considers may contribute or have contributed to
the Group (the “Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate
the contribution of the Participants and to provide incentives
in retaining the Participants for future operation and
development of the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel
for the long-term growth and further strategic expansion of
the Group.

The Company has engaged the Trustee to administer and
hold the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases the
Company's shares being awarded from the open market with
funds provided by the Company by way of contributions.

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRAN SACT'ON S (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares under
the Share Award Scheme to the Participants. The shares
awarded shall be vested in three years on each anniversary
of the first vesting date, which is 26 November 2017,
in equal portions. The estimated fair value of the shares
award granted at the grant date were approximately
HKD27,564,000 (equivalent to RMB24,239,000) based on the
market price of the relevant shares at the grant date.

As at 31 December 2022, all these shares were either vested
or forfeited; for which a total of 8,146,000 shares of the
Company were held by the Trustee at the year end date.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Trustee did
not acquire any ordinary shares of the Company (2021: Nil),
and no shares were granted to employees under the Share
Award Scheme during the year. The Group did not recognise
any expense for the year ended 31 December 2022 in
relation to the share awards granted by the Company (2021:
nil). At 31 December 2022, 8,146,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (2021: 8,146,000 shares) are held by the Trustee.

EHEREEZRERAT

3 LURHBAERNARS

(1)
B4 B E & (@)

M20174F58 - A& @ 110,374,000
ekt RENET B A RO X TR &2
BE -RBERMEXEEFER (B
2017F11H268) £ 03F 58 -
FTHEBHHEMRAR -ZETHEHNMS
EBRGHE  BEpRONBEFEHNAA
BE A B 27,564,000 (T4 4 A
R#24,239,0007T) °

M2022%F 128318 © Fi A ZE IR D
ERBERDEAW SEAREXREA
NN F18,146,0000% & 3@ A% o

H E2022F12A831BILFE > ¥+
ARUREE AR D B AR (20214
#/) FARRBRERODRBAEERT
BT EMRKR ML - B E2022F12A31
HIEFE AEEBTEFAQARRT
1 A% 15 22 B fE SR T eI B 52 (20214F -
M) o PR2022F12A31H ' KT AH
A 7R A 7)8,146,0000% & @ A% (2021
£ : 8,146,0000%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

35 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or the future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows from financing activities.

35

MEFTHELE 2B EHE
&

TRAFMIAAEBEARERDE
ENEEEY  BRRSMFESE
B -ARMETDEENBBEEELS
EiReRenEXRTRIBR/IBE
BWOBRREETHNIRSRIAKR
%/AL*HE@E’]E{E °

Dividend Lease Bank
payable liabilities borrowings Total
R E HESE RITER &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBFTT ARBTIT AREBTR
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1818 - 16,510 - 16,510
Financing cash flow BETHRER (111,938) (6,153) = (118,091)
Dividend declared TR E 111,938 = = 111,938
New leases entered HEII2HE - 3,189 — 3,189
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE = 782 = 782
At 31 December 2021 720214128318 - 14,328 - 14,328
As at 1 January 2022 2022F 1818 - 14,328 - 14,328
Financing cash flow BB EHRE R (97.008) (6,621) 44,664 (58,965)
Dividend declared TR E 97,008 - - 97,008
New leases entered I HE - 2,384 - 2,384
Modification of lease sk - (1,810) - (1,810)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE - 593 = 593
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERF B - - 2,320 2,320

Interest payments for bank RITERF S

borrowings - - (2,166) (2,166)
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H - 8,874 44,818 53,692
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

36 OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to
investment property owned by the Group with lease terms
from one year to ten years, without an extension option. The
lessee does not have an option to purchase the property at
the expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

KelE
AEEERHBEA
AEBERLEANCEBE SR
ARBAEENREEFNE HES

1-10%F « MIEHE 23 - A AEAE
EREEEEEZWE -

HESERKBESZHNOT :

2021

RMB'000

ARET T

Within one year —F RN 4,678 1,172
In the second year F_F 6,006 1,118
In the third year FE=4 4,988 1,305
In the fourth year Eyuigas 2,269 -
In the fifth year EFRF 816 -
Over five years BilAF 3,546 -
22,303 3,595

37 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as
follows:

37 BEAXRKILE

RERECRFITEWERERREEN
EREARFAZWT

2021
RMB’000
ARBTT

Capital expenditure contracted BRREDE  BE X
for but not provided in the FEREFTHER A
consolidated financial statements KEREBIFEIRER A
in respect of acquisition of =N
property, plant and equipment

23,971 32,962
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38

39

304

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

38 2R TESE

AEBBEATERIA

2021
RMB'000
ARETF T
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHER A EZSRMEE
Trade receivables FEWE 340,322 342,339
Other receivables H 1 U X 131,456 32,591
Pledged bank deposits IR ITIER 226,953 219,210
Fixed bank deposits RITEHTFR 494,643 697,605
Cash and cash equivalents ReKREEEY 627,594 316,744
1,820,968 1,608,489
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREBETABEZ
EEEE - 180,205
1,820,968 1,788,694
Financial liabilities tHas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ#EHKA AT EZ SR A B
Trade and bill payables ERERRENEE 336,693 422,506
Other payables H M JE - 3K 62,984 22,694
Bank borrowings RITENR 44,818 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 8,874 14,328
453,369 459,528

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period
is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances with related
parties disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the period, the Group has no significant
transactions with related parties.

The details of compensation of key management personnel

and remuneration of the directors of the Company are set
out in Note 11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

40 SUBSIDIARIES 40 FffE 2 7]
A2022%E 128318 * KA RIEAH
FTEMRBRAFBEHN TR - BRIE
FEHEP B ARNKRAERAR
REEFENTAKRER  MAR A
AN EEEREREERE - »
AERHE AR EFTEHEA

Corporate

The Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held
directly by the Company, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Company.
None of the principal subsidiaries of the Company issued

Financial

any debt securities as at the date of this Annual Report. The BT EMELRE S - BRI N 20
country of incorporation or registration is also their principal W MR Rt EE FEERKH R o
place of business. 2k o =8
Place of Particulars of 59
incorporation and issued share capital Ownership interest held 58 b
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity Principal activities  and debt securities by the Company o
BaulARE ERTRAR =
KEAR Rt EH IEXK EBUESEE AATRRNFARRR o=
Goldpac Investment Limited (Note ) Hong Kong, limited Property holding Ordinary share 100% 100% %
liability company - HKD1 5 I
SREREBRAA M) Bt RRAMAR UESH LRk -
_EEIT -
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ (Note ii) (Note iii) and ~ Ordinary shares 100% 100% 2 =
(Note ) company investment holding - HKD500,000 v BIE
SAEYBARLNA ML) B BRRELT (Witi) Wit k- BBRH g3
BRAR - /H500,0007 s
Goldpac Innovation Limited (Aote /) The British Virgin slands, ~ Investment holding ~ Ordinary shares 100% 100%
limited liability company -UsD100 T
EREfAT - Z71007 53
SecureTech Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Investment holding ~ Ordinary shares 70% 60%
limited liability company -UsD100
ABAARES BRAA Lakh 4
ARRTAH - X700 g2
Goldpac Fintech Private Limited Singapore, limited liability  (Note ii) Ordinary shares 170% 60% =
company -5GD100 B
wmg BREERA (W) LRRM 2
- EE100T § =
o 88
Goldpac Fintech Philippines Limited Inc. The Philippines, limited (Note iii) Ordinary shares 10% 60% ge b
liability company - PHP11,000,000 g
SFRE-RRELRR (W) Lkt S
- SFBE R Z11,000,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B SRR MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

40 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40 M A B @

Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued share capital Ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity Principal activities  and debt securities by the Company
ERALHS BRARER
WEAH RteEREH IEXH ERUESRE AAARENFARRER
2021
Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ (Note ii) (Note i) Ordinary share 10% 60%
company - HKD1
PHECRMRERARAT &k RREELE (Hritii) (i) LaRA
- BB
Goldpac Limited (Note ) The Chinese mainland, (Note ii) (Note iif) and ~ Registered capital 100% 100%
limited liability company* ~ investment holding - USD43,000,000
SRERRAF W) mEMY BREEAF (W) Wik AWER
BRAT - %743,000,0007
Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin) ~ The Chinese mainland, (Note iv) Registered capital 100% 100%
limited liability company* - RMB20,000,000
SRERERE (RZ) BRAA AR AREFAR (W) AR
- A& 20,000,000
Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company The Chinese mainland, Investment holding ~ Registered capital 100% 100%
(Note i) limited liability company* - USD10,000,000
KETeAECRNRERARAA M)  PEMM AREALAY  BRAT AMER
- %710,000,0007C
UMV International Holding Limited (Note ) Hong Kong, limited Investment holding ~ Ordinary share 100% 100%
liability company - HKD1,000
SHEREBERERRA (M) &k RREELH BRAT LaRA
- 1,007
UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) The Chinese mainland, (Note v) Registered capital 100% 100%
("UMV Zhuhai") limited liability company* - RMB10,000,000
SHERBR(RE) ERAR([ENER])  HEM EREEAF:  (Hd) AR
- NE#10,000,0007
Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai)  The Chinese mainland, (Note vi) Registered capital (Note vii) (Note vij)
Co,, Ltd. (“Zhirong") limited liability company* - RMB10,000,000
BRERMK KR ARAT([ERER))  +ERM AREERE  (Hiv) AR (fietvii) (fistvi)
- NE10,000,0007
& Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law * BERBREFMAIIEGBESE
# Registered under PRC law ! R IE P B A 2 e

306  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Directly held by the Company.

Embedded software and secure payment products for smart secure
payment.

Provision of data processing, system platforms, other total solutions
and digital equipment for customers in a wide business range including
financial, government, healthcare, transportation and retails by
leveraging innovative Fintech.

Provision of logistical auxiliary service.

Provision of consultancy services on information technology research
and development.

Provision of computer software and hardware, research and
development in network technology and the restricted business (the
“Subject Business”).

On 8 February 2021, UMV Zhuhai, entered into a series of Variable
Interest Entity agreements (“Contractual Arrangements” which
include The Exclusive Technological Consultation, and Services
Agreement, The Exclusive Business Co-operation Agreement, The
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, The Equity Pledge Agreement, The
Spousal Consent Letter and The Loan Agreement) with Zhirong and
Zhirong's PRC Equity Owner. Such Contractual Arrangements enable the
Group to control Zhirong. The PRC Equity Owner is a nephew of both
Mr. Lu Run Ting and Mr. Lu Runyi. Mr. Lu Runyi is an executive Director
of the Company. Upon entering into the Contractual Arrangements,
the financial results of Zhirong were consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of UMV Zhuhai and Zhirong became an indirect
subsidiary of the Company.

Zhirong was wholly owned by the PRC Equity Owner and is principally
engaged in the Subject Business. As advised by the PRC legal advisers
and set out below, information service platform for online data
processing and transactions processing services as well as information
service businesses (the “Restricted Business”) of the Subject
Business fall within the scope of “Value-added Telecommunication
("VAT") Services” and Zhirong has obtained the VAT License under
the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC to operate the above
services.

40 [t & 2 =) @
Hiat -
(i) BHARAREERA -

(i) BEXEXMNEANBRAXNRKGEMEZE
XNEM

iy REHR BF #HE B TEZE
REBEFREHBERE RHTA
HpBEBERRDRRBFRE -

(iv) Rk e R -

(v) RHEBFEEANRARREROERR
% o

(vi) RREEREEMS  BERMTERZ
R ((BRNEB]) -

(vii) 202142A8H £ B £ pt 815 g © AR AN
*“r‘:ﬁz@ﬂ&aﬁqﬂlﬁﬁ%%ﬁ/\ﬁuﬁ ES
JnENEEEGE (AR - B
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Ethz BRBEEGZ RELRDB
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RINAERNRZHEE SRR EESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B SRR MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

40 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(viii)

(Continued)

Pursuant to Contractual Arrangements, Zhirong shall engage UMV
Zhuhai on an exclusive basis to provide technological consultation and
services. Unless prior written consent has been obtained from UMV
Zhuhai or its designated nominee(s), Zhirong shall not carry on any
transaction or conduct any act that may materially adversely affect
the assets, business, personnel, obligations, rights or operation of
Zhirong. UMV Zhuhai shall provide a non-interest bearing loan in the
sum of RMB10,000,000 to the PRC Equity Owner of Zhirong, and the
PRC Equity Owner shall accept such loan in accordance with the loan
agreement.

In November 2021, UMV Zhuhai provided a non-interest bearing loan
of RMB10,000,000 to the PRC Equity Owner of Zhirong, and such
loan was totally used by the PRC Equity Owner to inject into Zhirong
as capital. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, UMV
Zhuhai did not provide any technological consultation and services to
Zhirong.

Due to the implementation of the share award schemes of
the Group, the Group has also set up a structured entity (the
“Group Employee Share Trust”) in 2015, and its particulars
are as follows:

Structured entity
HEREMER

Principal activities

FEEXEK

REZE2022F12831B 1L 2 F &

40 [ & 2 =) @

Hiaz - (&)
(viii)  (48)

BEGOLZH SREREBRZES
REmERBRMTERARRTE - BRIEFL
BN SR EEEREANEADR
B AAUESREBRTBETTMAEY
TRERNEE X% AB -EBH
BAREEELEEATHEENR F K
TR N ERENE SR+ R
EHEE ARE S A AR10,000,000
THESER  MAEREES AGR
BERGBEESZEER -

2021 1A @R SmmE ek E
RRiEHE A AR AR 10,000,0007T &
EER  ZEEFE2RBHTERERER
AEBEREAER AR - # =20224F
M2021F12A31ALFE @R B @R
) %5 B < AR 4R AL A (Al B Al W AR AN AR 7S ©
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Group Employee Share Trust

SERERMNEE

Administering and holding the Company’s shares before they are vested

and transferred to the Participants

smE

ES

As the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the Group Employee Share Trust and
can derive benefits from the contributions of the eligible
persons who are awarded with the shares by the schemes,
the directors of the Company consider that it is appropriate
to consolidate the Group Employee Share Trust.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B T EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

41 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 41

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year’s presentation as the directors of the
Company consider that the new presentation is more relevant
and appropriate to the consolidated financial statements.

42 TRANSACTIONS WITH

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

42

On 21 June 2022, the Group acquired an additional 10%
of the issued shares of SecureTech Holdings Limited, one
of subsidiaries, for RMB855,000. Immediately prior to
the purchase, the carrying amount of the existing 40%
non-controlling interest in SecureTech Holdings Limited
was RMB4,432,000. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of RMB1,108,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the parent of RMB253,000.
The effect on the equity attributable to the owners of
SecureTech Holdings Limited during the year is summarised
as follows:

BB B

RUELRBBEOREFDE  UFE
AEE 2K AR/ARBEEMR
RFEHN R A B E M REREM
AESE -

HIEZEREZERRNRS

2022F6A218 - AEEBEUAR
#855,000 L Wi T E Iff B 2~ 7
SecureTech Holdings Limited 10%H#Y
BT o W BB AT  SecureTech
Holdings Limited 40% JE 12 i% # 25 &Y
HEEF{EBAE%4,432,OOOE &K H

RIEFE R B AR%1,108,000

TOBBREARMAENER
A R¥253,0005T c A FE Y
SecureTech Holdings Limitedff & & #&
W BEEINT

2021
RMB'000
ARETT

Carrying amount of non-controlling EX/5IF3ZERSHE R AU BR M & 58

interests acquired 1,108 -
Consideration paid to non XATHEE

controlling interests (855) -
Difference of consideration paid ERJEIE IR AE SR AR R AT 5 4

recognised in the transactions Bm e

with non-controlling interests

reserve within equity 253 -

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests in
2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

310

43 ARREEREEREREE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY BB R
Balance sheet of the Company ARAI2EERER
2021
RMB’000
ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment & 76 127
Investments in subsidiaries R BRARZIEE 348,786 435,696
348,862 435,823
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN ] 910,537 610,154
Fixed bank deposits R1TEHF R 368,143 514,361
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 78,413 145,944
1,357,093 1,270,459
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A FE - 5K 4,206 3,291
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A< B 8 A Bl 3R 1B 411,106 386,947
415,312 390,238
Net current assets REBEEFE 941,781 880,221
Net assets BEEFE 1,290,643 1,316,044
Capital and reserves BEARFHE
Share capital fike 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves #HE 98,281 123,682
Total equity S 1,290,643 1,316,044

The balance sheet of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March
2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

LU RUN TING
EEE

Chairman and Executive Director

EFSTITERHTEF

Goldpac Group Limited  Annual Report 2022
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TEFEeREREE:

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 R & ZE2022F12831HIEZ F[E

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 43 KPFEEEBREHEE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) S8R @
Reserve movement of the Company RABZHESER .
Shares =
held under

share N
award Other Retained S

scheme reserve earnings Total
B 7 -
BB AT &l é
Fr¥s A B fn Hinf#E RHBEER B 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 &
ARETT ARBTrT ARETT ARETRT <
At 1 January 2021 20211818 (13,516) 37,681 234,238 258,403 5
Profit and total comprehensive F &% F| K & U A &5 z
income for the year - - (10,122) (10,122) g
Purchase of shares fi% 2 Bl B8 - - (12,661) (12,661) s
Dividends recognised as DRI E (HfiE14) _
distribution (Note 14) - - (111,938) (111,938) %
At 31 December 2021 720219124318 (13,516) 37,681 99,517 123,682 g
2
Profit and total comprehensive 4 € & F| & % H 4 A 4258 g
income for the year - - 78,474 78,474 £
Purchase of shares (Note 33) & {p [E1E& (Note 33) - - (6,867) (6,867) 8
Dividends recognised as DRI E (HiE14) &
distribution (Note 14) - - (97,008) (97,008) g

At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H (13,516) 37,681 74,116 98,281

0
_ 2
=25
s}

c €
T o
c =
[
%]
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B B =
Year ended 31 December
REBZE12A31BLZEE
2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT
Results 4
Revenue A 1,411,127 1,415,665 1,281,903 1,376,524 1,530,251
Profits before taxation B 3 A A B 207,802 206,882 169,242 154,939 164,070
Income tax expense PS5 & A (33,154) (30,459) (23,982) (16,988) (3,091)
Profit for the year FEEFE 174,648 176,423 145,260 137,951 160,979
Attributable to &G
— Owners of the Company - RRAHA A 175,187 177,125 145,665 138,184 147,427
- Non-controlling interests - R (539) (702) (405) (233) 13,552
174,648 176,423 145,260 137,951 160,979
At 31 December
®12H31H
2018 2019 2020 2021
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Assets and liabilities BEEMEE
Total assets BEE 2,628,452 2,635,228 2,577,263 2,609,965 2,813,857
Total liabilities BAE (648,369)  (630,824)  (579,727)  (601,360)  (743,294)
Net assets SFEE 1,980,083 2,004,404 1,997,536 2,008,605 2,070,563
Attributable to e
— Owners of the Company /NI, F=IN 1,977,549 2,002,572 1,996,109 2,007,411 = 2,056,925
— Non-controlling interests — IR RS 2,534 1,832 1,427 1,194 13,638
1,980,083 2,004,404 1,997,536 2,008,605 2,070,563
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